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Forward-looking statement in this Annual Report, we 
have disclosed forward-looking information to enable 
investors to comprehend our prospects and take 
informed investment decisions. This report and other 
statements – written and oral – that we periodically, 
‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of 
similar substance in connection with any discussion 
of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these 
forward-looking statements will be realised, although we 
make, contain forward-looking statements that set out 
anticipated results based on the management’s plans and 
assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify 
such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, 
‘estimates’, ‘expects’ believe we have been prudent in our 
assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to 
risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. 
Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties 
materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove 
inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from 
those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should 
bear this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly 
update any forward-looking statements, whether as a 
result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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REGAINING MOMENTUM, STRENGTHENING 
OUR POSITIONING
Pandemic related restrictions brought about a paradigm shift in consumer behaviour. Consumers staying at 
home hastened adoption of digital shopping methods. Ubiquitous access to internet at more affordable prices 
and higher penetration of digital devices are influencing consumer buying behaviour. 

Increasingly, store & online channels are integrating, with consumers leveraging access to compare products, 
prices, brand offerings and the feedback / opinions of fellow consumers before making their purchase 
decision. 

Value fashion is a promising segment in fashion retail with the potential of appealing to a wider customer 
base and reaching more addressable geographies. Popular and mass-priced products possibly constitute over 
75% of the total fashion market in India.

We have consistently emphasized the importance of establishing viability of a retail stores, prior to embarking 
on rapid expansion. 

We strategically invested in our manufacturing to drive efficiencies and facilitate scaling up of operations. We 
consolidated our position in FY 2022, so that we can take a big leap in coming years. 

At V2 Retail, we believe in 
strong growth prospects. 

The economy will bounce 
back much faster and will be 
stronger.

Our virtues guide us 
to relentlessly pursue 
opportunities. 

Led by differentiated product 
offerings & store experience, V2 
continued to grow its reach in 
FY22. V2 opened 10 stores and 
closed 4 stores during FY22.

With a renewed vigour, we 
are now poised to resiliently 
tide above crisis and steer the 
organization in a new direction 
to become better than before

V2 Retail has been refining its 
positioning as the most loved 
shopping destination for the 
young Indian family.

We are offering a choice that 
addresses the aspirational needs 
of young India, who wants to 
break free post disruption, who 
has the resilience, who wants 
to demonstrate how to bounce 
back.

Our focus continues to 
accelerate our universe of 
Private brands. 

Deliver long-term value to its 
customers, employees and 
the society, and reward its 
shareholders.
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Our ability to defy odds demonstrates our 
strength. Our performance is reflection of our 
swiftness to embrace the changing trends and 
as well as innovate at V2 Retail.
Consumers V2 Retail addressed the growing 
needs of the ‘neo middle-class’ and ‘middle-class’ 
population segments, marked by rising incomes, 
aspirations and spending. The Company is respected 
as a price-leader with an average selling price of B 
289 and average bill value per customer of B 790.

Omni Channel V2 Retail strengthen its Omni-
channel capabilities and improved its cost 
efficiency. The Company had also launched its 
e-commerce portal V2 Kart (www.v2kart.com) 
during the lockdown.

Low Debt Equity Most retail companies grew 
their business through a combination of debt 
and accruals. V2 Retail have only working capital 
facilities and Debt Equity Ratio is 0.19.

Cost Control We have also initiated a number of 
measures to keep our fixed cost under control like 
rental renegotiations, engaging with suppliers, 
control over variable cost.

Semi-urban and rural Most retail chains focused 
on developed markets with presence of organised 
retail. V2 Retail focused on the taking organised 
retail to the real Bharat - semi-urban and Tier 2 / 3 
cities instead

Technology driven Most retail chain invested in 
technologies as a back end tool for record keeping 
and storage. V2 Retail leverage technology to 
deliver superior consumer experience and enabling 
efficient operation management. 

Focus on private label Most retail chains focused 
on a trading operation – outsourcing and 
retailing. V2 Retail focused on enhancing the 
brand recall value by marketing proprietary labels 
alongside increasing consumer overall shopping 
experience.

One-stop destination The Company’s product 
range addresses the fashion aspirations of Bharat. 
The fashion desires of young and the old Bharat, 
the ‘neo middle-class’ and ‘middle-class’ Families.
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Our relentless efforts 
are designing the 
course of our future.

Revenue Growth

559.4
Rcr, revenues in 
2017-18

629.2
Rcr, revenues in 
2021-22

EBIDTA

55
Rcr, in 2017-18

76.3
Rcr, in 2021-22

Retail Space

5.56
Lakh sqft, retail 
space in 2017-18

10.59
Lakh sqft, retail 
space in 2021-22

States

15
Number of states 
of presence in 
2017-18

16
Number of states 
of presence  
2021-22

Stores

49
Number of  
stores in 2017-18

101
Number of 
stores in 2021-22
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Our Brands 

JEYPORE, ORISSA 

Banka, Bihar 

Our Brands

V2 Retail
Meeting the demands of an ever evolving industry, we are consistently aligning ourselves with new-age requirements, 
identifying market trends and imbibing advanced technology to thrive and prosper. With a renewed vigour, we are 
now poised to resiliently tide above crisis and steer the organization in a new direction to become better than before.

About us Promoters

V2 Retail is one of the fastest growing retail company in 
India and enjoys strong brand equity from customers 
across segments. The company offers a portfolio of 
products, including apparel and life style products. 
V2 stands for ‘Value and Variety’ it sells good quality 
fashion garments at affordable prices, which suits 
every individual and household. The Company has 
a Strong presence in Northern & Eastern India. The 
Company caters to the neo middle class group of 
population living in Tier 2 and Tier 3 cities.

The Company is promoted by Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, 
possessing more than 30 years of entrepreneurial 
experience. He is the pioneer in value retailing and brought 
this concept in India. He has been the Chairman and the 
Managing Director of the Company since July 2011. 

Mr. Akash Agarwal is the Non-Executive Director of the 
Company. He has more than 9 years of experience in retail 
industry.

Stores presence New initiative

As on March 31, 2022, the Company operates 101 stores 
spread across 16 states and more than 85 cities with a 
total retail area of ~10.59 lac Sq. Ft.

V2 - your favourite Fashion Brand is now ONLINE. We 
are delighted to announce the launch of our ecommerce 
portal V2 Kart (www.v2kart.com). Our online store provides 
our existing and prospective clients with an easier, more 
intuitive, user friendly shopping and checkout experience.

Business verticals Positioning

Our product portfolio mix includes Men’s Wear – 
Upper, Lower, Occasion Wear, Winter Wear, Sportswear, 
Formal, Casual, Ladies Wear – Ethnic wear, Upper, 
Lower, Occasion Wear, Winter Wear, Sportswear, Kids 
Wear – Boy, Girls, Infants, Winter Wear and Lifestyle - 
Lifestyle products like Deodorants, wallets, sunglasses, 
ladies purse etc. 

The Company’s business model revolves around making 
quality product accessible to the large section of society 
within the acceptable price points. V2 Retail’s average 
product realization of ₹B 289 and average net billing per 
customer of ₹B 790 in FY2022 were lower than most 
organized retail brands in India, reinforcing its position as 
one of the most affordable yet fashionable retail chains of 
India.
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Store Presence 

           

           

NCR (3) 
Mahipalpur; Faridabad; 

Kapasehra 1 

           

Karnataka (4) 

Hubli; Belgaum, Vijaynagar, 
Gulbarga 

           

Bihar (26) 

Patna ; Gaya;  Darbhanga; Bhagalpur; 
Bettiah; Arrah; Purnia; Siwan; Bihar Sharif; 

Begusarai (1); Sitamarhi;  Motihari; Saharsa;  
Samastipur, Barh; Banka; Buxer; 

Aurangabad; Begusarai (2); Muzaffarpur; 
Madhubani; Patna 2; Gopalganj; Patna 3; 

Begusarai (3); Chapra; Sasaram 

           
Goa (2) 

Madhya Pradesh (3) 

           

Arunachal (1) 

Jabalpur; Sagar; Rewa 

Itanagar 

           

Assam (6) & Tripura (1) 
Guwahati 1;  Guwahati 2; 

Guwahati 3; Silchar;  Barpeta; 
Jorhat; Agartala 

           

Odisha (15) 

Cuttack; Berhampur; 
Bhuwaneshwar 1; Jeypore; 

Bhuwaneshwar 2; 
Bhuwaneshwar 3, Jajpur, Angul, 
Bhadrak, Balasore; Nimapada; 

Sundergarh; Raj Khariar; Rourkela; 
Baripada 

           
Jamshedur; Ranchi; Hazaribagh;  

Deogarh; Rajdhanwar, Chas, 
Dumka; Daltonganj 

           
Uttarakhand (5) 

Haldwani; Roorkee; Haridwar, 
Khatima; Dehradun 

           

Himachal (1) 

Solan 

           

Uttar Pradesh (24) 

Gorakhpur 1; Gorakhpur 2; Sitapur; Varanasi 1; 
Padrauna; Gazipur; Pratapgarh; Lucknow; 
Behraich; Akbarpur, Varanasi 2; Azamgarh; 

Ballia ; Varanasi 3; Gorakhpur 3; Basti; Raebareli; 
Jaunpur; Prayagraj; Mirzapur; Balrampur; 

Lakhimpur Kheri; Lucknow 2 

           
Jammu & Kashmir (1) 

Kathua 

Jharkhand (8) 

Panaji; Bicholim 

           

West Bengal  (1) 

Malda 
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Inventory (days of sale)

FY2017-18 105

FY2018-19 132

FY2019-20 102

FY2020-21 180

FY2021-22 155

The Inventory days have been 
increased due to lock down and Covid 
related restrictions. The Company 
is committed to bring down the 
Inventory at 90 days of sale in a normal 
scenario.

Rent per sq. ft. (B per month)

FY2017-18 44

FY2018-19 43

FY2019-20 45

FY2020-21 38

FY2021-22 40

During the year, the rentals were at 
Pre-Covid level.

Retail Space (lakh sq. ft.)

FY2017-18 5.56

FY2018-19 9.06

FY2019-20 8.40

FY2020-21 9.96

FY2021-22 10.59

Company is able to increase the retail 
space amid challenges in a tough year 
for the Industry.

Sales per sq. ft. (B per month)

FY2017-18 942

FY2018-19 792

FY2019-20 672

FY2020-21 507

FY2021-22 494

A year that started with pandemic, where 
most of the stores were not operational 
for Q1 and gradually started opening 
up from Q2.  There was increased 
consumer confidence in Q3, however 
third wave of Covid have diminished 
the sentiments again in Q4FY22. 

Same stores sales growth (SSG)(%)

FY2017-18 (4)

FY2018-19 (5)

FY2019-20 (8)

FY2020-21 (31)

FY2021-22 7

The Company reported a growth of 
7% in SSG during the year. 

Our performance over the years

Stores (Number)

FY2017-18 49

FY2018-19 77

FY2019-20 76

FY2020-21 95

FY2021-22 101

Despite Covid related disruptions, the 
Company opened 10 new stores and 
closed 4 stores during the year.
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Revenues (B cr)

FY2017-18 559.40

FY2018-19 748.42

FY2019-20 701.22

FY2020-21 538.65

FY2021-22 629.22

The revenue for FY 2021-22 grow by 
17% compared to FY 2020-21

EBIDTA margin (%)

FY2017-18 9.8

FY2018-19 7.6

FY2019-20 11.2

FY2020-21 13.2

FY2021-22 12.1

EBIDTA for FY22 stood at ₹B 76.31 cr as 
compared to B ₹70.93 cr for FY21

PBT margin (%)

FY2017-18 8.2

FY2018-19 5.5

FY2019-20 (0.3)

FY2020-21 (2.3)

FY2021-22 (2.5)
*Before exceptional items 

Unprecedented lock down led to decline in 
Profit margins.

Net profit (B cr)

FY2017-18 31.08

FY2018-19 20.49#

FY2019-20 10.15*

FY2020-21 (11.04)

FY2021-22 (12.90)
*Including exceptional item (Income from sale of 
property)

#Including exceptional item (one time settlement 
with CDR lenders)

Basic EPS (B) (after extra ordinary items)

FY2017-18 9.62

FY2018-19 6.02#

FY2019-20 2.97*

FY2020-21 (3.24)

FY2021-22 (3.85)
*Including exceptional item (Income from sale of 
property)

#Including exceptional item (one time settlement with 
CDR lenders)

The Company reported a decline in EPS 
following the unprecedented situation in 
the wake of Covid-19

Our performance over the years
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Chairman’s message

Ram Chandra Agarwal
Chairman
Vision, Mission and Goal

We as a group of people and company are trying to enhance 
the quality of human life through enhancing the quality of our 
employees and creating environment and processes to enhance 
the quality of every human being. Every movement trying to be a 
better quality human being.

Dear Shareholders, 

It was indeed a difficult year, as the continuing COVID crisis emanating from subsequent waves, and 
the geopolitical tensions triggered by the Russia-Ukraine conflict aggravated the global stress towards 
the end of the year. The unprecedented pandemic was followed by supply chain whiplash, and further 
disruption was brought on by the Russia-Ukraine war, along with the inflationary pressures resulting from 
these crises, further aggravated the problems for the Indian economy and industry. Amid these pressures, 
businesses struggled to cope and survive. We are now staring at the spectre of a high- interest rate and 
high-inflation regime globally

With stringent restrictions in place, our stores remained operational for lesser number of the eligible days. 
As the economy gradually picked up pace in subsequent quarters, we witnessed a strong rebound with 
the reopening of stores, continuing to gain momentum with time. The short-lived Omicron wave in the 
fourth quarter coupled with inflationary pressure, impacted our sales momentum and recovery.

While the pandemic did leave a trail of damage in its wake and continues to build uncertainty, pent-up 
demand for retail is now returning manifold — not entirely through brick-and-mortar, but through other 
new-age channels too.

Your Company has remained committed to the well-being, health and safety of all its members and taken 
all possible measures in line with the government directions and advisories. 

Given the fog of uncertainty all around, it is hard to be prescient in these times. But there is little doubt 
on one reality: companies with quality leadership, sound business fundamentals, and a track record of 
winning in turbulent times, will emerge as champions in the new global order. 

Difficult times like these drive us to reimagine, recreate and rebuild strategies. We are committed to a 
long-term strategy and we continue to invest in multiple areas while building shareholder value. Despite 
the challenges, we have been able to address the needs and expectations of the consumer in the new 
normal while ensuring multiple initiatives across the organisation are on track. We have scaled up our 
omnichannel initiatives along with a robust replenishment system to provide a superior customer 
experience across channels. We stayed decisively on course with our long-term plans for sustainable 
growth and value creation for our stakeholders, opening 10 new stores during the year.

Your Company will continue to be agile and resilient and our efforts will be directed to build all aspects of 
the business. We are geared up to work through these challenging times and continue to focus on value 
enhancement for the consumer while ensuring network expansion. In the current context, organisations 
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need to stay focused on the future while positively contributing to society and I am happy to say that our 
Company is on the right path. Together, we can come out of this and help our nation chart its way towards 
recovery. 

V2 Retail has been refining its positioning as the most loved shopping destination for the young Indian 
family. We have consistently emphasized the importance of establishing viability of existing retail stores, 
prior to embarking on rapid expansion. At V2, we also follows strong product/ inventory disciplines 
across the value chain. Our focus continues to accelerate our universe of Private brands. The new price 
positioning, focus on essentials with high-quality value for money merchandise, will drive the business to 
new heights. At our company, the difference starts from our store design, the friendliness of our staff, the 
engagement quality with our customers and our offerings mix compromising a larger proportion of non-
food products, especially apparel. The result is that V2 Retail is shifting the needle from quality products to 
holistically superior experiences.

Our customers and our people are our strongest assets and they helped us turn the corner during these 
difficult times. India’s retail scenario is dynamic as technology, generational and demographic changes 
are converging. Rediscovery and transformation lie ahead as we continue to craft an end-to-end Omni-
channel experience. We promise to curate the best for you, as V2 Retail has always done.

Ram Chandra Agarwal 
Chairman
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Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Agarwal holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce and has a vast experience of more than 
25 years in retail sector. He has been a member of the Board since inception of the Company 
and is the driving force behind the growth of the Company. He pioneered the value retailing 
concept in India. He was conferred with various awards, such as, Ernst & Young Entrepreneur 
of the year award in 2008 and 4Ps Power Brand Award in 2007.

Mrs. Uma Agarwal
Whole Time Director Photo

Mr. Akash Agarwal
 Director

Mrs. Uma Agarwal holds a bachelor’s degree 
in Arts and has a vast experience of over 
16 years in the retail industry. She has been 
the member of the Board of Directors since 
the inception and oversees the marketing 
strategies of the Company

Mr. Akash Agarwal holds a Bachelor’s 
degree in Business Administration (BBA) 
from Lancaster University (UK) and possess 
more than nine years of experience in the 
retail industry. He looks after E-Commerce, 
Procurement and Finance.

Photo
Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu 
Independent Director

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal
Independent Director

A Graduate (BA Hons) from Cambridge 
University having vast experience of 44 years. 
Mr. Sidhu has taught Economics at Punjab 
University and JNU & worked as consultant 
with Planning commission. Further he has 
vast experience in retail industry, he has 
worked with: Credo Brands Marketing Private 
Limited (Mufti) as CEO, Koutons Retail, Vishal 
Mega Mart and Ebony Holdings

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal holds Ph.D in 
textiles and M.Tech in textiles technology from 
IIT Delhi. He has over 35 Years of extensive 
experience in working with various retail 
companies. He is having a vast experience in 
the field of Marketing, Product Development, 
Business Development, Strategic Planning 
and Administration.
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Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal
Chairman & Managing 
Director Photo

Mr. Akash Agarwal
Whole Time Director & CFO

Mr. Agarwal holds a bachelor’s degree in 
commerce and has a vast experience of more 
than 25 years in retail sector. He has been a 
member of the Board since inception of the 
Company and is the driving force behind 
the growth of the Company. He pioneered 
the value retailing concept in India. He was 
conferred with various awards, such as, Ernst 
& Young Entrepreneur of the year award in 
2008 and 4Ps Power Brand Award in 2007.

Mr. Akash agarwal holds a Bachelor’s degree 
in Business Administration (BBA) from 
Lancaster University (UK) and possess more 
than seven years of experience in the retail 
industry. He has been designated as Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 25th 
June, 2020. He looks after E-Commerce, 
Procurement and Finance.

Mrs. Uma Agarwal
Whole Time Director Photo

Ms. Rochelle Susana 
D’Souza
Nominee Director 

Mrs. Uma Agarwal holds a bachelor’s degree 
in Arts and has a vast experience of over 
15 years in the retail industry. She has been 
the member of the Board of Directors since 
the inception and oversees the marketing 
strategies of the Company

Ms. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza holds a 
Bachelor of Engineering in Electronics 
and Communication and an MBA. She is 
a Principal at Lighthouse, a mid-market 
consumer focused private equity fund and 
has worked at investment banking division of 
SBI Capital Market, focused on equity capital 
market transactions

Photo
Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu 
Independent Director

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal
Independent Director

A Graduate (BA Hons) from Cambridge 
University having vast experience of 44 years. 
Mr. Sidhu has taught Economics at Punjab 
University and JNU & worked as consultant 
with Planning commission. Further he has 
vast experience in retail industry, he has 
worked with: Credo Brands Marketing Private 
Limited (Mufti) as CEO, Koutons Retail, Vishal 
Mega Mart and Ebony Holdings

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal holds Ph.D in 
textiles and M.Tech in textiles technology from 
IIT Delhi. He has over 35 Years of extensive 
experience in working with various retail 
companies. He is having a vast experience in 
the field of Marketing, Product Development, 
Business Development, Strategic Planning 
and Administration.
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Photo
Mr. Lalit Kumar
Independent Director Photo

Mrs. Archana S Yadav
Independent Director

Mr. Lalit Kumar is an FCA, FCS and 
Commerce graduate from Shriram College 
of Commerce, Delhi. As an Entrepreneurial 
Profits & Growth strategist, he has worked 
with multiple sectors like Finance, Retail, 
Education & Skill Development, Infrastructure 
etc. He has extensive experience in Retail 
Industry. He was associated with various 
retail chains both in India and Dubai. He 
has also been a visiting faculty to NIFT, New 
Delhi.

A Chartered Accountant in practice with more 
than 14 years of experience, having expertise 
in GST, Income Tax, International Tax & 
Corporate Audits. She served as Financial 
Advisor to the autonomous body M/s National 
Institute of Solar Energy, under Ministry 
of New & Renewable Energy. She has also 
worked with various MNC’s as Management 
Consultant, Service tax Consultant & Direct 
Tax advisor. She was appointed as GST Faculty 
by ICAI for GST knowledge sharing across 
India.
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How V2 Retail becomes  
most promising value  
retail fashionable  
chain 

First-mover advantage Centralised procurement & quality 
check

One Stop Family Shop with 
Pleasant ambience 

More than 25 years of experience in 
serving the Indian Retail space.

First mover advantage in various 
Tier-II and Tier-III cities. 

Centralized procurement and 
rigorous quality check.

Wide network of registered vendors 
and suppliers spread across the 
country.

Pleasant Air-Conditioned stores 
ambience with trial rooms. Product 
range specifically caters to the 
demands and aspirations of ‘neo 
middle class’ and the ‘middle class’ 
group of the population with an 
added focus on latest fashion and 
trends.

Efficient Supply Chain 
Management

Technology Value-for-money fashion

Comprehensive SCM system 
comprising of planning, sourcing, 
standardization, logistics, 
quality control, pilferage control, 
replacement and replenishment. 

Distribution center capable of 
catering to 15 lakh sq. ft. of retail 
space.

The organised retail industry is 
critically dependent on information 
technology; V2 Retail is no 
exception. All processes - planning 
and procurement to warehousing 
and sales - across our stores 
are hosted on our integrated 
information technology system. 
The core business runs on SAP ERP 
and a proprietary point-of-sale tool.

V2 Retail has widened its market 
positioning by attracting wide 
spectrum of consumer, the one 
which is fashion freak, the one who 
is also price conscious, the one who 
wants to looks trendy yet traditional. 
Our modest average product selling 
of B 289 per product, average billing 
per customer of B 790 helping us 
widening our footprint in the heart 
of Bharat.

Cost management Low cost procurement destination Store presence

V2 Retail’s wider presence in low 
competition Tier-2 and 3 cities, 
moderated rent and employee costs 
on the one hand alongside superior 
per square feet salesis helping 
in better absorption of cost and 
enhancing our margins.

V2 Retail follow stringent norms to 
select and procure vendor partners. 
We continuously engages with 
vendor partners to surpass agreed 
benchmarks on better design 
and product performance. Our 
experience and careful selection of 
vendors along with support, helps 
us in better negotiation.

As on March 31, 2022, the Company 
operates 101 stores spread across 16 
states and more than 85 cities with 
a total retail area of ~10.59 lac Sq. Ft.

Our store location selection is 
reflection of our motto of taking 
fashion to the roots of Bharat. 
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Economic backdrop

India is one of the top economies 
in the world by nominal GDP 
and the third largest in terms of 
purchasing power parity. Despite 
the recent reduction in the pace 
of GDP growth, and the past year 
of degrowth due to the pandemic, 
India is expected to be one of the 
fastest growing major economies of 
the world.

The Covid led restrictions during 
the financial year has shaken the 
entire economic scenario in the 
country, impacting various sectors 
in one or the other manner. 

Attractive demographics

India has a relatively young 
population with almost 50% below 
the age of 25 and more than 65% 
below the age of 35. It is estimated 
that the Indian workforce would 
soon be the largest in the world 
with a global share of almost 20%. 
Women are increasingly being 
integrated into the formal workforce 
with greater control over personal 
and household financial decision 
making. This cultural shift is 
expected to positively impact the 
lifestyle and fashion business in 
India. 

Urbanization

According to Economic Survey 
of India, it is projected that India’s 
urban population will grow from an 
estimated B 37.7 Crores in 2011 to  
B 60 Crores by 2030, comprising 
over 40% of the country’s 
population. Given the increasing 
contribution of manufacturing and 
service industries to the national 
GDP, urban agglomerations are 
the key drivers of consumption. 
There is a consistent trend towards 
urbanization, suggesting a shifting 
set of preferences away from 
rural life to the accessibility and 

Management discussion and analysis
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convenience of city life. Urban areas 
usually lead in key developmental 
indicators, including availability of 
economic and social infrastructure, 
while also offering financially 
remunerative careers and business 
options for ambitious & enterprising 
individuals. Urbanization is 
leading to growth across not just 
metros and tier I cities but also 
tier II and tier III cities. Increasing 
consumption, coinciding with 
the higher urbanization levels is 
expected to fundamentally alter 
the consumption basket over the 
coming decade. 

Rising disposable income and 
consumption

Higher disposable incomes are a 
driving factor for robust growth. 
Aspiring and affluent households 
have given a fillip to India’s 
domestic consumption. Over time, 
consumers have increased their 
spends on lifestyle products such 
as apparel, footwear, personal care 
items, jewellery along with greater 
adoption of financial products 
evidencing growing aspirations and 
increasing affinity for consumption. 
In absolute terms, domestic 
consumption in India has increased 
more than 3x over the last decade. 
Domestic consumption is expected 
to grow at a CAGR of over 8% with 
the aggregate size of well over US$ 
2.5 trillion by 2025. 

Indian retail industry overview

Retailing is one of the pillars of the 
Indian economy. At an estimated 
size in the region of US$ 1 trillion, 
India is one of the top five retail 
markets globally. It is also one of the 
fastest growing retail markets in the 
world. 

Y-O-Y growth of the Indian Economy

Particulars FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 22

Real GDP Growth (%) 6.8 6.5 3.7 -6.6 8.9

(Source: RBI Annual Report 2021-22)

FY21 & FY 22 were challenging years 
for Indian retail with extended & 
intermittent lockdowns and high 
inflation. Nevertheless, the sector is 
seen to be poised for strong growth 
over the medium to long term. 
Some of the key drivers for growth 
include: 

=	 Growing urbanization, 
participation of women in work 
force 

=	 Rising disposable income, 
discretionary spending

=	 Increasing aspirations, fashion 
consciousness and brand 
awareness 

=	 E-commerce and growing 
influence of social media 
due to wide availability of 
smartphones and high speed 
internet

=	 Entry of international players 
across various retail segments 

=	 Supply side innovations, 
improved manufacturing 
capabilities, efficient 
warehousing & distribution, 
leveraging technology 

=	 Easy and on demand 
availability of credit. 

Fashion and lifestyle market

Fashion retail market in India has 
witnessed various changes and 
challenges in recent years but 
has nevertheless been growing 
consistently. This growth is 
indicative of the country’s evolving 
fashion and lifestyle preferences. 

Value fashion is a promising 
segment in fashion retail with the 
potential of appealing to a wider 
customer base and reaching more 
addressable geographies. Popular 
and mass-priced products possibly 
constitute over 75% of the total 
fashion market in India. Online 
and offline fashion players are 
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increasing focus on building private labels/ in-
house brands to provide differentiated offerings to 
discerning customers. Private labels have additional 
inherent advantages such as lower concept to 
customer time, faster execution vis-à-vis dealing 
with third party brands, better control over quality & 
pricing and better margins. 

There is also a growing emphasis on enriching 
customer experience. Window displays, in-
store ambience, coordinated product displays, 
lighting, music and communication help build 
brand presence and awareness. Exciting visual 
merchandising forms a key element in enhancing 
customer experience. Growing awareness, coupled 
with entry of international players in the industry 
is spotlighting visual merchandising as an integral 
proposition of retail. 

Increasing acceptance of technology/ digital

Pandemic related restrictions brought about a 
paradigm shift in consumer behaviour. Consumers 
staying at home hastened adoption of digital 
shopping methods. Ubiquitous access to internet 
at more affordable prices and higher penetration 
of digital devices are influencing consumer buying 
behaviour. Increasingly, store & online channels 
are integrating, with consumers leveraging access 
to compare products, prices, brand offerings and 
the feedback / opinions of fellow consumers 
before making their purchase decision. The Indian 
e-commerce market penetration is expected to 
increase as total gross merchandise value is expected 
to grow from US$ 60 bn in 2020 to US$ 99 bn by 
2024, driven by wider assortment and convenience. 

Source: Analyst and industry reports | Internal 
analysis

Indian organised retail industry

As internet penetration increases, the share of 
organised retail market is expected to increase from 
12 percent in FY 2019 to 25 percent in FY 2024. 
Technology is expected a major role in enhancing 
consumer experience. The next 10-12 years could 
be defining for the Indian retail sector as the market 
matures and organized retail penetrates deeper into 
smaller cities and towns. While more international 
brands and retailers across categories and formats 
could enter and grow the Indian business, India could 
become a key growth market for ones already present. 

India’s organised retail penetration is lower than 
other countries like United States (85%), indicating 
headroom. Within organized retail, food & beverage 
account for around 65%, followed by apparel at 10% 
and personal care at 3%. 
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The Indian Government’s decision to permit 100% foreign 
direct investment in single-brand retail through the automatic 
investment route and relaxation of sourcing norms could 
strengthen the organized sector. (Source: Care Ratings, 
Financial Express, indiaretailing.com)

Outlook 

Retail segment especially Value Retail segment was adversely 
impacted due to ongoing inflationary situation during the 
initial months of FY 2023. Governments both at Centre and 
State are taking measures to calm down the inflation. RBI is 
taking proactive steps to rein the inflation. With a near normal 
monsoon so far, we believe that the inflationary pressure is 
bound to reduce. This year the festival season will be without 
restrictions almost after 2 years of restrictions. We expect rapid 
recovery in customer off take starting with the festive season 
towards end of September followed by the wedding season.

Company overview

Established in 2001, V2 Retail Limited provides a comprehensive 
portfolio of product offerings addressing diverse pockets. The 
Company offers smart, trendy and fashionable apparels across 
categories at affordable prices under one roof. The Company 
operates 101 stores in 16 states and more than 85 cities 
(primarily Tier-II and Tier-III) covering a total retail area ~10.59 
lakh sq. ft.

During the year under review, the Company opened 10 new 
stores and closed 4 stores. The Company plans to improve its 
store profitability and would be looking at rationalising certain 
stores before accelerate growth through accelerated store 
addition. To increase bill size, store productivity and store gross 
margins, V2 Retail plans to increase the share of its private labels 
across its stores.

The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary named V2 
Smart Manufacturing Private Limited during the year under 
review. The company is engaged in manufacturing of apparel 
and others.

Key Strategic Areas:

=	 Focus on margin-accretive private labels and increase its 
share in the Company’s revenue 

=	 Focus on achieving same store sales growth

=	 Inventory Management 

=	 Omni Channel Business

=	 Launch stores in existing clusters

Financial Highlights (Standalone): 

Revenues: Revenue during the year stood at B 629.2 crore, a 
growth of 17% as compared to B 538.6 crore in FY2020-21. 

EBIDTA: EBIDTA for FY22 stood at B 76.3 crore as compared to  
B 70.9 crore for FY21

Profit after tax: The Company registered a loss of B₹ 12.90 crore 
compared to loss of B 11.04 crore in the previous year.
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Key Financial Highlights

Particulars (B crores) Standalone Consolidated

FY 22 FY 21 FY 22 FY 21

Revenue from Operations 629.22 538.65 629.22 538.65

EBIDTA 76.31 70.93 80.54 71.50

PBT (16.36) (13.09) (14.86) (15.29)

PAT (12.90) (11.04) (11.68) (12.84)

EPS (B) (3.85) (3.24) (3.45) (3.76)

Proportion of revenues from proprietary labels (%)

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

% of revenues 12.5 23 30 34 38

Key Ratio (Standalone)

Particulars FY 22 FY 21

Inventory holding days 155 180

Trade Payable holding days 65 80

Debt Equity Ratio (x) 0.19 0.18

PAT Margin (%) (2.03) (2.92)

1 Mens Wear 40

2 Ladies Wear 25

3 Kids Wear 29

4 Lifestyle 6

1 East 53

2 North 33

3 South 14

1 East 55

2 North 30

3 South 15

Our product mix (%) Our regional space mix (%)

Our regional revenue mix (%)

2

Risk Management

V2 Retail’s Risk Management 
function enables the achievement 
of strategic objectives by identifying, 
analysing, assessing, mitigating, 
monitoring and governing any risk 
or potential threats to their business 
functions. The risks associated 
with the business are successfully 

identified and mitigated on priority, 
based on its severity, likelihood and 
impact. Risk management policies 
are revised regularly to replicate 
deviations in market conditions 
and align the Company’s activities 
to mitigation strategies. Risk are 
owned, managed and formally 
reviewed across V2 Retail using the 
following process:
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Risks Meaning Mitigation Strategies

Economic and 
Market Risk

Major changes in the 
economic environment 
(such as the pandemic) 
may challenge the existing 
business strategy, have 
a material impact on 
financial performance 
and dilute our competitive 
advantage. 

We rely on a multi-format click-
and-mortar model that enables 
us to respond to changes in 
customer demand, manage the 
product mix and pricing policy 
and identify opportunities for 
growth.

Geographic 
concentration risk

Concentration in a 
particular geography could 
hurt business growth in 
case of a geographical 
slowdown

As on March 31, 2022, the 
Company operates 101 stores 
spread across 16 states and more 
than 85 cities with a total retail 
area of ~10.59 lac Sq. Ft.

Shrinkage / 
Inventory Risk

Shrinkage in the retail 
business is defined as the 
loss in inventory through 
a combination of shop 
lifting, pilferage and errors 
in documentation and 
transaction processing that 
go unnoticed

We monitor shrinkage on 
a regular basis and look at 
various factors that could lead 
to shrinkage at stores and 
distribution centres. Store 
Operations and Supply Chain 
teams work together and 
monitor the shrinkage level 
on a month-on-month basis. 
Our shrinkage percentage is 
controlled and our endeavour 
will always be to lower this ratio 
through proper monitoring 
and continuously reviewing 
inventory management 
processes and systems. 

Employee 
retention

Our strategic goals are 
heavily dependent on 
the competencies and 
performance of our people. 
The high churn rate in 
the retail space is a key 
risk since demand for 
experienced personnel 
in modern retail will only 
increase in the near term 
and long term. 

We monitor the labour market 
and provide employee benefits 
in line with market. We have 
also devised an ESOP policy 
to retain and attract people. 
We have a defined system for 
employee on-boarding, training 
and development in place.

Technology Risk Failure to match IT 
capabilities, scalability 
and reliability in relation 
to business requirements 
will disrupt business 
continuity.

We engage the best external 
experts and develop 
partnerships and in-house 
expertise in key IT solutions. 

Finance Risk Inability to grow at 
competitive rates 
could impact business 
sustainability

The Company’s has a debt-
equity ratio of (0.19) which 
provides financial comfort. 
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Human Resources

V2 Retail treats its workforce as a 
precious asset and promotes just and 
fair HR practices, and employee-
friendly policies and processes. V2 
Retail believes that its competitive 
advantage lies within its people. The 
Company relies on its workforce 
to promote a diverse and inclusive 
culture to ensure long-term business 
sustainability. V2 Retail continues to 
provide adequate opportunities for 
professional growth and offers training 
to enhance the skills and capabilities 
of its people, empowering them 
with knowledge to seamlessly adopt 
ongoing technological interventions 
and significantly improve value 
propositions for its customers.

The company has a total employee 
strength of 2422 as on March 31, 2022.

Internal Control System and 
Adequacy

The Company’s internal audit system 
has been continuously monitored 
and updated to ensure that assets are 
safeguarded, established regulations 
are complied with and pending issues 
are addressed promptly. The Audit 
Committee reviews reports presented 
by the internal auditors routinely. The 
Committee makes note of the audit 
observations and takes corrective 
actions, if necessary. It maintains a 
constant dialogue with statutory and 
internal auditors to ensure adequacy of 
internal control systems.

Cautionary Statements

This Management Discussion & 
Analysis report makes forward-
looking statements based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future 
events over which V2 Retail exercises 
no control. V2 Retail cannot guarantee 
their accuracy nor can it warrant that 
the same will be realised. Actual results 
could differ materially from those 
expressed or implied. Macroeconomic 
factors such as demand, supply, 
global economic and geopolitical 
developments, government regulatory 
and tax framework, liquidity in the 
market etc. could impact the operations 
of V2 Retail.
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V2 RETAIL LIMITED
CIN - L74999DL2001PLC147724,

Regd. Office: Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi, Village- Kapashera, Tehsil Vasant Vihar, New Delhi 
South West Delhi – 110 037,

Phone: 011-41771850, E-mail: cs@v2retail.net.in,
Website: www.v2retail.com

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 21st (Twenty-First) Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of the Members of V2 
Retail Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 09:30 AM (IST) through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) for the purpose of which the Registered Office of the 
Company situated at Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi, Village-Kapashera, South West Delhi, New Delhi – 
110037 shall be deemed to be the venue of the AGM and the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be taken 
place thereat, to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt:

a The Audited Standalone Financial Statements 
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2022 together with the Reports of 
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

b The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2022 and the Report of Auditors 
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Uma Agarwal, 
Whole-time Director having DIN-00495945, who 
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 at this AGM and being 
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the company 
and fixation of their remuneration and in this 
regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution 
for appointment of the Statutory Auditors for a 
term of 5 (Five) years i.e. from the conclusion of 
this AGM (21stAGM) until the conclusion of 26th 

(Twenty Sixth) AGM (i.e. for a period of Five Year), 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors, M/s Singhi & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, FRN 302049E), be and 

are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, to 
hold office from the conclusion of this (21st) Twenty-
First Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
the (26th) Twenty-Sixth Annual General Meeting 
of the Company and Board of Directors be and are 
hereby authorised to fix such remuneration and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, if any, as 
recommended by the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors of the Company in consultation with 
the Auditor.”

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to 
above resolution, the Board of Directors and/or the 
Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby authorized to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things which 
may deem necessary in this behalf.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as a Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 
time being in force) and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Akash Agarwal (DIN 03194632) who was appointed 
by the Board as an Additional Director designated as 
Non-Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 3rd 
September, 2022, and who holds office till the date 
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of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company 
who is eligible for appointment and is recommended 
by Board of Directors upon the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the 
office of Director as an  Non-Executive Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as Director, in accordance 
with Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Act and the corresponding Rules 
framed thereunder, whose period of office will be 
liable to determination by retirement of directors by 
rotation.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to 
above resolution, the Board of Directors and/or the 
Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby authorized to take all necessary steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things which 
may deem necessary in this behalf.”

By Order of the Board
For V2 Retail Limited

Date: September 03, 2022 Sudhir Kumar
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer
 M. No.: A25125

Notes :

1. In view of the continuing massive outbreak of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to 
be followed and MCA vide its  Circular No. 02/2022 
dated 05th May, 2022 to be read in conjunction 
with Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 
2021,Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, 
Circular No.14/2020& 17/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 
as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and 
SEBI vide its circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/
CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 in continuation 
of SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/
P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, physical attendance 
of the Members to the AGM venue is not required 
and Annual General Meeting (AGM) can be held 
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend 
and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/
OAVM.

 The Company has engaged the services of Link 
Intime India Private Limited (Intime) to provide 
the necessary electronic  platform for holding the 
AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other 
Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and to provide remote 
e-voting facilities and for security and enabling the 
members to cast their vote in a secure manner.

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING 
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM VIA LINK INTIME 
INSTAMEET ARE AS UNDER:

 Step1: Open the internet browser and launch the 
URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in 

 Thereafter, a Web Page of Link Intime InstaMeet will 
appear and the following steps are to be followed 
thereon:

A. Step 2: Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and 
register with your following details: -

•	 Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit 
Demat Account No. or Folio No

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL 
demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 
ID

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL 
Demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID 
followed by 8 Digit Client ID

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in Physical 
form shall provide Folio Number registered with 
the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account 
Number (PAN)

 (Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if applicable.)

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your 
DP/Company.

 Step 3: Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered 
for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the 
meeting).

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/ MEMBERS 
WHO INTENDS TO SPEAK DURING THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET:

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during 
the meeting must register their request 3 days in 
advance with the company on the specific email id 
i.e.: cs@v2retail.net.in.

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first 
basis depending upon the provision made by the 
Company.

3. Shareholders will receive “Speaking Serial Number” 
once they mark attendance for the meeting.

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the Panellist, 
via active chat-board during the meeting.

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start 
your conversation with panellist by switching on 
video mode and audio of your device.

 Note: Shareholders are requested to speak only 
when moderator of the meeting/ management 
will announce the name and serial number for 
speaking.
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 INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/ MEMBERS 
TO VOTE DURING THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET:

 Once the Electronic Voting is activated by the 
Scrutinizer/ Moderator during the Meeting, 
Shareholders/ Members who have not exercised 
their vote through the Remote E-voting can cast the 
Vote as under:

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link 
for E-Voting “Cast your vote”

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No./ Folio 
No. and OTP (received on the registered 
Mobile number/ registered Email Id) received 
during registration for InstaMEET and click on 
‘Submit’.

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution 
Description” and against the same the option 
“Favour/ Against” for voting.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option 
i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the 
number of shares (which represents no. of 
votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/
Against’.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. 
Favour/Against as desired and you have decided 
to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will 
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, 
click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, 
click on “Back” and accordingly modify your 
vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify or change 
your vote subsequently.

 Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be 
present in the Annual General Meeting through 
InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the 
meeting.

 Shareholders/ Members who have voted through 
Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General 
Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in 
the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote again 
during the meeting.

 SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS RELATED 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR BEST VC EXPERIENCE

 Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join 
the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected 
through broadband for better experience.

 Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet 
with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download 
stream) to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting.

 Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting 
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  
It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or 
LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches.

 In case shareholders/ members have any queries 
regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email 
to instameet@linkintime.co.in or Contact on: - 
Tel: 022-49186175.

2. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc) are required to 
send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its 
Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/
Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to 
attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/
OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote 
e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall 
be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through their 
registered email address to goelsharwan@hotmail.
com with copies marked to the Company at cs@
v2retail.net.in and to its RTA at enotices@linkintime.
co.in.

3. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th 
April, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM. However, the Body Corporate(s) are entitled 
to appoint authorized representatives to attend the 
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and 
cast their votes through e-voting.

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM 
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time 
of the commencement of the Meeting by following 
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility 
of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available for 1000 members on first come first 
served basis. However, this number does not include 
the large Shareholders i.e. Shareholders holding 
2% or more shareholding, Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis.

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
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6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 
8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 
2020 the Company is providing facility of remote 
e-voting to its Members in respect of the business 
to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Link 
Intime India Private Limited (Intime) for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 
using remote e-voting system as well as e-voting 
on the day of the AGM will be provided by Intime.

7. The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on 
the website of the Company in the Investor Relations 
Section under Financials in the Annual Reports tab. 
The complete Annual Report is also available in the 
same section. The Notice can also be accessed from 
the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Ltd and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.
bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively 
and the AGM Notice is also available on the website 
of Link Intime (agency for providing the Remote 
e-Voting facility) i.e. https://www.linkintime.co.in.

8. This AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM 
in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 
14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, MCA Circular No. 
17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, MCA Circular No. 
20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020, MCA Circular No. 
02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 and MCA Circular 
No. 02/2022 dated 05th May, 2022.

9. The recorded transcript of the forthcoming AGM on 
30th September, 2022, shall also be made available 
on the website of the Company www.v2retail.com 
in the Investor Relations Section, as soon as possible 
after the Meeting is over.

10. All documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice and the Explanatory Statement can be 
obtained for inspection by writing to the Company 
at its email ID: cs@v2retail.net.in till the date of 
AGM.

11. i.    Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to immediately intimate any change 
in their residential address to Link Intime India 
Private Limited, Noble Heights, 1st floor, Plot 
No NH-2, C-1 Block, LSC, Near Savitri Market, 
Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058, Registrars and 
Transfer Agent of the Company, so that change 
could be effected in the Register of Members.

ii. Members who are holding shares in demat 
mode are requested to notify any change in 

their residential address, Bank A/c details and/ 
or email address immediately to their respective 
Depository Participants.

iii. To ensure all communications/ monetary 
benefits are received promptly, all shareholders 
holding shares in physical form are requested 
to notify to the Company, his/ her PAN/change 
in their address/bank details / email id/mobile 
number instantly by filling the KYC Form and by 
sending at the Registered Office of the Company 
at Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi, 
Village-Kapashera, South-West Delhi – 110037.

12. The annual accounts of the subsidiary company 
along with the related detailed information are 
available for inspection at the Registered Office of 
the Company and of the subsidiary concerned and 
copies will be made available to Shareholders of V2 
Retail Limited and its subsidiary company upon 
request.

13. Corporate Members are encouraged to attend the 
AGM through their Authorized Representatives. 
They are requested to send by email, a certified 
copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney 
authorizing their representatives to attend and vote 
on their behalf in the Meeting.

14. Special business are being transacted at 21st 

(Twenty-First) Annual General Meeting hence 
explanatory Statement as required under Section 
102 of Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special 
business to be transacted at the meeting is applicable 
and annexed herewith.

15. Queries proposed to be raised at the Annual General 
Meeting may be sent to the Company at its registered 
office at least seven days prior to the date of Annual 
General Meeting to enable the management to 
compile the relevant information to reply the same 
in the meeting.

16. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only 
such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote.

17. All documents referred to in the notice are open 
for inspection by the members and can be availed 
by writing an email at cs@v2retail.net.in to the 
Company.

18. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 
no amount is unclaimed towards dividend to any 
shareholder.

19. Members are requested to intimate immediately the 
change of address or demise of any Member, if any, 
to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents or 
Depository Participant, as the case may be to prevent 
frauds.
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20. Statement giving details of the Director seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment is also annexed 
with this Notice pursuant to the requirement of 
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing Regulations’) and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (“SS-2”).

21. Pursuant to Regulation 46(2) (j) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Company has created an 
exclusive E-mail ID: cs@v2retail.net.in for quick 
Redressal of Members/investors grievances.

22. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company shall remain closed from Saturday, 
September 24, 2022, to Friday, September 30, 2022 
(both days inclusive).

23. Shareholders, who are holding shares in identical 
order of name in more than one folio, are requested 
to write to the Company enclosing their share 
certificates to enable the Company to consolidate 
their holding in one folio. Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to consider converting 
their holdings to dematerialized form to eliminate 
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease 
of portfolio management. Members can contact the 
Company or RTA for assistance in this regard.

24. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Members who hold shares in the physical form can 
nominate a person in respect of all the shares held 
by them singly or jointly. Members who hold shares 
in single name are advised, in their own interest, to 
avail of the nomination facility by filling form SH-
13. Members holding shares in the dematerialized 
form may contact their Depository Participant 
for recording the nomination in respect of their 
holdings.

25. In terms of SEBI notification, the shares of the 
Company are subject to compulsory trading only in 
dematerialized form on the stock exchange hence 
members are requested to convert their physical 
share certificates into electronic form.

26. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the shareholders of the Company may nominate a 
person to whom the shares held by him shall vest in 
the event of his death.

1. Non-Resident Indian Members are requested 
to inform RTA, immediately of:

(a) Change in their residential status on return 
to India for permanent settlement or

(b) Particulars of their bank account 
maintained in India with complete name, 
branch, account type, account number 

and address of the bank with pin code 
number, if not furnished earlier.

27. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 
market. Members holding shares in electronic 
form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN 
to their Depository Participants with whom they 
are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their 
PAN details to the Company / Share Transfer Agent 
(RTA), Link Intime India Private Limited, Noble 
Heights, 1st floor, Plot No NH-2, C-1 Block, LSC, 
Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058, 
Tel : 011 - 4141 0592/93/94, Email : delhi@linkintime.
co.in.

28. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made 
there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports 
and other communications through electronic 
mode to those members who have registered their 
e-mail address either with the Company or with the 
Depository. Members who have not registered their 
e-mail address with the Company can now register 
as per the instructions mentioned below:

 Registration of email ID and Bank Account 
details:

 In case the shareholder’s email ID is already 
registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent “RTA”/Depositories, log in details 
for e-voting are being sent on the registered email 
address.

 In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/
their email address with the Company/its RTA/
Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account 
mandate for receipt of dividend, the following 
instructions to be followed:

(i) Kindly log in to the website of our RTA, Link 
Intime India Private Ltd., www.linkintime.co.in 
under Investor Services > Email/Bank detail 
Registration- fill in the details and upload the 
required documents and submit.

 OR

(ii) In the case of Shares held in Demat mode:

 The shareholder may please contact the Depository 
Participant (“DP”) and register the email address and 
bank account details in the demat account as per the 
process followed and advised by the DP.

29. In terms of MCA circulars, the Notice of AGM along 
with annual report is being sent in electronic mode 
to members whose e-mail IDs are registered with 
the Company or the Depository Participant(s).
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30. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 
8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 5th May, 2020,                  
13th January, 2021 and 05th May, 2022 the Company 
is providing facility for voting by electronic means 
for all its Members to enable them to cast their vote 
electronically and the business may be transacted 
through such e-voting (remote e-voting). A member 
may exercise his/her vote at the General Meeting by 
electronic means and the Company may pass any 
resolution by electronic voting system in accordance 
with the provisions of the aforesaid Rule.

 The Company has engaged the services of Link Intime 
India Private Limited (Intime) to provide remote 
e-voting facilities and for security and enabling the 
members to cast their vote in a secure manner.

 Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders 
post change in the Login mechanism for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode, 
pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020

 The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 
27, 2022 at 09.00 a.m. IST and ends on Thursday, 
September 29, 2022 at 05.00 p.m. IST. During this 
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, September 
23, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The 
e-voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime for 
voting thereafter.

 As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, 
individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode can register directly with the depository or 
will have the option of accessing various ESP portals 
directly from their demat accounts.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode/physical mode is given 
below:

Type of Shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.•	
nsdl.comeither on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home 
page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at •	 https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click   at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following •	
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com  either on a personal computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e.your sixteen-digit demat account number 
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and •	
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.
After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting 
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINK INTIME. Click 
on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. •	
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on 
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “Insta Vote” website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at •	 https://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account •	
number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for 
the respective ESP i.e.LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected 
to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) & login 
through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through •	
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
Physical form/ Non-
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode is given 
below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for 
e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following 
details: - 

A. User ID: Shareholdersholding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat 
account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders 
holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who 
have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall 
use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded 
with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

 Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as 
recorded with your DP/Company. 
*  Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, 

shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 
* Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above
•	 Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 

characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 
one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

•	 Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).
3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 
4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click 

on ‘Submit’. 
Cast your vote electronically:
1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select 

‘View’ icon. 
2. E-voting page will appear. 
3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired 

option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on 
the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, 
else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.
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Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, 
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to 
log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https://
instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves 
as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They 
are also required to upload a scanned certified true 
copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power 
of attorney etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorised representative(s) 
in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 
Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify 
the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

 Shareholders facing any technical issue in login 
may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by 
sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode:

 Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 
22 44 30 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com  or contact at 022- 23058738 
or 22- 23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical 
mode has forgotten the password:

 If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can 
use the “Forgot Password” option available on the 
e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote.
linkintime.co.in

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab 
and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image 
Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 
‘Submit’. 

 In case shareholders is having valid email address, 
Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/
her choice by providing the information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, 
PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four 
digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password 
should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one 
special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at 
least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

 User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical 
Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event 
No + Folio Number registered with the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password:

 Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ 
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned 
depository/ depository participants website.

 It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. 

 or shareholders/ members holding shares in 
physical form, the details can be used only for 
voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

 During the voting period, shareholders/ 
members can login any number of time till they 
have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular 
“Event”.

 The official responsible to address the grievances 
connected with voting by electronic means: Mr. 
Sudhir Kumar, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer, Ph. No.011-41771850, email: cs@v2retail.net.
in.

31. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sharwan 
Kumar Goel, (Kumar Sarwan & Co.) Chartered 
Accountant in Practice (Firm Registration 
No.027892N.) as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the 
voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

32. The Scrutinizer shall within a period of three working 
days from the conclusion of the e-voting period 
unblock the votes in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and prepare the scrutinizer report of the votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman 
and in his absence to the Company Secretary of the 
Company.

33. The result of voting shall be declared by the Chairman 
of the meeting on or after the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. The results declared along 
with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 
Company’s website www.v2retail.com and on the 
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website of the Link Intime immediately after the 
result is declared by the Chairman.

34. The result will also be communicated to stock 
exchange where the shares of the Company are 
listed.

35. In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company 
read with Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Mrs. Uma Agarwal, Whole time Director (00495945), 
retires by rotation at the ensuing Meeting and being 

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board 
of Directors of the Company recommends her re-
appointment.

 Details of Director, who is proposed to be re-
appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, 
as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2, are as 
under:

Name of Director Mrs. Uma Agarwal

Date of Birth 15th November, 1975

Age 46 Years

DIN 00495945

Date of first  Appointment in board 27thJuly, 2001

Expertise in Specific Functional Area Retail Industry

Qualifications Graduate in Art

Terms and Conditions of appointment 
or re-appointment along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid

Appointed as Whole Time Director being eligible to retire by rotation and 
remuneration upto Rs.5,00,000 (Five Lacs) per month

Last Drawn Remuneration Rs. 5,00,000 per month

Directorship in Other Companies as on 
date

Sunita Fashion Private Limited
Unicon Marketing Pvt Ltd
Ricon Commodities Pvt. Ltd.
Rishikesh Commosales Private Limited
Topline Vintrade Private Limited
V2 Conglomerate Limited
Vishal Waterworld Private Limited

No. of Board Meeting attended during 
the year 2021-2022

04 (Four)

Membership/Chairmanship of Other 
Public Companies Committees

-

Relationship with other Directors Mrs. Uma Agarwal is the wife of Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, Chairman & 
Managing Director & mother of Mr. Akash Agarwal, Director of the Company.

Shareholding in the Company 3,44,000 equity shares

 Brief Resume Mrs. Uma Agarwal an Arts graduate holds a good 17 years of hands-
on experience in Retail Industry. She is on Board of the Company since 
inception. Mrs. Uma Agarwal has played a significant role in scaling of the 
Company to new heights.

For other details such as number of meetings of the 
board attended during the year and remuneration drawn 
in respect of above director, please refer to the corporate 
governance report which is a part of this Annual Report.

Except Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, Mrs. Uma Agarwal, 
Mr. Akash Agarwal, no other Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned 
or interested, financial or otherwise in the proposed 
resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3: 

Members of the Company at the Sixteenth Annual 
General Meeting held on September 29th, 2017 approved 

the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, Delhi (Firm Registration No. 
001076N/N500013) (“Retiring Auditors”) as the Auditors 
of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 
consecutive years from the conclusion of said Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of the Twenty-First 
Annual General Meeting. M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. 
LLP will complete their present term on conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”), at its 
meeting held on September 03, 2022 has, considering the 
experience and expertise and on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, proposed to the Members 
of the Company appointment of M/s. Singhi & Co., 
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Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302049E), 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of the 
Retiring Auditors, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of the Twenty-Sixth Annual General 
Meeting at such remuneration as shall be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company.

M/s Singhi & Co. Chartered Accountants, has been 
in the profession for over 80 Years and is one of the 
well reputed audit firm in the country. They provide 
varied services which include assurance, risk advisory, 
taxation, corporate finance etc. They serve multiple listed 
companies and have tremendous experience in the field 
of audit. M/s Singhi & Co. has 28 partners with 8 offices 
across the country. They are Indian members of Moore 
Global network.

M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants have consented 
to their appointment as Auditors and have confirmed 
that if appointed, their appointment will be in accordance 
with Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants have 
also provided confirmation that they have subjected 
themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid 
certificate issued by the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICAI.

The proposed remuneration to be paid to Auditors for 
the financial year 2022-23 is approx Rs 25 Lakhs. The 
said remuneration excludes applicable taxes and out of 
pocket expenses.

The remuneration for the subsequent year(s) of their term 
shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
There is no material change in the remuneration proposed 
to be paid to Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 and 
the remuneration paid to the Retiring Auditors for the 
financial year 2021-22.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at 
Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Item No. 4:

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the 
Company at its meeting on 3rd September, 2022 has 
approved the appointment of Mr. Akash Agarwal (DIN 
03194632) - as an Additional Director in the category 
of Non-Executive Director pursuant to Section 161(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of the provisions 
of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Akash 

Agarwal will hold office only upto the date of this Annual 
General Meeting. The Appointment of Mr. Akash Agarwal 
as an Non-Executive Director of the Company is subject 
to the approval of shareholders of the Company, in terms 
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or any amendment.

The Company has received the following disclosures / 
declarations from Mr. Akash Agarwal (DIN 03194632):

(i) Consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2 
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment 
& Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014;

(ii) Intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of 
the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that he is not 
disqualified in accordance with sub-section (2) of 
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Akash Agarwal (DIN 
03194632) fulfils the conditions for his appointment as a 
Director as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Regulations.

A copy of the draft letter of appointment setting out 
the terms and conditions of appointment of the above 
Director shall be open for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office of the Company during normal 
business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday 
and also posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.
v2retail.com.

The Board considers that his association would be of 
immense benefit to the Company, and it is desirable to 
avail services of Mr. Akash Agarwal (DIN 03194632) as 
Director.  Accordingly, the Board seeks approval of the 
members for the appointment of Mr. Akash Agarwal (DIN 
03194632) as Director (Non-Executive) of the Company, 
pursuant to section 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act, and Rules made there under.

Except Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, Mrs. Uma Agarwal, 
Mr. Akash Agarwal, no other Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are 
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise in 
the proposed resolutions set out at Item No. 4 of the 
Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item 
no. 4 for your approval. 

The personal details & experience of directors pursuant 
to regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India are as stated below:
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Name of Director Mr. Akash Agarwal

Date of Birth 24thApril, 1992

Age 30 Years

DIN 03194632

Date of first Appointment in board 29th September, 2017

Expertise in Specific Functional Area He has vast experience in E-Commerce, Procurement and Finance

Qualifications Graduate in Business Administration from Lancaster University 
(UK)

Terms and Conditions of appointment 
or re-appointment along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid

Appointed as Non-Executive Director being eligible to retire by 
rotation. Mr. Akash Agarwal shall not be eligible for any remuneration 
in the capacity of Non-Executive Director

Last Drawn Remuneration Rs. 5,00,000 Per Month as Whole-time Director & CFO upto 3rd 
September, 2022

Directorship in Other Companies as on 
date

V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited
Rishikesh Commosales Private Limited
Topline Vintrade Private Limited
V2 Conglomerate Limited

No. of Board Meeting attended during the 
year 2021-22

04 (Four)

Membership/Chairmanship of Other 
Public Companies Committees

-

Relationship with other Directors Mr. Akash Agarwal is the son of Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing Director & Mrs. Uma Agarwal, Whole-
time Director of the Company

Shareholding in the Company 1,33,480 equity shares

Brief Resume Mr. Akash Agarwal is Business Administration graduate, holds good 
experience in Retail Industry especially in E-Commerce, Procurement 
and Finance. He was on the Board of the Company since September, 
2017 upto 3rd September, 2022 as Whole-time Director. Mr. Akash 
Agarwal has played a significant role in scaling of the Company to 
new heights.

  By Order of the Board
  For V2 Retail Limited

Sudhir Kumar
 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

M. No. A25125

Date: September 03, 2022 
Place: New Delhi
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Financial Results

The operating results of the Company for the year under review are as follows:
(B in lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

For the 
Year ended 
31.03.2022

For the Year 
ended 31.03.2021

For the 
Year ended 
31.03.2022

For the 
Year ended 
31.03.2021

Revenue from operation 62,922.49 53,864.74 62,922.49 53,864.74

Other Income 1,558.40 2,215.84 1,588.90 2,296.54

Total Income 64,480.89 56,080.58 64,511.39 56,161.28

Profit before Interest, Depreciation 
& Taxation

7,630.63 7,093.01 8,054.40 7,150.32

    Interest & Finance Costs 3,607.09 3,023.51 3,657.18 3,128.10

    Depreciation and amortisation 5,659.36 5,378.51 5,883.08 5,551.32

Profit/(Loss) from Operations 
before Exceptional Items and Tax

(1,635.82) (1,309.01) (1,485.86) (1,529.10)

Exceptional Items - - - -

Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (1,635.82) (1,309.01) (1,485.86) (1,529.10)

Less : Provision for Taxation

- Current Tax - - - -

- Deferred Tax (345.62) (205.18) (318.14) (244.83)

Profit/(Loss) After Taxation (1) (1,290.20) (1,103.83) (1,167.72) (1,284.27)

Other Comprehensive Income/ 
(Loss) (2)

(39.43) (0.94) (39.52) (1.18)

Total Comprehensive Income/ 
(Loss) (1+2)

(1,329.63) (1,104.77) (1,207.24) (1,285.45)
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 19th 
Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company, together with the audited financial statements 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

1. State of company Affairs 

The Financial Year 2019-20 was yet another challenging 
year marked with significantly increased competitive 
intensity and weakened consumer sentiment followed 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

B

B

B

B

B

B

by the disruptions caused due to the Covid 19 pandemic 
in Q4 FY 19-20. However, your Company continued to 
perform consistently well in these challenging times and 
deliver better results. During the year your Company 
reported total revenue of B 703.48 Crores, and PAT of B 
10.15 Crores  on a standalone basis.

In order to strengthen its market share, the company have 
added 4 new stores and also taken steps to improve the 
supply chain network. Besides, efficiency improvement 
and cost optimisation have been followed vigorously 
across all the functions of the organisation.

Financial Results

The operating results of the Company for the year under review are as follows:
(�B in lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone Consolidated

For the Year ended 
31.03.2020

For the Year ended 
31.03.2019

For the Year ended 
31.03.2020

Revenue from operation 70,122.12 74,841.94 70,122.62

Other Income 226.59 989.08 247.52

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & 
Taxation

7,830.29 5,675.23 7,735.42

Finance Costs 2,992.53 65.99 3,025.12

Depreciation and amortisation 
expenses

5,045.09 1,442.32 5,097.71

Profit/ (Loss)before Tax and Exceptional 
Items

(207.33) 4,166.92 (387.41)

Exceptional Items (1,254.51) 2,661.89 (1,254.51)

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 1,047.18 1,505.03 867.10

Less : Provision for Taxation

Current Tax - 76.05 -

Deferred Tax 32.65 (620.31) (11.07)

Profit / (Loss) for the year (1) 1,014.53 2,049.29 878.17

Total other Comprehensive income (2) (51.39) (6.42) (51.39)

Total (1+2) 963.14 2,042.87 826.78

Dear Members,

It gives us great pleasure to share with you the 
performance of your company along with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2022.

1. State of Company Affairs 

V2 Retail Limited is part of the Retail Industry which 
continues to be one of the biggest and long-term 
sustainable business opportunities that our country 
offers. Indian Retail Industry has emerged as one of 
the most dynamic and fast-paced industries due to the 
opportunities it creates.

The operating environment continued to be 
challenging for the second consecutive year. COVID-

19 pandemic continued to effect the operations of 
your Company with the impact being maximum in the 
first quarter. The second half of the year witnessed a 
moderated recovery, but Omicron partially dampened 
such recovery in Q4.

Despite the challenging environment, your Company 
was able to post decent performance. During the year 
your Company reported total revenue of Rs. 629.22 
Crores, and PAT/(Loss) of Rs.(12.90) Crores on standalone 
basis.

In order to strengthen its market share, the company 
have added 10 new stores and closed 4 stores during the 
year and also taken steps to improve the supply chain 
network. Besides, efficiency improvement and cost 
optimisation have been followed vigorously across all 
the functions of the organisation.
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2. Operations Review

The Company continued with its strategy to establish 
“V2” brand of Retail stores across north, east, south and 
central part of India during the year. It is one of the fastest 
growing retail Company in India and enjoys strong brand 
equity from customers across segments.

During the year, the company achieved the milestone 
of 100 “V2”Retail Stores, the company having 101 (One 
Hundred and One) “V2”retail stores as on 31st March 2022, 
spread across 16 state and 85 cities with total retail area 
of around 10.59 lacs sq. ft. The Company added 10 (Ten) 
and closed 4 (Four) stores during the year.

During the year under review, the Company continued 
to focus on enhancing the capability of the organization 
and towards the achievement of this goal, the Company 
has been taking a number of initiatives.

3. Dividend

Considering the industry outlook & financial position of 
the Company, your directors does not propose to declare 
any dividend for the financial year ended on 31st March 
2022.

4. Transfer to Reserve

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to 
the general reserve.

5. Material changes and commitments

No material changes and commitments have occurred 
from the date of close of the financial year till the date of 
this Report, which might affect the financial position of 
the Company.

6. Share Capital

The paid - up share capital of the Company is Rs.3,438.93 
Lakhs as on March 31, 2022.

During the year under review, pursuant to the exercise of 
options under the V2R-Employee Stock Option Scheme 
2016, your Company issued and allotted 2,84,315 equity 
shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each and as a result, 
the paid-up share capital of the Company has increased 
from Rs. 34,10,50,260 (consisting of 3,41,05,026 equity 
share of Rs. 10 per share) to Rs. 34,38,93,410 (consisting 
of 3,43,89,341 equity share of Rs. 10 per share).

7. Transfer to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Company was not required 
to transfer any amount during the year 2021-22 to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

8. Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company has implemented a V2R-Employee Stock 
Option Scheme 2016 (‘ESOP 2016’), which was approved 
by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 
September 30, 2016. Your Directors have approved grant 
of options to the eligible employees of the Company 
under the scheme ‘V2R-Employee Stock Option Scheme 
2016’ (‘ESOP 2016’).

The information required to be disclosed under SEBI 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as on 
March 31, 2022, are as follows and respective disclosures 
are displayed on the website of the company i.e. www.
v2retail.com.

Particulars Details

Date of Shareholders Approval September 30, 2016

Number of Options 12,44,380 (Twelve lakhs forty-four thousand three 
hundred eighty) options to be convertible into equal 
number of fully paid-up Equity Shares of the Company 
of face value of Rs. 10 each.

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the 
year

2,84,684

Number of options granted during the year 2,25,000

Number of options forfeited / lapsed 369

Number of options vested during the year 2,84,315

Number of options exercised during the year 2,84,315

Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 2,84,315

Money realized by exercise of options Rs. 28,43,150/-
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Particulars Details

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year 2,25,000

Number of options exercisable at the end of the year 2,25,000

Exercise Pricing Formula Exercise price is Face Value of the Share of the company 
as on date on which the options are exercised by 
employee. 

Person-wise details of options granted, as on March 31, 2022:

Particulars Details

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Manshu Tandon
2,00,000 ESOP Options
Date of Grant – 28th June 2021

Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one 
year of option amounting to five percent or more of options 
granted during that year

Mr. Pratik Adukia
25,000 ESOP Options
Date of Grant – 28th June 2021

Identified employees who were granted options, during any 
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued 
capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 
Company at the time of grant

Nil

9. Bonus Issue

Company has not allotted/transferred or issued any 
bonus shares during the year. 

10. Change in the nature of the Business, 
if any

There was no change in the nature of business of the 
Company during the financial year ended March 31, 
2022. However, Company is planning to broaden its 
operations by adding new retail stores for strengthening 
existence and to reach amongst the larger consumer 
base to enhance its turnover and operating revenue.

11. Internal Control systems and their 
adequacy

Your Company has in place, an adequate system of internal 
controls commensurate with its size, requirements and the 
nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping 
in view the nature of activities carried out at each location 
and various business operations.

Your Company’s in-house internal audit department 

carries out internal audits at all stores locations, offices 

and warehouse / distribution centre across all locations 

of the country. Their objective is to assess the existence, 

adequacy and operation of financial and operating 

controls set up by the Company and to ensure compliance 

with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations 

& Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 

Listing Regulations, 2015) and corporate policies. 

Board of Directors of the company has appointed 
M/s Mishra Jha & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
(FRN026255N) as the Internal Auditor of the Company to 
conduct the Internal Audit Functions for Financial Year 
2021-22.

A summary of all significant findings by the audit 
department along with the follow-up actions undertaken, 
thereafter is placed before the Audit Committee for review. 
The Audit Committee reviews the comprehensiveness 
and effectiveness of the report and provides valuable 
suggestions and keeps the Board of Directors informed 
about its major observations, from time to time.

12. Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate financial controls 
commensurate with its size, scale and complexity of 
its operations. The Company has in place policies and 
procedures required to properly and efficiently conduct 
its business, safeguard its assets, detect frauds and errors, 
maintain accuracy and completeness of accounting 
records and prepare financial records in a timely and 
reliable manner.

13. Segment Reporting

The Board wishes to inform you that Segment Reporting 
is not applicable to the Company.

14. Cash Flow Analysis

The Cash Flow Statement for the year, under reference in 
terms of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
is annexed with the Annual Accounts of the Company.
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15. Subsidiary Companies, Joint Ventures 
and Associate Companies

Your Company has a wholly owned subsidiary Company 
named as M/s V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited 
which was incorporated on 25.10.2019. Except this, your 
Company had no subsidiary and joint venture during the 
financial year 2021-22. Further, there are no associate 
companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

16. Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the period 
ended 31st March 2022, includes the Profit and Loss 
Account for the subsidiary for the complete financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022. The Board of Directors of 
the Company has, at its Meeting held on May 30, 2022, 
given consent for not attaching the Balance Sheets of the 
subsidiaries concerned. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
including its subsidiaries duly audited by the statutory 
auditors are presented in the Annual Report. The 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in 
strict compliance with applicable Accounting Standards 
and where applicable, the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India. A report on performance and financial position of 
the subsidiary companies included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statement is presented in a separate section in 
this Annual Report. Please refer (form No. AOC-1) annexed 
to the financial statements in the Annual Report.

17. Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

18. Secretarial Standards of ICSI

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has mandated SS-1 
and SS-2 with respect to board meetings and general 
meetings respectively. The Company is in compliance 
with the same.

19. Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Statutory audit

Your Company’s Auditors, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Delhi (Firm Registration 
No. 001076N/N500013), were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 16th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 
29th September 2017, for a period of Five Years till the 

conclusion of the 21st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company subject to ratification by members every year. 

However, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its 
Notification dated May 7, 2018, has dispensed with the 
requirement of ratification of Auditor’s appointment 
by the shareholders, every year. Hence, the resolution 
relating to ratification of Auditor’s appointment is not 
included in the Notice of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

The Auditor’s have put certain qualifications in their 
report to which the management has put forward the 
following below mentioned replies;

Qualification and response to Auditor’s Report:

(i) As stated in Note 4 to the accompanying standalone 
financial results, the Company’s other equity as at 31 
March	2022	includes	an	amount	of	₹	365.36	lakhs	in	
the nature of capital reserve arising out of business 
restructuring carried out in earlier years, for which 
the Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary reconciliation and information. In 
the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, 
we are unable to comment upon the appropriateness 
and classification of the aforesaid balance, and the 
consequential impact, if any, on the financial results. 
Our opinion on the standalone financial results for 
the previous year ended 31 March 2021 was also 
modified in respect of this matter.

 Management Response: The Company restructured 
its business in the financial year 2010-11 resulting 
in creation of capital reserve amounting to Rs. 
60,523.24 lakh. The aforementioned reserve has 
been reconciled except for Rs. 365.36 lakh which the 
Company is in the process of reconciling. However, 
the management believes that there is no impact 
of the same on standalone statement of profit and 
loss.

(ii) As stated in Note 5 to the accompanying standalone 
financial results, the Company’s contingent liabilities 
as at 31 March 2022 include certain contingent 
liabilities aggregating to Rs. 747.26 lakhs pertaining to 
litigations pending with various authorities, for which 
the Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary evidence in relation to probability 
of outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits. In the absence of sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence, we are unable to comment upon the 
appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid 
amounts as provision or contingent liabilities as 
at 31 March 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 37, 
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets” and the consequential impact, if any, on 
the accompanying statements. Our opinion on 
the standalone financial results for the year ended 
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31 March 2021 was also qualified in respect of this 
matter.

 Management Response: Out of contingent liabilities 
existing as at 31 March 2022, certain liabilities 
aggregating to Rs. 747.26 lakh are under appeal 
with different authorities at different levels. Whilst 
the impact of contingent liabilities on these results 
can only be ascertained on the settlement of such 
cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed 
based on available information/documents that 
based on the merits of such cases, the Company 
has reasonably good chances on succeeding and 
accordingly, no provision has been recognised in 
these standalone financial results.

(iii) As described in Note 10 to the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, the Company has 
performed physical verification of property, plant 
and equipment during the year ended 31 March 
2022 in accordance with the phased program of 
conducting such verification over a period of 3 
years. However, the Company is in process of 
performing related reconciliation of such physical 
verification with the underlying fixed asset register 
maintained by the Company in respect of property, 
plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of 
Rs 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs 9,162.77 lakhs 
as at 31 March 2022. Pending completion of the 
said reconciliation, we are unable to comment on 
any adjustment that may be required to the carrying 
value of such Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 
March 2022.

 Management Response: The Company has 
performed physical verification of property, plant 
and equipment during the year ended 31 March 
2022 in accordance with the phased program of 
conducting such verification over a period of 3 
years. However, the Company is in process of 
performing related reconciliation of such physical 
verification with the underlying fixed asset register 
maintained by the Company in respect of property, 
plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of 
Rs. 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs. 9,162.77 lakhs 
as at 31 March 2022. However, the management 
does not impact resultant adjustments to be material 
to the financial statements.

Secretarial audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act 2013, and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company has appointed M/s Sunpreet & 
Co., Company Secretaries, New Delhi, as its secretarial 
auditor to undertake the secretarial audit for FY 
2021-22. The secretarial audit report certified by the 
secretarial auditors, in the specified form MR-3 is 
annexed herewith and forms part of this report and 

enclosed as Annexure I. The secretarial audit report 
does not contain any qualifications, reservations or 
adverse remarks.

20. Frauds reported by auditor under 
section 143 (12) other than those 
which are reportable to the Central 
Government

There are no such frauds reported by auditor, which 
are committed against the Company by officers or 
employees of the Company.

21. Conservation energy, technology and 
foreign exchange outgo

The particulars of conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts of Companies) Rules, 2014, is annexed 
herewith and forms part of this Report and enclosed as 
Annexure II.

22. Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the requirement of attaching 
extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 with the Board’s 
Report is done away with. The Annual Return as referred 
in Section 134(3)(a) of the Act for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022,is available on the websites of the 
Company www.v2retail.com.

23. Corporate social responsibility

Corporate social responsibility forms an integral part of 
your Company’s business activities. Your Company is a 
responsible corporate citizen, supporting activities which 
benefit the society as a whole. In compliance with Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Corporate social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the 
Company has adopted a CSR policy which is available at 
www.v2retail.com.

The annual report on CSR activities pursuant to Rule 8 
of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure – III to this report.

24. Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel

In accordance with provisions of Section 152 of the Act 
read with Rules made there under, Mrs. Uma Agarwal 
(DIN 00495945), Whole-time Director is liable to retire by 
rotation at the 21st Annual General Meeting “AGM” and 
being eligible, offers herself for reappointment.
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All the Independent Directors have submitted their 
declaration to the Board confirming that they  meet the 
criteria of independence as stipulated in Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read  with Regulation 16 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified 
for being appointed as Director, as specified in Section 
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014.

A brief resume of the Director proposed to be reappointed, 
is provided in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting 
forming part of the Annual report.

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the Company as 
per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
as follows:

1. Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal: Chairman & Managing 
Director

2. Mrs. Uma Agarwal: Whole-time Director

3. Mr. Akash Agarwal: Whole-time Director & CFO

4. Mr. Manshu Tandon: Chief Executive Officer

5. Mr. Sudhir Kumar: Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer

25. Board induction, training and 
familiarization programme for 
Independent Directors

Prior to the appointment of an Independent Director, 
the Company sends a formal invitation along with 
a detailed note on the profile of the Company, the 
Board structure and other relevant information. At the 
time of appointment of the Director, a formal letter of 
appointment which inter-alia  explains the role, functions, 
and responsibilities expected of him/her as a Director of 
the Company is given. The Director is also explained 
in detail about the various compliances required from 
him/ her as a Director under the various provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, 
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, 
the Code of Conduct of the Company and other relevant 
regulations.

A Director, upon appointment, is formally inducted to the 
Board. In order to familiarise the Independent Directors 
about the various business drivers, they are updated 
through presentations at Board Meetings about the 
performance and Financials of the Company. They are 
also provided presentations/booklets about the business 
and operations of the Company.

The Directors are also updated on the changes in relevant 
corporate laws relating to their roles and responsibilities 

as Directors. The details of the Board familiarization 
programme for the Independent Directors can be 
accessed at www.v2retail.com.

26. Performance evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, 
Regulation 17(10) of and the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
the Guidance note on Board evaluation issued by SEBI 
vide its circular dated January 5, 2017, the Company has 
framed a policy for evaluating the annual performance 
of its Directors, Chairman, the Board as a whole, and 
the various Board Committees. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid 
down parameters for performance evaluation in the 
policy, they include:

•	 Attendance

•	 Preparedness	for	the	meeting

•	 Staying	updated	on	developments

•	 Active	participation	in	meetings

•	 Constructive	contributions/positive	attributes

•	 Engaging	with	and	challenging	management	team	
without being confrontational or obstructive

•	 Protection	of	stakeholder	interests

•	 Contribution	to	strategic	planning

•	 Carrying	 out	 responsibilities	 as	 per	 the	 code	 of	
conduct

The Board also evaluated the performance of each of 
the Directors, the Chairman, the Board as whole and 
all committees of the Board. The process of evaluation 
is carried out in accordance with the Board Evaluation 
Policy of the Company and as per criteria suggested by 
SEBI.

27. Number of meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors held four meetings during the 
year on June 28, 2021, August 13, 2021, November  
11, 2021, and February 14, 2022. The maximum time 
gap between any two meetings was less than 120 days 
as stipulated under SEBI’s Listing Requirements, 2015. 
The details of Board Meetings held and attendance 
of Directors are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this report.

28. Separate meeting of Independent 
Directors

Details of the separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors 
therein are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this report.



V2 Retail Limited40 

29. Committees of the Board

The Company has constituted/reconstituted various 
Board level committees in accordance with the 
requirements of Companies Act 2013. The Board has the 
following committees as under:

I. Audit Committee

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

III. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

V. Risk Management Committee

VI. ESOP Committee

Details of all the above Committees along with 
composition and meetings held during the year 
under review are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this report.

30. Whistle-blower policy

The Company has established an effective whistle blower 
policy (vigil mechanism) and procedures for its Directors 
and employees; details of which are provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance which forms part of this 
report. The policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed 
on the Company’s website at: www.v2retail.com.

31. Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of the Company aims to attract, 
retain and motivate qualified people at the executive and 
at the board levels. The remuneration policy seeks to 
employ people who not only fulfil the eligibility criteria 
but also have the attributes needed to fit into the corporate 
culture of the Company. The remuneration policy also 
seeks to provide well-balanced and performance related 
compensation packages, taking into account shareholder 
interests, industry standards and relevant regulations.

The remuneration policy ensures that the remuneration 
to the directors, key managerial personnel and the senior 
management involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and 
its goals. The remuneration policy is consistent with the 
‘pay-for-performance’ principle. The Company’s policy 
on remuneration and appointment of Board members 
as mentioned in the Remuneration Policy has been 
disclosed at the company’s website www.v2retail.com 
and annexed with the Directors’ Report which forms part 
of the Annual Report as Annexure IV.

32. Related party transactions

All related party transactions entered into by the Company 
during the financial year were at arm’s length. During 
the year the Audit Committee had granted an omnibus 

approval for transactions which were repetitive in nature 
for one financial year and all such omnibus approvals 
were reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly 
basis. Material contracts or arrangements with related 
parties were entered into during the year under review. 
All related party transactions were placed in the meetings 
of Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for the 
necessary review and approval. Your Company’s policy 
on related party transactions, as approved by the Board, 
can be accessed at: www.v2retail.com. Accordingly, 
the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required 
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in 
Form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure V to this report.

33. Particulars of loans, guarantees and 
investments

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the 
Company has not made any investment. During the 
year, the Company has also not granted loans, guarantee 
and or provided any security.

34. Particulars of employees and 
managerial remuneration

The statement of disclosure of Remuneration under 
Section 197(12) of the Act read with the Rule 5(1) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’) is appended 
as Annexure VI to this Report. 

The information as per the provisions of Section 197(12) 
of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Rules is 
provided in a separate annexure forming part of this 
Report. However, the Annual Report is being sent to the 
Members of the Company excluding the said annexure. 
In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure 
is open for inspection at the Registered Office as well 
as Corporate Office of your Company. Any Member 
interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may 
write to the Company Secretary of the Company.

35. Management discussion and analysis 
and Corporate Governance Report 

As per Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations 2015, Management Discussion 
Analysis, Corporate Governance Practices followed 
by your Company, together with a certificate from the 
Company Secretary in Practice confirming compliance 
of conditions of Corporate Governance are an integral 
part of this report.

36. Risk Management system

The Company has developed and implemented a risk 
management policy which is periodically reviewed 
by the management. In accordance with Regulation 
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21 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the enterprise risk 
management policy of the Company, which has been 
duly approved by the Board, is reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and the Board on a periodic basis. The risk 
management process encompasses practices relating to 
identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation of 
various risks to key business objectives. Besides exploiting 
the business opportunities, the risk management process 
seeks to minimise adverse impacts of risk to key business 
objectives.

The Board of Directors has approved the Constitution 
of Risk Management Committee at its meeting held on 
June 28, 2021. The constitution of the Risk Management 
Committee is as follows:

S. No. Name Designation

1 Mr. Akash Agarwal Chairman

2 Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Member

3 Mr. Manshu Tandon Member

37. Prevention of sexual harassment at 
workplace

Your Company is committed to provide a work 
environment which ensures that every woman employee 
is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is 
zero-tolerance towards sexual harassment and any act 
of sexual harassment invites serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual 
harassment for its employees. The policy allows every 
employee to freely report any such act and prompt 
action will be taken thereon. The policy lays down severe 
punishment for any such act. Further, your directors state 
that during the year under review, there were no cases of 
sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant 
to the sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

38. Depository Systems

Company’s shares are compulsorily tradable in electronic 
form. As on March 31, 2022, 2,42,98,982 (70.66%) Equity 
Shares stand with the NSDL Account and 1,00,20,269 
(29.14%) Equity Shares stand with the CDSL, and 70,090 
(0.20%) Equity Shares stands in physical form.

The Company has entered into agreements with both 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 
whereby shareholders holding Shares in physical mode 
are requested to avail of the dematerialization facility 
with either of the depositories. 

Your Company has appointed M/s Link Intime India 
Private Limited, a Category-I SEBI registered R&T Agent 
as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

39. Listing of Shares

The Company’s shares are listed and actively traded on 
the below mentioned Stock Exchanges: -

I.  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
 “Exchange Plaza” C-1, Block G,
 Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
 Mumbai – 400051

II.  BSE Limited (BSE)
 PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers,
 25th Floor, Dalal Street,
 Mumbai – 400001

40. Details of significant and material 
orders passed by regulators/courts/
tribunals  

During the year under review there was no instance 
of any material order passed by any regulators/courts/
tribunals impacting the going concern status of the 
Company.

41. Dividend Distribution Policy
The Company has formulated a dividend distribution 
policy which is enclosed as Annexure VII to this report 
and the same is also displayed on the website of the 
company i.e. www.v2retail.com.

42. Industrial Relations
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and 
harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The 
enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of Employees have 
enabled the Company to remain at the leadership 
position in the industry. It has taken various steps to 
improve productivity across organization.

The Board also takes this opportunity to express its deep 
gratitude for the continued co-operation and support 
received from its valued shareholders.

43. General
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items as there were 
no transactions on these items during the year under 
review: -

a) Issue of the equity shares with differential rights as 
to dividend, voting or otherwise.

b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
Directors or employees except allotment of shares 
to respective employees pursuant to ESOP Scheme 
of the Company.

c) Purchase of or subscription for shares in the 
Company by the employees of the Company except 
ESOP.
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d) The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary but 
the same is not a material subsidiary, so no policy 
on material subsidiary is required to be adopted.

e) Managing Director and Whole Time Directors of the 
Company does not receive any remuneration or 
commission from the Subsidiary Company of the 
Company and there is no holding Company of your 
Company.

44. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, the 
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability, in relation to the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, confirm 
that:

a. in the preparation of the accounts for financial year 
ended March 31, 2022, the applicable accounting 
standards had been followed and there are no 
material departures;

b. they have selected such accounting policies and 
applied consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profits of 
the Company for that year; 

c. they have taken proper and sufficient care to the best 
of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the annual accounts of the Company have been 
prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis; 

e. they have laid down Internal Financial Controls 
to be followed by the Company and such Internal 
Financial Controls are adequate and operating 
effectively; 

f. they have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

45. Disclosure with respect to DMAT 
suspense account /unclaimed 
suspense account

No DMAT suspense account /unclaimed suspense 
account reported by RTA, NSDL and CDSL to the 
company.

46. Disclosure of details of any application 
filed for corporate insolvency 
resolution process, by a financial 
or operational creditor or by the 
company itself under the IBC before 
the NCLT

During the year under review, no application was filed 
for corporate insolvency resolution process against the 
Company.

47. Acknowledgements
Your Directors would like to acknowledge and place 
on record their sincere appreciation of all stakeholders 
– shareholders, bankers, dealers, vendors and other 
business partners for the excellent support received 
from them during the year under review. Your Directors 
recognise and appreciate the efforts and hard work of 
all the employees of the Company and their continued 
contribution to its progress.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ram Chandra Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 00491885

Place: New Delhi
Date: August 10, 2022



Annual Report 2021-22 43 

Corporate
Overview

Notice Financial Statements
and Notes

Statutory
Section

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
V2 RETAIL LIMITED  

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by V2 
RETAIL LIMITED (“hereinafter called as the Company/ 
Company”). The Company is a listed Company, having 
CIN: L74999DL2001PLC147724. The Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in 
our opinion, the company has, during the financial year 
from 01st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 (“Audit Period”), 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms, and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 
2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made there under along with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent as applicable as 
amended;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under as 
amended;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed there under as amended;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 

a. SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended;

b. SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 and Rules there under as amended;

ANNEXURE-I

c. SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2009 as 
amended;(Not Applicable)

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 notified on 02nd September, 
2015 as amended

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014 as amended

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; - (Not Applicable)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client as amended;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
(Not Applicable)

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 
Applicable)

j. The Employees’ Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 as 
amended;

k. The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 as 
amended.

 Other laws applicable to the Company has been 
comply by the Company as per information provided 
by the company.

 We have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes 
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the 
secretarial records. The verification was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 



V2 Retail Limited44 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and 
appropriateness of the financial statements of the 
Company.

d) Wherever required, we have obtained the 
Management representation about the Compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate 
and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, 
standards is the responsibility of the management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We have checked the compliance management system 
of the Company, to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the adequacy of systems in place to ensure compliance 
of specifically applicable laws and this verification was 
done on test basis. We believe that the Audit evidence 
which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the 
Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. 

Adequate notice is given to all its directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda are sent in advance of the meetings and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at Board Meeting and Committee Meeting are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of 
the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committee of 
the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that during the audit period, there 
were no instances of:

(i) Public/Rights/Preferential issue of debentures/sweat 
equity, etc.

(ii) Redemption/Buy back of securities. 

(iii) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction.

(iv)  Foreign technical collaborations.

For Sunpreet & Co.
Formerly known as Sunpreet 

Singh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06.08.2022

(Sunpreet Singh)
M. No. F11075

C.P. No. 16084
 UDIN:F011075D000755357

Firm Unique Code 
S2016DE418400
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Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Foreign Exchange Outgo

Travelling Nil Nil

Consultancy Nil Nil

Others (license fee) Nil Nil

Imports

Raw Materials Nil Nil

Finished Goods Nil Nil

Capital Goods Nil Nil

Others Nil Nil

Foreign Exchange Earnings

Earnings in foreign exchange Nil Nil

(A) Conservation of energy-
(i)  Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

 The Board considers the conservation of energy 
as one of the most vital point and has taken steps 
for formulation of policy for energy consumption. 
During the year under review, further efforts were 
made to ensure optimum utilization of electricity.

(ii)  Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy: Nil

(iii)  Capital invested on energy conservation 
equipment’s: Nil

(B) Technology absorption-
(i)  Efforts made towards technology absorption: The 

Company is implementing the updated software’s 
and other technology in the operations.

(ii)  Benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: Nil

ANNEXURE-II
STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER RULE 8(3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year): Nil

(a)  Details of technology imported - NA

(b)  Year of import - NA

(c)  Whether the technology been fully absorbed - 
NA

(d)  If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption 
has not taken place and the reasons thereof - 
NA

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development 
– Nil

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
outgo

The Company is not indulged into export of goods. No 
activities relating to exports have been undertaken by the 
Company during the financial year 2021-22.

(B)



V2 Retail Limited46 

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year. 

(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 

135(5)

Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the 
Fund

Amount. Date of 
transfer

Not Applicable

1.   Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has 
formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy), which has been 
approved by the Board and the policy is available on 
Companies website under the link: www.v2retail.com

A brief outline of the policy for undertaking the CSR 
activities of the company includes the following:

•	 Promoting	 Healthcare,	 water	 and	 sanitation	
programmes;

•	 Promoting	 education,	 enhancing	 vocational	 skills	
and livelihood enhancement projects;

•	 Rural	development,	social	upliftment	programs	and	
promotion of art and Culture.

These projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The aforesaid projects have been 
carried out by the Company directly and/or through 
implementing agencies.

2.  Details of Composition of CSR Committee has been 
mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report 
which form part of the Director’s Report.

3.  Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, 
CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 
are disclosed on the website of the company.

 https://www.v2retail .com/corporate-social-
responsibility-committee/

 h t t p s : / / w w w . v 2 r e t a i l . c o m / w p - c o n t e n t /
uploads/2018/08/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-
Policy-1.pdf

ANNEXURE–III: Annual Report on CSR Activities

4.  Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 
if applicable (attach the report). Not Applicable

5.  Details of the amount available for setoff in pursuance 
of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 
required for setoff for the financial year, if any.

Sl. 
No.

Financial 
Year

Amount 
available for 
set-off from 
preceding 

financial years 
(in Rs)

Amount 
required to be 
set-off for the 
financial year, 
if any (in Rs)

Not Applicable

6.  Average net profit of the Company for last three 
financial years: Rs. (185.14) lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the 
company as per section 135(5): NIL

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years.: NIL

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial 
year, if any: NIL

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 
(7a+7b-7c).: NIL

8. (a) Details of CSR spent or unspent for the financial 
year: 2021-22:
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(b)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl. 

No.

Name 

of the 

Project

Item from the 

list of activities 

in Schedule 

VII to the Act

Local 

area 

(Yes/No)

Location of 

the project

Project 

duration

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in B)

Amount 

spent 

in the 

current 

finan-

cial Year 

(in B)

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project as 

per Section 

135(6) 

(in B)

Mode of Im-

plementa-

tion - Direct 

(Yes/No)

Mode of 

Implementation 

- Through 

Implementing 

Agency

State District Name CSR 

Registration 

number

Not Applicable

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed is as follows:-

S. 
No.

CSR
Projects

or activity
identified

Sectors in
which the
project is
covered

Projects or
programmes
1) Local area 

or other
(2) Specify the 

State
and district 

where
projects or 
programs

was 
undertaken

Amount
Outlay

(budget)
project or
programs

wise

Amount 
Spent on

the projects 
or

programs
Subheads: 1) 

Direct
expenditure 

on
project or 
programs

2) Overheads

Cumulative
expenditure

upto the
reporting

period

Amount
Spent: Direct

or through
implementing

agency

Not Applicable

(d) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 

to the Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 
(in B)

Mode of  
implementa-

tion -  
Direct (Yes/

No)

Mode of implementation - 
Through implementing agency

State Dis-
trict

Name CSR registration 
number

1.

2. ---NIL---

3.

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable 
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Nil
(g)  Excess amount for set off, if any



V2 Retail Limited48 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in B)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Nil

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any

-

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR Account 
under section 

135 (6) (in B)

Amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year
(in B)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 

be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years 
(B In Lakhs)

Name of the 
Fund

Amount 
(in Rs)

Date of 
transfer

1. 2018-19 - - - - - 70.48

2. 2019-20 - - - - - 65.61

3. 2020-21 - - - - - --

TOTAL - - - - - 136.09

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl. 
No.

Project 
ID

Name 
of the 

Project

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 

commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 

(in B)

Amount 
spent on the 

project in 
the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs)

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial Year. 
(in B)

Status of 
the project - 
Completed /

Ongoing

Not Applicable

10.  In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5): Not Applicable

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and policy of the Company.

Date: August 10, 2022
Place: New Delhi

On behalf of the Board
V2 Retail Limited 

Ram Chandra Agarwal
(Chairman and Managing Director)

DIN 00491885

Archana Surendra Yadav
(Chairperson - CSR Committee)

DIN 07335198
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The Board has delegated to the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Board, the responsibility for identifying 
and recommending to the Board, candidates for the 
Board, after considering the necessary and desirable 
competencies for new Board members and board also has 
delegated the power to Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to act as Compensation Committee as per 
V2R 2016 ESOP Scheme.

Policy for Appointment and Re-Appointment of 

Director 

The Board believes that its membership should comprise 
Directors with an appropriate mix of skills, experience 
and personal attributes that will best complement board 
effectiveness, cohesion and diversity and allow the 
Directors to individually, and as a Board collectively, to:

(a) Discharge their responsibilities and duties under the 
law effectively and efficiently;

(b) Assess the performance of management in meeting 
those objectives and goals.

Accordingly, in selecting potential new directors, the 
Nominations and Remuneration committee will seek to 
identify the competencies required to enable the Board 
to fulfill its responsibilities. In doing so, the Committee 
will have regard to the results of the annual appraisal of 
the Board’s performance.

While recognizing that each director will not necessarily 
fulfill all criteria, the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee have identified the following fundamental 
factors as relevant to the selection and appointment of 
new directors:

ANNEXURE- IV
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE MEMBERS OF BOARD AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

(a) Outstanding in capability with extensive and senior 
commercial experience;

(b) High level of personal integrity; and

(c) Time available to meet the commitment required.

Remuneration payable to Managing Director and 

Whole Time Director 

The Managing Director and Whole-Time Director are 
receiving remuneration from the Company as per the 
approval by the members of the Company in the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM). 

The annual increments and performance incentive of the 
Managing Director and Whole Time Directors are linked 
to their performance and are decided by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors will be paid with the sitting 
fee, if any, subject to the approval of Board of Directors/
including any sub-committee thereof, upto the limit 
as specified under Companies Act, 2013 and also in 
Compliance with the Listing Agreement.

Evaluation

In addition to an annual self-evaluation by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board must review 
the effectiveness of the Committee annually.

Amendments

This policy can be modified or repealed at any time by 
the Board of Directors of the Company.



V2 Retail Limited50 

ANNEXURE – V
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

Sr. 
No.

Name (s) of 
the related 

party & 
nature of 

relationship

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 

transactions

Silent terms 
of the 

contracts or 
arrangements 

or 
transactions 

including the 
value, if any

Justification 
for entering 

into such 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or 

transactions’

Date(s) 
of 

approval 
by the 
Board

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

Date on which 
the special 
resolution 
was passed 
in General 
meeting as 

required under 
first proviso to 

section 188

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

 (Rs. In Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Name (s) of the related 
party & nature of 

relationship

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 

transactions

Silent terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the 
value, if any

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 

any

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any

1. V2 Smart Manufacturing 
Private Limited (Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary)

Purchases of 
Traded goods

One Year 10,054.36. March 26, 
2021

Nil

On behalf of the Board

V2 Retail Limited

Date: August 10, 2022
Place: New Delhi

Ram Chandra Agarwal
(Chairman and Managing Director)

DIN 00491885
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ANNEXURE – VI
Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

i. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2021-22

Sl. No. Name Ratio of Median Remuneration

1 Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal 48.02

2 Mrs. Uma Agarwal 48.02

3 Mr. Akash Agarwal 48.02

4 Mr. Lalit Kumar NA

5 Ms. Rochelle Susanna D’Souza NA

6 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu NA

7 Mr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal NA

8 Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav NA

ii. Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary, if any, in Financial Year 2021-22

Sl. No. Name Designation % Increase/ (decrease) 
in remuneration

1 Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal Chairman & Managing Director --

2 Mrs. Uma Agarwal Whole Time Director --

3 Mr. Akash Agarwal Whole Time Director & CFO --

4 Ms. Rochelle Susanna D’Souza Nominee Director NA

5 Mr. Lalit Kumar Independent Director NA

6 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu Independent Director NA

7 Mr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Independent Director NA

8 Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav Independent Director NA

9 Mr. Manshu Tandon Chief Executive Officer 15.00

10 Mr. Sudhir Kumar Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 10.00

iii. Percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 16.29

iv. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2022: 2,422

v. Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration;

 The average increases in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in Financial Year 2021-22 was 
11.75%. Percentage increase in the KMP, other than Directors, managerial remuneration for the year was 12.50%.

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

 The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employees 
and the Company. Through its compensation package, the Company endeavours to attract, retain, develop 
and motivate a high-performance staff. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance 
and the performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process. The Company affirms 
remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE – VII
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1.   Purpose & Background

This Policy will regulate the process of dividend 
declaration and its pay-out by the Company in 
accordance with the provisions contained in Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the applicable Rules, regulation 43A of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as applicable from time to time. 
However, this document does not solicit investments in 
the Company’s equity shares.

2.  Dividend

Dividend is the payment made by the company to its 
shareholders out of the profit made by the company 
in proportion to the equity capital they hold, dividend 
included Interim Dividends.

3.  Parameters for declaration of Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company shall consider 
the following parameters for declaration of dividend: - .

Financial parameters (internal factors)

•	 Consolidated	net	operating	profit	after	tax

•	 Working	capital	requirements

•	 Capital	expenditure	requirements

•	 Resources	required	to	fund	acquisitions	and/or	new	
businesses

•	 Cash	flow	required	to	meet	contingencies

•	 Outstanding	borrowings

•	 Past	Dividend	Trends

•	 Net	Worth	of	the	company

•	 Accumulated	Losses

•	 Deferred	Tax	

•	 Liabilities	Including	Contingent	Liabilities

External Factor

•	 Prevailing	legal	requirements

•	 Regulatory	 conditions	 or	 restrictions	 laid	 down	
under the applicable laws including tax laws.

•	 Dividend	 pay-out	 ratio	 of	 companies	 in	 the	 same	
industry.

4.  Circumstances under which the shareholders 

may or may not expect Dividend

•	 If	the	Company	undertakes	or	proposes	to	undertake	
a significant expansion of business, project, 
acquisitions of business brand, company and/or 
joint ventures requiring higher allocation of capital

•	 Significantly	 higher	 working	 capital	 requirements	
adversely impacting free cash flow

•	 Whenever	it	proposes	to	utilize	surplus	cash	for	buy-
back of securities; or

•	 In	 the	event	of	 inadequacy	of	profits	or	whenever	
the Company has incurred losses

•	 If	the	company	intend	to	retain	internal	accrual	for	
Business growth of company

•	 Previous	Accumulated	Losses

•	 Negative	Net	Worth

5. Utilization of retained earnings

 The retained earnings except declaration of the 
dividend if any if recommended by the board, shall 
be utilised in the manner as considered appropriate 
by the Board and subject to the applicable laws.

6. Parameters adopted with regard to various classes 
of shares:

 Since the company has issued only one class 
of equity shares with equal voting rights, all the 
members of the company are entitled to the same 
dividend per share.

7. Review

 The board of the company is authorised to make 
alterations in the policy if required from time to 
time. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s) 
circular etc. issued by relevant authorities not being 
consistent to the provisions laid down under this 
policy then such amendment, clarification, circular 
etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and 
this policy shall stand amended accordingly from the 
effective date as laid down under such amendment, 
clarification, circular etc.
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the 
strong foundation on which successful commercial 
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy 
on corporate governance oversees business strategies 
and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate 
behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising 
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors 
and the society at large.

Good governance practices stem from the culture and 
mindset of the organisation and at V2 Retail Limited we are 
committed to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders. 
Our customers have benefited from products having 
value which is available at the most competitive prices.

The Company stringently complies with the corporate 
governance practices as enumerated in the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {hereinafter 
referred to as the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015}. 

The Company lays a strong emphasis on ethical 
corporate citizenship and the establishment of good 
corporate culture. The corporate governance process 
and systems has gradually strengthened over the years. 
The Company endeavours not only to meet the statutory 
requirements in this regard but also to go well beyond 
them by instituting such systems and procedures as are 
in accordance with the latest global trends of making 
management completely transparent and institutionally 
sound.

The Company at the same time ensures full compliance 
with regulatory disclosure requirements. The Company 
further believes that the concept of corporate governance 
is founded upon the core values of transparency, 
empowerment, accountability, independent monitoring, 
and environmental consciousness. The Company has 
always given its best efforts to uphold and nurture these 
core values across all operational aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a. Introduction

The Board of Directors is the apex body that governs the 
overall functioning of the Company. The Board provides 
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the 
strong foundation on which successful commercial 
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy 
on corporate governance oversees business strategies 
and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate 
behaviour and fairness to all stakeholders comprising 
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors 
and the society at large.

Good governance practices stem from the culture and 
mindset of the organisation and at V2 Retail Limited we are 
committed to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders. 
Our customers have benefited from products having 
value which is available at the most competitive prices.

The Company stringently complies with the corporate 
governance practices as enumerated in the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {hereinafter 
referred to as the SEBI Listing Regulations}. 

The Company lays a strong emphasis on ethical 
corporate citizenship and the establishment of good 
corporate culture. The corporate governance process 
and systems has gradually strengthened over the years. 
The Company endeavours not only to meet the statutory 
requirements in this regard but also to go well beyond 
them by instituting such systems and procedures as are 
in accordance with the latest global trends of making 
management completely transparent and institutionally 
sound.

The Company at the same time ensures full 
compliance with regulatory disclosure requirements. 
The Company further believes that the concept of 
corporate governance is founded upon the core 
values of transparency, empowerment, accountability, 
independent monitoring and environmental 
consciousness. The Company has always given its best 
efforts to uphold and nurture these core values across 
all operational aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a. Introduction

The Board of Directors is the apex body that governs the 
overall functioning of the Company. The Board provides 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

and evaluates the strategic direction of the Company, 
management policies and their effectiveness besides 
ensuring that the long-term interests of stakeholders 
are being served. The Board plays a pivotal role in 
ensuring good governance. The Board’s role, functions, 
responsibility and accountability are clearly defined in 
this regard. 

The Board meeting is conducted at least once in every 
quarter to discuss the performance of the Company 
and its Quarterly Financial Results, along with other 
corporate matters. The Board also meets to consider 
other business(es), whenever required, from time to 
time. Agenda of the business(es) to be transacted at the 
Board Meeting along with explanatory notes thereto are 
drafted and circulated well in advance to the Board of 
Directors of the Company. The Company always ensures 
that Board members are presented with all the relevant 
information on vital matters affecting the working of 
the Company including the information as inter-alia 
specified under Part A of Schedule II of Regulation 17(7) 
of the Listing Regulations. Every Board Member is free 
to suggest the inclusion of any item on the agenda and 
hold due discussions thereto. The Chairman, Managing 
Director and Whole-time Directors are assisted by the 
CEOs/CFO/senior managerial personnel in overseeing 
the functional matters of the Company.

The Board reviews its strength and composition from 
time to time to ensure that it remains aligned with 
statutory as well as business requirements. The Board 
Meetings are usually held at the registered office of the 
Company situated at Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora 
Abadi Village Kapashera, Tehsil Vasant Vihar New Delhi 
South West Delhi – 110037.

b. Composition of the Board

The Company’s policy is to maintain an optimal 
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
As on March 31, 2020, the Board comprised of 8 directors, 
3 of them being Executive, 4 being Non Executive 
Independent Director and 1 being non executive 
nominee Director. The Company has one woman 
Independent Director on its Board. The Detailed profile 
of all the directors is available on the company’s website 
www.v2retail.com. The Company has complied with the 
provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 17 (1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations with 
respect to the Composition of the Board. 

and evaluates the strategic direction of the Company, 

management policies and their effectiveness besides 

ensuring that the long-term interests of stakeholders 

are being served. The Board plays a pivotal role in 

ensuring good governance. The Board’s role, functions, 

responsibility, and accountability are clearly defined in 

this regard. 

The Board meeting is conducted at least once in every 

quarter to discuss the performance of the Company 

and its Quarterly Financial Results, along with other 

corporate matters. The Board also meets to consider 

other business(es), whenever required, from time to 

time. Agenda of the business(es) to be transacted at the 

Board Meeting along with explanatory notes thereto 

are drafted and circulated well in advance to the Board 

of Directors of the Company. The Company always 

ensures that Board members are presented with all 

the relevant information on vital matters affecting the 

working of the Company including the information 

as inter-alia specified under Part A of Schedule II of 

Regulation 17(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

Every Board Member is free to suggest the inclusion 

of any item on the agenda and hold due discussions 

thereto. The Chairman, Managing Director and Whole-

time Directors are assisted by the CEOs/CFO/senior 

managerial personnel in overseeing the functional 

matters of the Company.

The Board reviews its strength and composition from 

time to time to ensure that it remains aligned with 

statutory as well as business requirements. 

b. Composition of the Board

The Company’s policy is to maintain an optimal 

combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 

As on March 31, 2022, the Board comprised of 8 (Eight) 

directors, 3 (Three) of them being Executive, 4 (Four) 

being Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1 (One) 

being Non-Executive Nominee Director. The Company 

has one Woman Director on its Board. The Detailed 

profile of all the directors is available on the company’s 

website www.v2retail.com. The Company has complied 

with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 17 (1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
2015 with respect to the Composition of the Board. 
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The Composition of the Board and category of Directors are as under:

Name and Category of Directors

Promoter Directors (Executive 
Director)

Non-Executive Independent 
Directors

Non Executive Nominee Director

1 Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal 1 Mr. Lalit Kumar 1 Ms. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza

2 Mrs. Uma Agarwal 2 Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal

3 Mr.Akash Agarwal 3 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu

4 Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav

At the time of appointment, every Independent Director 
sign a declaration to confirm that he/she fulfils all the 
conditions for being an Independent Director as laid down 
under the law. The Independent Directors comply with 
the definition of Independent Directors as given under 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. While 
appointing/reappointing any Independent Directors/
Non-Executive Directors on the Board, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (NR Committee) considers 
the criteria as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
2015. All the Independent Directors submit a certificate 
confirming that they meet the independence criteria as 
mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

c. Agenda papers distributed in advance

Agenda of the Meeting of Board of Directors/committees 
are circulated among the Directors/invitees; well in 
advance, in a structured format except unpublished 
price sensitive information. All material information is 
incorporated in the agenda papers to facilitate meaningful 
and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not 
practical to attach any document to the agenda, the same 
is tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this 
effect in the agenda and approval for the same is taken 
from the Board/committees as applicable. In special and 
exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary 
item(s) on the agenda are permitted.

d. Directors’ responsibilities

i. The principal responsibility of the Board is to oversee 
the management of the Company and in doing 
so serve the best interest of the Company and its 
stakeholders. These include:

•	 Reviewing	 and	 approving	operating,	 financial	 and	
other corporate plans, strategies and objectives.

•	 Evaluating	whether	the	corporate	resources	are	used	
for the appropriate business purposes.

•	 Establishing	a	corporate	environment	that	promotes	
timely and effective disclosures (including robust 
and appropriate control procedures and incentives), 

fiscal responsibility, high ethical standards and 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

•	 Evaluating	the	performance	of	the	Company.

•	 Attending	 the	 meetings	 of	 the	 Board,	
committees, and shareholders.

ii. Exercise best business judgments: In discharging 
their fiduciary duties with care and loyalty, the 
Directors exercise their judgment to act in what they 
reasonably believe to be in the best interest of the 
Company and its stakeholders.

iii. Understand the Company and its business: The 
Directors have an obligation to remain informed 
about the Company and its business, including 
principal operational and financial objectives, 
strategies, and plans.

iv. To establish effective systems: The Directors ensure 
that the effective systems are in place for periodic and 
timely reporting to the Board on matters concerning 
the Company.

e. The role of Company Secretary in the overall 
governance process

 The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring 
that Board procedures are followed and regularly 
reviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that 
all relevant information, details, and documents 
are made available to the Directors and the senior 
management for effective decision making at the 
meeting.

f. Compliance

 The Company Secretary is required to ensure 
adherence to all the applicable laws and regulations 
primarily the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
rules thereunder and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015; 
besides preparing the agenda, the notes on the 
agenda and minutes of the meeting, among others. 
The Company Secretary establishes and regularly 
monitors the compliance mechanism in place to 
carry out effective and timely compliance of relevant 
laws, rules and regulations.

 A composite report of statutory compliances of 
all applicable laws, rules, and regulations among 
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others along with the Certificates of Compliance 
duly signed by the respective heads of Department 
are placed before the Board on a quarterly basis. 
The Company has a dedicated team to monitor the 
compliance system and in turn is responsible for 
checking and reviewing the reports and preparing 
the Composite Compliance report. Based on the 
reports and certificates, a certificate of statutory 
compliances duly signed by the Managing Director 
and the CEO/CFO is also placed before theBoard 
during the year under review.

 The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
review the compliance reports of the laws applicable 
to the Company as well as instances of non–
compliances, if any, together with their possible 
impacts on the business, if any. A strict internal 
audit system is also in place to monitor and certify 
the compliance system.

 The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

g. Risk management

 The Company has a comprehensive Enterprise 
Risk Management System at work. The risk 

management system is periodically reviewed by the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

h. Number of Board meetings and the Directors present 
therein

The Board of Directors held 4 (Four) meetings during the 
year.

Details of board meetings held during the financial 
year and the number of Directors present
S l . 
No.

Dates on which the 
Board Meetings 

were held

Total 
Strength of 
the Board

No. of 
Directors 
Present

1 June 28, 2021 8 8

2 August 13, 2021 8 8

3 November 11, 2021 8 8

4 February 14, 2022 8 8

The maximum time gap between any two meetings was 
less than 120 days as prescribed under regulation 17(2) 
of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. Video conferencing 
facilities are also used to facilitate Directors at other 
locations to participate in the Board Meetings.

i. Attendance of Directors at Board meetings, last Annual General Meeting, relationship with other Directors 
and number of Directorships held, Chairmanship or memberships of committees of each Director in various 
companies as at March 31, 2022.

Details of Board Meetings held during the financial year and the number of Directors present:

Sl. 
No.

Name of 
Director & 

DIN

Position Relationship 
with other 
Directors

Date of 
Joining

Number 
of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Number of 
Directorship 
as on March 

31, 2022, 
in other 

company*

Number of 
Committee 
positions 

held**

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

Directorship 
in other 

listed 
entities

Chair-
person

Mem-
ber

1. Mr. Ram 
Chandra 
Agarwal
00491885

Managing 
Director & 
Executive 
Promoter

Husband of 
Mrs. Uma 
Agarwal & 
Father of Mr. 
Akash Agarwal

23.07.2001 4 6 - 2 √ -

2. Mrs. Uma 
Agarwal
00495945

Executive 
Promoter 
Director

Wife of Mr. 
Ram Chandra 
Agarwal & 
Mother of Mr. 
Akash Agarwal

23.07.2001 4 7 - 1 √ -

3. Mr. Akash 
Agarwal
03194632

Executive 
Promoter 
Director & 
CFO

Son of Mr. 
Ram Chandra 
Agarwal & Mrs. 
Uma Agarwal

29.09.2017 4 4 - - √ -

4. Ms. Rochelle 
Susanna 
Dsouza
07854452

Nominee 
Director

N.A. 28.11.2018 4 2 - - √ -

5. Mr. Lalit 
Kumar
00025150

Independent 
Director

N.A. 27.01.2020 4 2 1 - √ -

6. Dr. Arun 
Kumar 
Roopanwal
00406817

Independent 
Director

N.A. 27.01.2020 4 - - - √ -
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7. Mr. Harbir 
Singh Sidhu
01943424

Independent 
Director

N.A. 30.04.2019 4 - 1 1 √ -

8. Mrs. 
Archana 
Surendra 
Yadav
07335198

Independent 
Director

N.A. 27.01.2020 4 3 1 4 √ Resonance 
Specialties 

Limited
& J. Kumar 

Infraprojects 
Limited

* Other directorships do not include alternate directorships, Section 25 / 8 companies and companies incorporated 
outside India.

** In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, Chairmanships / Memberships of Board 
Committees include only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committees of public limited companies (Listed 
& Unlisted) only.

j. Skills/expertise/competencies of the Board of 
Directors

The Board is satisfied that the current composition 
reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, 
experience, diversity, and independence. The Board 
provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective, and 
an independent view to the Company’s management 
while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, 
thereby ensuring that the management adheres to 
high standards of ethics, transparency, and disclosure. 

The Board periodically evaluates the need for change 
in its composition and size. The Company requires 
skills/expertise/competencies in the areas of strategy, 
finance, leadership, technology, governance, 
human resources, etc. to efficiently carry on its core 
businesses.

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/
competencies fundamental for the effective functioning 
of the Company which are currently available with the 
Board:

Name of the Director BROAD PARAMETERS
(Core Skill/Expertise/Competencies)

Financial & 
Accounting 
Knowledge

Strategic
Expertise

Risk
Governance

Legal &
Corporate

Governance
expertise

Retail 
Skills

Management
Skills

Sustainability 
& CSR

Quality
& Safety

Mr. Ram Chandra 
Agarwal

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mrs. Uma Agarwal √ √ √ - √ √ √ √
Mr. Akash Agarwal √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Mr. Lalit Kumar √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √
Dr. Arun Kumar 
Roopanwal

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mr. Harbir Singh 
Sidhu

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Mrs. Archana 
Surendra Yadav

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ -

Ms. Rochelle Susanna 
Dsouza

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ -

k. Information placed before the Board of Directors

The Company has complied with Part A of Schedule II of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 17(7) 
of the said regulations with regard to information being 
placed before the Board of Directors.

The following items are generally tabled for information 
and review of the Board:

•	 Annual operating plans and budgets and any 
updates

•	 Capital budgets and any updates

•	 Quarterly results of the Company and its operating 
divisions or business segments

•	 Company’s annual financial results, financial 
statements, Auditors’ Report and Report

•	 Formation/reconstitution, terms of references and 
minutes of Board Committees including Audit 
Committee

•	 Information on recruitment and remuneration of 
senior officers just below the Board level, including 
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer 
and the Company Secretary
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•	 Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and 
penalty notices which are materially important

•	 Any materially relevant default in financial 
obligations to and by the Company or substantial 
non-payment for goods sold by the Company

•	 Any issue, which involves possible public, or product 
liability claims of substantial nature, including any 
judgment or order which may have been passed 
strictures on the conduct of the company or taken 
an adverse view regarding another enterprise that 
can have negative implications for the Company

•	 Details of any joint venture or collaboration 
agreement

•	 Transactions that involve substantial payment 
towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual 
property

•	 Significant labour problems and their proposed 
solutions. Any significant development on human 
resources/industrial relations front like signing of 
wage agreement, implementation of voluntary 
retirement scheme, among others

•	 Sale of material nature of investment and assets, 
which is not in the normal course of business

•	 Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or 
listing requirements and shareholders service such 
as delay in share transfer, among others

•	 Appointment, remuneration and resignation of 
Director(s) and key managerial personnel

•	 General notices of interest to the Directors including 
declaration of Independent Directors at the time of 
appointment/annually

•	 Appointment of internal auditors, and secretarial 
auditors

•	 Secretarial audit report submitted by secretarial 
auditor

•	 Certificate of statutory compliance certifying 
compliance with all laws as applicable to the 
Company

•	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report under 
SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulation, 
1996

•	 Dividend declaration

•	 Grant of loans and making investments of surplus 
funds

•	 Transactions with related parties

•	 Review of the risk management policy

•	 Any other important or critical matter

The Board is presented with all the information under 
the above heads whenever applicable and materially 
significant. These are submitted either as a part of the 

agenda papers well in advance of the Board meetings 
or are tabled in the course of the Board meetings or 
meetings of the relevant committees. Functional heads 
are also called upon to provide additional inputs to the 
items being discussed by the Board/committee as and 
when required.

l. Presentation by the management

Before putting on record the quarterly/annual financial 
results of the Company, a presentation is made before 
the Board on operations of the Company including 
corporate matters, initiatives taken for sales promotion 
and all other matters having impact on the business of 
the Company.

m. Succession plan

The Board of Directors has satisfied itself that plans are in 
place for orderly succession for outgoing members of the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

n. Training of Board members and familiarization 
programme for Independent Directors

At V2, all the members of the Board of Directors are well- 
experienced professionals who are well acquainted with 
nature of industry, business model and other aspects of 
the Company.

At each of the Board Meeting, Board members are 
provided presentations containing details about the 
Company, Retail Business, business model and stores 
opening among others.

The Company arranges discussions / meetings on risks 
associated with the Company’s business wherein experts 
are invited and mitigation plans are discussed with the 
Executive Directors, such discussion form of trainings 
enables them for better decision-making in discharging 
their responsibilities.

The Executive Directors were imparted training on the 
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015, 
Direct & Indirect Taxation, among others. 

The relevant statutory changes/updates are discussed 
with the directors from time to time so that it helps them 
to make better and informed decisions.

All new Independent Directors inducted on the Board are 
given in a formal orientation.

The Company has initiated a familiarization programme 
for the Independent Directors as required under 
Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015.

Independent Directors are regularly informed and updated 
on the business activities of the Company by providing 
them with the details of businesses of the Company as 
well as details of competitors, changes in relevant laws, 
their duties/responsibilities and liabilities as a Director. 
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Such information enables the Independent Directors to 
be familiarized with the Company’s operations and the 
industry at large. The Company had also organized retail 
stores visits for the Independent Directors as a part of the 
familiarization programme.

Web link for familiarisation programmes imparted to 
independent directors: - www.v2retail.com

o. Whistle-blower/ Vigil mechanism

The Company has a strong and effective whistleblower 
policy which aims to deter and detect actual or 
suspected, misconduct. It has been established to 
ensure that genuine concerns of misconduct/unlawful 
conduct, which an individual believes may be taking 
place within the organization, are raised at an early 
stage in a responsible and confidential manner. This 
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism. 
Any employee may report such incident without fear to 
the Chairman of the audit committee or alternatively may 
report to Head –Internal Audit. The above mechanism 
has been appropriately communicated within the 
Company across all levels and has been displayed on the 
Company’s intranet as well as on the Company’s website 
www.v2retail.com.

The Audit Committee is empowered to monitor the 
functioning of the mechanism. It reviews the status of 
complaints received under this policy. The Committee 
has, in its report, affirmed that no personnel have been 
denied access to the Audit Committee.

p. Criteria for selection of Directors

The selection process of Board members is dependent 
on several parameters. The Company recognizes and 
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and 
believes that it will enhance the quality of the decisions 
of the Board by utilizing their varied skills, qualifications, 
professional experience, gender, knowledge, among 
others, of the members of the Board, which is necessary 
for achieving sustainable and balanced growth of the 
Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Board, suggests 
appointment of suitable professionals who may 
be inducted into the Board. Upon fulfilment of the 
parameters, the Directors are appointed.

q. Terms and conditions for appointment of 
Independent Directors

The terms and conditions of appointment of the 
Independent Directors are subject to the provisions of 
the applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI Listing Regulations 2015 along with the Articles of 
Association of the Company. Each Independent Director 

is issued a letter specifying the details of appointment at 
the time of joining. Every Independent Director signs a 
declaration to confirm that he/she fulfils all the conditions 
for being an Independent Director as laid down under 
the law.

r. Board diversity policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of 
having a diverse Board of Directors. The Company believes 
that increasing diversity at the Board level is an essential 
element in maintaining a competitive advantage in the 
complex business that it operates. It recognizes that a 
Board comprising of appropriately qualified people, with 
a broad range of experience relevant to the business of 
the Company, is important to achieve effective corporate 
governance and sustained commercial success.

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum 
combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, 
and Women Directors. The composition of the Board 
is in accordance with requirements of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Companies Act, 2013, 
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and all other Statutory, 
Regulatory and Contractual obligations of the Company.

s. Board evaluation policy

The primary objective of the policy is to provide a 
framework and set standards for the evaluation of the 
Board as a whole and each Director individually. The 
Company aims to achieve a balance of merit, experience, 
and skills on the Board. The policy is to assess and enhance 
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole. Individual 
members are assessed on their effective contribution 
and commitment to their role and responsibilities as 
Directors. The Board evaluation process is carried out by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

t. Post -meeting follow-up mechanism

The important decisions taken at the Board/Board-level 
Committee meetings are promptly communicated to the 
concerned departments/divisions. A report on the action 
taken on the decisions/suggestions of the previous 
meeting(s)is placed at the immediately succeeding 
meeting of the Board/committee for noting the same.

Code of conduct

The Company has its code of conduct for all the 
members of the Board including Independent Directors, 
Committees and employees working at the level of 
Heads of Departments. In compliance with SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 the code of 
conduct suitably lays down the duties of the Independent 
Director. The said code is displayed on the Company’s 
website, www.v2retail.com. All the Board Members and 
Employees have affirmed compliance with the said code 
for the year ended March 31, 2022. A declaration signed 
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by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in this 
regard, is reproduced below: 

Declaration/certificate pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 is annexed herewith.

To, 

Members of V2 Retail Limited

Sub: Declaration under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015

I, Manshu Tandon, Chief Executive Officer of V2 Retail 
Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief, declare 
that all the members of the Board of Directors and senior 
management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the code of conduct of Board of Directors & Senior 
Management for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Date: May 30, 2022 Manshu Tandon
Place: New Delhi (Chief Executive Officer)

Committees of the Board

With an objective to have a more focused attention 
on various facets of business, better accountability 
and ensuring compliances, the Board has constituted 
under mentioned committees which complies with the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015.

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
5. Risk Management Committee
6. ESOP Committee

Each of these committees has been mandated to operate 
within a given framework. The details of composition of 
the above-mentioned committees are available on the 
company’s website www.v2retail.com.

All the recommendations of the various mandatory 
committees were acceptedby the Board.

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee acts as the link between the 
statutory auditors, the internal auditors, and the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per 
the guidelines set out in Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015 read with Section177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

The Company has a well-defined and structured internal 
audit control system to ensure reliability of operational and 
financial information, statutory/regulatory compliances, 
and safeguard of the assets of the Company.

The internal audit department governs its audit through 
modules/checklists to carry out process wise audit 
and to ensure effective discharges of their duties and 
compliance with SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The 
Audit process being used by Internal Audit Department 
is also reviewed from time to time with a view to bring it 
in line with the regulatory framework.

The representatives of statutory auditors are permanent 
invitees to the audit committee meeting. The Chairman 
& Managing Director is the member of the audit 
committee and CFO attends the Audit Committee as 
special invitees.

As on March 31, 2022, the Audit Committee comprises 
four (4) Directors out of whom three (3) are Independent 
Directors.

The Audit Committee held 4 (Four) meetings during the 
year on June 28, 2021, August 13, 2021, November 11, 
2021, and February 14, 2022.

The Chairman of the Committee was duly present in 
Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2021.

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 
120 days complying with the Companies Act, 2013 
and provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The 
functions of the committee include: 

•	 Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible

•	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration 
and terms of appointment of statutory auditors of 
the Company

•	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 
other services rendered by them

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual 
financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 
before submission to the board for approval, with 
particular reference to:

•	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of Clause (c) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; Changes, 
if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same; Major accounting entries 
involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management; Significant adjustments 
made in the financial statements arising out of 
audit findings; Compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
Disclosure of any related-party transactions; 
Qualifications in the draft audit report; if any.

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the board 
for approval
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•	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses/application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, among 
others), the statement of funds utilised for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the 
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take 
up steps in this matter

•	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 
independence, performance and effectiveness of 
the audit process

•	 Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the Company with related parties

•	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

•	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, 
wherever necessary

•	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems

•	 Reviewing, with the management, performance 
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems

•	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, 
if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit

•	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow-up thereon

•	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 
by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud, irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the Board

•	 Discussion with statutory auditors, before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern

•	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non- payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors

•	 Reviewing the functioning of the vigil mechanism 
and whistle-blower mechanism

•	 Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., Chief 
Financial Officer or any other person heading the 
finance function or discharging that function) 
after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background among others of the candidate

•	 Carrying out any other function mentioned in the 
terms of reference of the Audit Committee

•	 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances 
from/investment by the holding company in the 
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the 
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower

•	 Consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, 
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and 
its shareholders

•	 Reviewing the following information:

 Management discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of operations; Management 
letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued  
by the statutory auditors; Internal audit reports 
relating to internal control weaknesses; Appointment, 
removal, and terms of remuneration of the chief 
internal auditor and Statement of deviations:

(a)  quarterly statement of deviation(s) including 
report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of 
Regulation 32(1). 

(b)  annual statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

Composition of the Committee and attendance of the 
Members at the meetings held during the year:

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particulars of Attendance

No. of meetings
held during the
Members’ Tenure

No. of meetings
attended by the
Member

Mr. Lalit Kumar Chairman Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal Member Executive Director 4 4

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu Member Independent Director 4 4

Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav Member Independent Director 4 4

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 
constituted in compliance with the requirements of 

Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 read 
with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee recommends the nomination of Directors 
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and carries out evaluation of performance of individual 
Directors.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection 
and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 
Senior Management, and their remuneration and for 
performance evaluation of Independent Directors. During 
financial year 2021-22, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has met 1 (One) time.

The Committee comprises three (3) Independent 
Directors as on March 31, 2022.

The Committee held 1 (One) meeting during the year on 
August 13, 2021.

The Chairman of the Committee was duly present at the 
Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2021. 

The functions of the Committee include:

•	 To formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, 
relating to remuneration of the Directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees.

•	 For every appointment of an independent director, 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, and 
experience on the Board and on the basis of such 
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and 
capabilities required of an independent director. The 
person recommended to the Board for appointment 

as an independent director shall have the capabilities 
identified in such description. For the purpose of 
identifying suitable candidates, the Committee 
may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if 
required

b. consider candidates from a wide range of 
backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; 
and

c. consider the time commitments of the 
candidates.

•	 To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Directors and the Board. 

•	 To devise a policy on Board diversity.

•	 To identify persons who are qualified to become 
a Director and who may be appointed in senior 
management.

•	 To evaluate, review and recommend to the Board, 
the remuneration of the Executive Directors, 
striking a balance between the performance and 
achievement.

•	 Whether to extend or continue the terms of 
appointment of Independent Directors, on the 
basis of the report of performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors.

•	 To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in 
whatever form, payable to senior management.

Composition of the Committee and attendance of the 
Members at the meetings held during the year:

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particular of Attendance
No. of meetings
held during the

Members’ Tenure

No. of meetings
attended by the

Member
Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Chairman Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu Member Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Lalit Kumar Member Independent Director 1 1

REMUNERATION POLICY

Executive Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee takes into 
account experience, qualification and prevailing industry 
practices before giving its recommendations to the Board. 
The Board, based on the recommendations, decides 
the quantum of remuneration to be paid to Executive 
Directors, subject to approval by the shareholders in 
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Schedule V thereof. The Committee aims to reward 
stellar performances on a periodical basis.

The Company has entered into agreement with each 
of the Executive Directors which may be terminated by 
either party by giving to the other party one months’ 
notice of such termination.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non – Executive/ Independent Director of the Board 
shall be entitled for sitting fees for attending the meeting 
of the Board or Committees thereof. The sitting fees paid 
to the Directors are within the limits prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013. An Independent Director 
shall not be eligible to get any stock options and also 
shall not be eligible to participate in any shares-based 
payment schemes of the Company. The Non – Executive 
Independent Director do not have any material pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company. Tenure 
of Independent Directors is for 5 (Five) years from the 
date of appointment. There is no separate provision for 
payment of severance fees and a criterion of making 
payments to non-executive directors is available on the 
website of the Company i.e. www.v2retail.com



V2 Retail Limited62 

The aggregate sitting fees paid to Non-Executive 
Independent Directors for the FY 2021-22 amounted to 
Rs. 12.00 Lacs (excluding GST). Since, all the meetings 
were attended by the Non-Executive Directors via Video 
Conferencing only therefore no material expenses were 
incurred by the Independent Directors for attending the 
meeting and therefore no reimbursement in this regard 
took place. 

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent 
Directors

As per the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down 
the criteria for performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors and the Board. The Committee formulates 

evaluation criteria for the Independent Directors which 
is broadly based on:

•	 Knowledge to perform the role;

•	 Time and level of participation; Level of oversight; 
and

•	 Professional conduct and independence.

In terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, the 
Directors’ Report also includes a statement indicating 
the process in which the Board has done formal annual 
evaluation of its own performance, performance of 
Committees and individual Directors of the Company.

Company also conducts familiarisation programme for 
Independent Directors covering business overview, store 
visits, operational updates & such other matters.

•	 The	details	of	sitting	fees	paid	to	Independent	Directors	during	the	financial	year	are	as	under:

(In Rs.)

Particulars Mr. Lalit Kumar Dr. Arun Kumar 
Roopanwal

Mrs. Archana 
Surendra Yadav

Mr. Harbir Singh 
Sidhu

Sitting fees for the Board Meetings 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000

Sitting fees the Committee Meetings - - - -

Commission - - - -

Others, please specify - - - -

Total 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000

•	 Managing Directors & Executive Directors

During the year, Company has paid remuneration to its Executive Directors by way of salary and perquisites, within 
the limits stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the approval sought from the shareholders of the 
Company. The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company during the financial year 
2021-22 are as under:

Name of the Director Basic Salary 
(Rs.)

Contribution 
to PF

Value of 
Perquisites

Variable Total (Rs.)

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal 54,50,000 - - - 54,50,000

Mrs. Uma Agarwal 53,75,000 - - - 53,75,000

Mr. Akash Agarwal 51,21,000 - - - 51,21,000

Total 1,59,46,000 - - - 1,59,46,000

Service contracts, notice period, severance fees:

Appointment of Whole time Directors is on contractual basis with the notice period of one month from either side, 
and there is no provision of payment of severance fees.

Stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over 
which exercisable: Not Applicable

Shares held by the Non –Executive Directors as on March 31, 2022

Sl. No. Name of the Director Category of Director Number of Shares
1. Mr. Lalit Kumar Independent Director -

2. Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Independent Director -

3. Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu Independent Director -

4. Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav Independent Director -

5. Ms. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza Nominee Non-Executive Director -
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There is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the 
non-executive directors vis-à-vis the listed entity other 
than receipt of sitting fees for the meetings of Board and 
its Committees and their shareholding, if any, in the 
Company.

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board 
was constituted in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. This Committee 
deals with stakeholder relations and grievances raised 
by the investors in a timely and effective manner and to 
the satisfaction of investors. The Committee oversees 
the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents of the Company relating to investor services and 
recommends measures for improvement. 

The Committee held 1 (One) meeting during the year on 
June 28, 2021.

The functions of the committee include:

•	 Approval of transfer/transmission/consolidation of 
securities of the Company; 

•	 Overseeing of the performance of the registrar and 
share transfer agents of the Company;

•	 Redressal/resolving the grievances of the security 
holders of the Companyrelated to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual 
report, non-receipt of declared dividend, among 
others, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 
meetings; 

•	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of 
voting rights by shareholders;

•	 Review of adherence to the service standards 
adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent;

•	 Review of the various measures and initiatives 
taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of 
dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the Company;

•	 Disposal of old stationeries of dividend warrants, 
among others; 

•	 Issue of duplicate share certificates; 

•	 Recommending upgradation measures for the 
standard of service to investors; 

•	 Any other matter(s) out of and incidental to these 
functions and such other acts assigned by the Board.

Composition of the Committee and attendance of the Members at the meetings held during the year:

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particular of Attendance

No. of meetings
held during the

Members’ Tenure

No. of meetings
attended by the

Member

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu Chairman Independent Director 1 1

Mrs. Uma Agarwal Member Executive Director 1 1

Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav Member Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal Member Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Sudhir Kumar, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
2015. Details of the complaints received and redressed/disposed during the year ended March 31, 2022, are as follows:

Nature of Complaint Pending as on 1St April 
2021

Received During the 
Year

Disposed during the 
year

Pending as on 31st March 
2022

Investor Complaints 0 0 0 0

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Committee’s prime responsibility is to assist the 
Board in discharging its social responsibilities by way 
of formulating and monitoring implementation of the 
framework of ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Policy’. 
The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference 
meet with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

The committee has held Two (2) meetings during the 
year on June 28, 2021, and February 14, 2022.

The Committee is delegated and empowered to do the 
following:

•	 Formulate and recommend to the Board, a corporate 
social responsibility policy which shall indicate the 
CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company 
in areas or subject specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013;

•	 Recommend the amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the CSR activities; 

•	 Monitor the expenses incurred as per the CSR policy 
of the Company from time to time; 

•	 Any other matters as may be considered expedient 
by the members in furtherance of and to comply 
with the CSR policy of the Company.
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The Company has adopted a CSR policy which indicates 
the activities to be undertaken by the Company 
as specified in Schedule VII to the Act. The policy, 
including overview of projects or programs proposed 

to be undertaken, is provided on the Company’s 
website at https://www.v2retail.com/wp-content/
uploads/2018/08/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-
Policy-1.pdf

Composition, category of Directors and number of meetings attended:

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particular of Attendance
No. of meetings held 
during the Members’ 

Tenure

No. of meetings 
attended by the 

Member
Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav Chairperson Independent Director 2 2

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal Member Executive Director 2 2

Mr. Akash Agarwal Member Executive Director 2 2

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Member Independent Director 2 2

5. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SEBI vide its circular dated 05.05.2021 has mandated the constitution of Risk Management Committee for the Top 
1000 Companies as per the market capitalization of the Company for the previous financial year. Therefore, In line 
with the above SEBI circular and amended Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors has constituted the Risk Management Committee at their meeting held on 
28th June, 2021.

Composition, category of Directors and number of meetings attended:

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particular of Attendance
No. of meetings 
held during the 

Members’ Tenure

No. of meetings 
attended by the 

Member
Mr. Akash Agarwal Chairperson Executive Director 2 2

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal Member Independent Director 2 2

*Mr. Manshu Tandon Member Executive 2 2

* Mr. Manshu Tandon is designated as CEO of the Company.

The Committee is delegated and empowered to do the 
following:

1) Monitoring and reviewing of the risk management 
plan of the Company;

2) Review/monitor the cyber security/cyber risk to the 
Company’s business;

3) To formulate a detailed risk management policy 
which shall include: 

a. A framework for identification of internal and 
external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in 
particular including financial, operational, sectoral, 
sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), 
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as 
may be determined by the Committee. 

b.  Measures for risk mitigation including systems and 
processes for internal control of identified risks. 

c. Business continuity plan. 

4) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes 
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 
risks associated with the business of the Company; 

5) To monitor and oversee implementation of the 
risk management policy, including evaluating the 
adequacy of risk management systems; 

6) To periodically review the risk management policy, 
at least once in two years, including by considering 
the changing industry dynamics and evolving 
complexity; 

7) To keep the board of directors informed about 
the nature and content of its discussions, 
recommendations and actions to be taken; 

8) The appointment, removal and terms of 
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) 
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management 
Committee;

9) The Committee has the powers to seek information 
from any employee, obtain outside legal or other 
professional advice and secure attendance of 
outsiders with relevant expertise.

6. ESOP Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has also 
constituted an ESOP allotment Committee, the said 
Committee has been constituted with the primary 
objective/function of allotment of equity shares to the 
employees of the Company upon exercise of ESOP 
Options under Company’s ESOP Scheme, 2016.
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Separate meeting of the Independent Directors

During the year 2022, a separate meeting of Independent 
Director’s was held on March 28, 2022 as required under 
Schedule IV (Code of Independent Directors) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015 inter alia to:

•	 Review the performance of Non - Independent 
Director’s and the Board as a whole;

•	 Review the Performance of the Managing Director 
of the Company, taking in to account the views of 
Non – Executive Directors;

•	 Assess the quality, quantity and timeline of flow of 
information between the Company Management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

•	 Develop understanding of Company’s people and 
its key stakeholders.

Governance in Subsidiary Companies

The Company has one wholly owned unlisted subsidiary 
incorporated in India, namely V2 Smart Manufacturing 
Private Limited, which was incorporated on October 25, 
2019. 

The Board has approved a “Policy for determining Material 
Subsidiaries” of the Company and the same is available on 
the website of the Company at https://www.v2retail.com/
wp-content/uploads/2018/08/investors_166241221.pdf

The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the 
financial statements of its subsidiary, in particular, the 
investments made by the subsidiary company.

The Minutes of the Board Meetings of the unlisted 
subsidiary company are placed at the Board Meeting(s) 
of the Company held at the end of every quarter for 
approval of financial results.

The Management periodically brings to the attention 
of the Board of Directors, a statement of all significant 
transactions and arrangements entered into by the 
unlisted subsidiary company.

DISCLOSURES

a. Related-party transactions

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 the Company 
has formulated a policy on materiality of related 

party transactions and on dealings with related party 
transactions. The policy for Transactions with Related 
Parties can be accessed at: www.v2retail.com.

All related party transactions are approved by the audit 
committee prior to the transaction. Related party 
transactions of repetitive natures are approved by audit 
committee on omnibus basis for one financial year at a 
time. All transactions pursuant to omnibus approval are 
reviewed by the audit committee on a quarterly basis.

A confirmation as to compliance of related party 
transaction as per SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 is also 
sent along with quarterly compliance report on corporate 
governance.

There were no material significant related-party 
transactions and all contracts / agreements/ transactions 
entered into during the period with the related parties 
were carried out at arm’s length at the fair market value.

Details of such transactions as per requirements of IND-
AS-24 are disclosed in Notes to the audited accounts. A 
statement of these transactions was also placed before 
the Audit Committee and in the Board meetings from 
time to time.

b. Details of non-compliance by the Company, 
penalties and strictures imposed on the Company 
by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory 
authority, on any matter related to capital markets, 
during the last three years.

 There has been no instance of any non-
compliance.

c. Disclosure of Vigil Mechanism Policy and access 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism Policy, 
pursuant to which the Director(s) and employee(s) of the 
Company (including their representative bodies, if any) 
have open access to the Authorised Person/ Committee 
member, as the case may be, and also to the Chairman 
of Audit Committee, whenever exceptionally required, 
in connection with any grievance, which is concerned 
with unethical behaviour, frauds and other illegitimate 
activities in Company. The Vigil Mechanism Policy 
adopted by the Company is available on the website of 
the Company i.e. www.v2retail.com.

The Company did not receive any complaint from any 
Director and employee pursuant to Vigil Mechanism 
Policy during the financial year 2021-22.

The Composition, category of Directors and number of meetings held of the said committee during  are as under :

Name of the Member Designation in 
the Committee

Directorship Particular of Attendance
Date of the Meeting Attendance at 

the Meeting 
Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal Chairperson Executive Director July 05, 2021 Yes

Mrs. Uma Agarwal Member Executive Director Yes

Mr. Akash Agarwal Member Executive Director Yes
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d. Policy on determination of materiality for 
disclosures

The Company has adopted a policy on determination 
of materiality for disclosures and the same is available 
on the website of the Company at https://www.v2retail.
com/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/statutory-policy-
document.pdf. The company has complied with 
Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

e. Policy on archival and preservation of documents

The Company has adopted a policy on archival and 
preservation of documents. The company has complied 
with Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

f. Risk management

The Company has framed a comprehensive enterprise 
risk management policy and a new risk register, not only 
to manage risks but also to minimize their impact. This 
policy is periodically reviewed by the management and 
the board in consultation with reputed and specialized 
consultants. The policy is updated as per requirements 
to ensure that the risks are properly dealt and mitigated. 
The Risk Management procedures are discussed and 
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors every quarter.

g. Observance of the secretarial standards issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

The ICSI has issued secretarial standards on board 
meetings, general meetings, payment of dividend, 
maintenance of register and records, minutes of 
meetings, transmission of shares and debentures, 
passing of resolution by circulation, affixing of common 
seal among others. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has 
mandated SS-1, and SS-2 with respect to board meetings 
and general meetings respectively.

The Company has complied with these standards, 
besides voluntarily complying with the other standards.

h. Audit report for reconciliation of share capital:

M/s. Sunpreet & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries 
carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total 
admitted equity share capital with NSDL and the CSDL 
and the total issued and listed equity share capital. 
The audit report confirms that the total issued/paid up 
capital is in agreement with the total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

i. Disclosure on compliance with Corporate 
Governance Requirements specified in SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015

The Company has complied with the requirements of 
Part C (Corporate Governance Report) of sub-paras (2) to 
(10) of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance 
requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clauses 
(b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and necessary disclosures 
thereof have been made in this Corporate Governance 
Report.

j. Details of fees paid/payable to the Statutory 
Auditors and all entities in the network firm/
network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a 
part, by the Company and its subsidiaries during 
the year, are given below:

(In Rs.)

Particulars By the 
Company

By 
Subsidiary

Total 
Amount

Statutory Audit 25,30,000 2,00,000 27,30,000

Out of Pocket 
Expenses

2,26,000 - 2,26,000

Total 27,56,000 2,00,000 29,56,000

k. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and 
harassment-free workplace. The Company has complied 
with the applicable provisions of the aforesaid Act, and 
the rules framed thereunder, including constitution of 
the Internal Complaints Committee. The Company has 
in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with 
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the same is available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.v2retail.com/wp-content/
uploads/2018/08/investors_78424736.pdf. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees, etc.) 
are covered under this Policy.

Status of complaints as on March 31, 2022:

S. 
No.

Particulars Number of 
Complaints

1) Number of complaints filed 
during the financial year

Nil

2) Number of complaints disposed 
off during the financial year

Nil

3) Number of complaints pending 
at the end of the financial year

Nil

Declaration pursuant to Code of Conduct:

In terms of Regulation 26(3) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The Board has laid 
down a Code of Conduct for its members and senior 
management personnel of the Company. The Code of 
Conduct is available on the website of the Company 
(www.v2retail.com). All the Board members and senior 
management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the Code of Conduct. The Chief Executive Officer 
has affirmed to the Board that this Code of Conduct 
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has been compiled by the Board members and senior 
management personnel.

General shareholders’ information

Resignation /Appointment of Director

In accordance with provisions of Section 152 of the 
Act read with Rules made thereunder, Mrs. Uma 

Agarwal (DIN: 03194632) is liable to retire by rotation 
at this AGM and being eligible, offer herself for 
reappointment.

A brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/
reappointed during the year, is provided in the Notice of 
the Annual General Meeting forming part of the Annual 
report.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings and special resolutions passed therein areas follows:

A. DETAILS OF LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD

Financial 
year

Date Time Venue Special Business transacted and resolution passed if any

2020-21 September 
28, 2021

10:00 A.M. Through Video 
Conferencing 
(VC)

•	 Re-appointment of Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal as Chairman 
& Managing Director and payment of remuneration upto 
Rs. 5,00,000/- per month to Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing Director.

2019-20 September 
28, 2020

10:00 A.M. Through Video 
Conferencing 
(VC)

•	 Appointment of Mr. Lalit Kumar (DIN 00025150) as 
Independent Director.

•	 Appointment of Mr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal (DIN 
00406817) as Independent Director.

•	 Appointment of Mrs. Archana Surendra Yadav (DIN 
07335198) as Independent Director.

•	 Payment of remuneration upto Rs. 5,00,000/- per month 
to Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal, Chairman & Managing 
Director.

•	 Payment of remuneration upto Rs. 5,00,000/- per month 
to Mr. Akash Agarwal, Whole Time Director & CFO.

•	 Payment of remuneration upto Rs. 5,00,000/- per month 
to Mrs. Uma Agarwal, Whole Time Director.

•	 Ratification of Payment to Executive Directors for FY 
2020.

2018-19 September 
07, 2019

10:00 A.M. Khasra No. 1138, 
Shani Bazar  
Chowk, Rajokari, 
New Delhi 
110038

•	 Alteration of the Article of Association of the company.

•	 Appointment of Ms. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza as Non-
executive Nominee Director

•	 Appointment of Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu as Independent 
Director

B. DETAILS OF LAST THREE EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD

Financial 
year

Date Time Venue Special business transacted and resolution passed if any

2017-2018 January 
12, 2018

10:00 A.M. Khasra No. 1138, 
Shani Bazar Chowk, 
Rajokari, New Delhi 
110038

•	 Alteration of the Article of Association of the company.
•	 Investment(S), Loans, Guarantees and Security In Excess 

Of Limits Specified  Under Section 186 of Companies Act, 
2013

2017-2018 October 
6, 2017

10:00 A.M. Khasra No. 1138, 
Shani Bazar Chowk, 
Rajokari, New Delhi 
110038

•	 To offer and issue equity Shares on preferential basis to 
Non- Promoter and/ or Non Promoter Group.

2015-2016 April 20, 
2015

10:00 A.M. Khasra No. 1138, 
Shani Bazar Chowk, 
Rajokari, New Delhi 
110038

•	 To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the company.
•	 To offer, issue and allot, in one or more tranches 

convertible warrants on preferential basis to Non- 
Promoter and/ or Non Promoter Group.
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C. Whether any special resolution passed last year 
through postal ballot: No

D. Whether any special resolution passed through 
postal ballot during the year: 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the 
Company has not passed any special/ordinary resolution 
through Postal Ballot. 

E. Whether any special/ordinary resolution is 
proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: 
No

F. Details of resolutions passed through e-voting:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
Company provided members the facility to exercise 
their right to vote on resolutions transacted at AGM by 
electronic means, provided by M/s Link Intime India 
Private Limited (Intime).

Green initiatives undertaken as per the directives of the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

The Company as a responsible corporate citizen 
welcomes and supports the Green Initiatives taken by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India by its 
circular, enabling electronic delivery of documents to the 
shareholders. The Company has already implemented 
to send the communication to the shareholders by 
electronic mode at their e-mail addresses registered with 
the depository/registrar and share transfer agent and all 
such communications were immediately uploaded at 
the Company’s website. This helped in prompt delivery 
of documents avoiding loss in transit.

The Company had requested the shareholders to register 
their e-mail ids with the Registrar and Share Transfer 
agents of the Company or to their depository participants 
so as to enable the Company to use the same for serving 
documents to them electronically.

Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of multiple 
mailing

The members who are holding multiple folios are 
requested to consolidate their holding under single folio 
to avoid multiple mailing which will reduce cost and 
duplicity of efforts.

Code for prevention of Insider-Trading practices

As per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations 2015 as amended, the Company Secretary 
is the compliance officer and is responsible for setting 
forth policies, procedures, monitoring adherence to the 
rules for the preservation of price-sensitive information, 
pre-clearance of trade, monitoring of trades and 
implementation of the code of conduct for trading in 
Company’s securities under the overall supervision of 
the Board.

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for 
regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by 
designated person for the prevention of insider trading 
as well as a code of fair disclosure and price sensitive 
information. All the Directors on the Board, senior 
management at all locations and other designated 
persons who could be privy to unpublished price 
sensitive information of the Company are governed by 
these codes and the same are available on the Company’s 
website i.e. www.v2retail.com. 
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To, 

Members of V2 Retail Limited

Sub: Declaration under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

I, Manshu Tandon, Chief Executive Officer of V2 Retail Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief, declare that all 
the members of the Board of Directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code 
of conduct of Board of Directors & Senior Management for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Manshu Tandon

Date : May 30, 2022  Chief Executive Officer 
Place : New Delhi  

Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy

With an objective to indemnify the Company as a result of 
Foreign Exchange fluctuations, the Company has framed 
a structure of Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy 
which elaborates on the process of risk management and 
to protect profits/ insulate itself against losses on account 
of forex fluctuations. 

Dividend Distribution Policy

As required under Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations 2015, Dividend Distribution policy is given 
separately in the Annual Report and same is also available 
at the Company’s website at www.v2retail.com.

Means of communication

i. Quarterly /Annual results

The Notice and Financial Result are generally published 
in The Mint/Financial Express / Business Standard/
Jansatta/Naya India within 48 Hours after approval of 
Board of Directors and are displayed on the Company’s 
website www.v2retail.com.

ii. Presentations/News releases

Presentations and official press release made to the media, 
analysts, and institutional investors, among others are 
displayed on the Company’s website www.v2retail.com. 
The same are also disseminated to the Stock Exchanges 
as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

iii. Website

The Company’s corporate website www.v2retail.
com contains comprehensive information about the 
Company. An exclusive section is for investors wherein 
annual reports, quarterly/half-yearly financial results, 
notices, shareholding patterns, policies among others 
are available for reference or download.

iv. Annual report

The annual report containing inter alia audited annual 
accounts, financial statements, reports of the auditors 
and directors, chairman’s statement, management 
discussion and analysis report and other important 
information is circulated to the members and displayed 
on the Company’s website.

v. Designated exclusive mail-id

The Company has designated email-id exclusive for 
investor services– investors’ cs@v2retail.net.in which has 
been displaced on the Company’s website www.v2retail.
com.

vi. Intimation to stock exchanges

The Company intimates the Stock Exchanges about 
all price sensitive information or such other matters 
which in its opinion are material and of relevance to the 
shareholders.

vii. Investor relations

The Company’s executives participate in investor 
meetings including conferences in India and abroad 
from time to time organized by financial institutions, 
analyst and broking houses. A conference call is done 
every quarter after declaration of financial results to 
address the queries of analysts.

Shareholders’ information

A. Company Registration Details:

The Company is registered in Delhi, India, under 
the jurisdiction of Registrar of Companies, Delhi. 
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the 
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
L74999DL2001PLC147724.

B. Financial Year

April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022
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C. Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2021-22:

DAY AND DATE Friday, September 30,2022 

TIME 9:30 A.M

VENUE (Registered Office of the 
Company)

The Company is conducting meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) pursuant to the General Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/P/ 2020/79 
dated 12th May 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(“SEBI Circular”)

FINANCIAL YEAR April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022

BOOK CLOSURE DATES 24th September, 2022  to 30th September, 2022

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE N.A. 

REGISTERED OFFICE Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi Village Kapashera, Tehsil Vasant 
Vihar New Delhi South-West Delhi -110037 

CORPORATE OFFICE Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi Village Kapashera, Tehsil Vasant 
Vihar New Delhi South West Delhi  -110037

D.  Stock Exchange Info:

Stock Exchange on which shares 
are listed

BSE Limited - Mumbai
National Stock Exchange of India Limited – Mumbai

Stock Code BSE Limited: 532867
National Stock Exchange of India Limited: V2RETAIL

Listing Fees The Company has paid the requisite Annual Listing and Custodial Fees to 
the Stock Exchanges and Depositories viz. Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) and NSDL, respectively for the financial year 2021-22.

E. Market Price Data:

The Company’s equity shares are listed on BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The high and low 
share prices of your Company’s shares at BSE and NSE (based on closing price) for the year is as under:

(In Rs.)

Month V2 Retail Share Price on BSE V2 Retail Share Price on NSE

High Low Close High Low Close

Apr-21 140.00 98.80 106.15 141.95 99.45 106.45

May-21 134.90 102.55 125.45 134.95 102.00 125.50

Jun-21 147.00 117.00 117.50 144.50 116.65 118.05

Jul-21 142.90 117.00 124.15 143.30 117.00 123.95

Aug-21 129.45 101.50 107.75 127.75 102.75 107.90

Sep-21 165.00 106.35 149.90 164.00 105.30 150.15

Oct-21 202.95 141.60 160.30 202.70 141.55 162.75

Nov-21 206.95 153.75 156.45 205.80 154.35 155.55

Dec-21 191.55 153.10 163.30 192.90 149.30 162.05

Jan-22 168.65 143.00 147.05 168.95 142.45 147.30

Feb-22 169.25 137.50 147.40 169.70 140.00 148.20

Mar-22 154.90 138.75 146.80 153.30 138.30 146.50
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Graphical Representation of share price of V2 Retail Limited at BSE 

Graphical Representation of share price of V2 Retail Limited at NSE 
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F.  Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2022

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING (SHARES)

Sr. No. Shareholding of Shares Shareholder % of Total Total Shares % of Total

1 1 to 500 18,046 90.2797 15,12,968 4.3995

2 501 to 1000 861 4.3074 6,93,045 2.0153

3 1001 to 2000 447 2.2362 6,64,251 1.9316

4 2001 to 3000 156 0.7804 3,99,697 1.1623

5 3001 to 4000 86 0.4302 3,08,868 0.8982

6 4001 to 5000 60 0.3002 2,81,753 0.8193

7 5001 to 10000 145 0.7254 10,82,050 3.1465

8 10001 to ********** 188 0.9405 2,94,46,709 85.6274

  

Total 19,989 100.00 3,43,89,341 100.00

G. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Transfers of Equity Shares are handled by Link Intime 
India Private Limited. The transferee is required to furnish 
transfer deed duly completed in all respects together with 
share certificate to Link Intime India Private Limited at 
the below address in order to enable the Registrar and 
transfer agent to process the transfer and during the 
FY 2021-22 company has complied with the process of 
transfer and consolidation of the shares. 

Demat requests are confirmed within stipulated time 
period from the date of receipt of request. The Company 
obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice half 
yearly Certificate of Compliance with the share transfer 
formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and files a copy of the said certificate 
with Stock Exchanges. 

H. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2022

Listing of shareholders category (Summary)

Category Demated 
Shares

Demat
Holders

Physical
Shares

Physical
Holders

Total
Shares

Total
Value

Total
Percent

Corporate Bodies (Promoter 
Co)

1,45,79,426 5 0 0 1,45,79,426 14,57,94,260 42.40

Clearing Members 36,714 36 0 0 36,714 3,67,140 0.11

Other Bodies Corporate 16,45,623 145 0 0 16,45,623 1,64,56,230 4.79

Hindu Undivided Family 7,49,639 495 0 0 7,49,639 74,96,390 2.18

Mutual Funds 5,27,456 2 0 0 5,27,456 52,74,560 1.53

Non Resident Indians 2,91,709 295 0 0 2,91,709 29,17,090 0.85

Public 1,01,77,983 18,931 70,090 64 1,02,48,073 10,24,80,730 29.80

Promoters 38,40,391 7 38,40,391 3,84,03,910 11.17

Body Corporate - Ltd 
Liability Partnership

2,54,477 7 0 0 2,54,477 25,44,770 0.74

Foreign Portfolio Investors 
(Corporate)

22,15,833 2 22,15,833 2,21,58,330 6.44

TOTAL: 3,43,19,251 19,925 70,090 64 3,43,89,341 34,38,93,410 100.00
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I. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Equity Shares of your Company are under compulsory dematerialization mode as on March 31, 2022. The ISIN 
for the Equity Shares of the Company is INE945H01013. 

99.80% of shares of the Company are dematerialized as on March 31, 2022. Trading in Equity shares of the Company 
is permitted only in Demat mode.

The Equity shares of your Company are regularly traded on 31st March 2022, the trading details of the shares of the 
Company for the month of March 31, 2022,are given below:

BSE NSE

Total Traded Quantity (No. of shares) 80,564 8,45,448

Turnover (Amount in Rs.) 1,15,69,983 12,28,15,941

J. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on 
Equity:

There are no GDR/ ADR/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments pending conversion or any other instruments 
which can have an impact on the equity share capital of the Company.

K. Credit Ratings

ICRA Limited has assigned ‘BBB+’(Stable) credit rating during the year to the Company for its Fund based working 
capital facilities (Cash Credit) to the extent of Rs. 50 crores availed by the Company. 

The said rating was revised from ‘A-‘ (Stable) to ‘BBB+‘(Stable) during the year by ICRA Limited. 

L. Address of Correspondence:

Correspondence with the Company R&T Agent:
(Link Intime India Private Limited)

Mr. Sudhir Kumar
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi Village Kapashera, 
Tehsil Vasant Vihar New Delhi South- West Delhi – 110037
Tel No: 011-41771850
Email: cs@vrl.net.in/cs@v2retail.net.in

Noble Height, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH-2, C-1 Block, 
LSC,Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-
110058

Tel No: 011-41410592
Email: delhi@linkintime.co.in 

Financial calendar

Financial year: April 1, 2021,to March 31, 2022

The board meetings for approval of financial results for financial year 2021-22 were held on the following dates:

Period First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Date 13.08.2021 11.11.2021 14.02.2022 30.05.2022

The tentative dates of the board meetings for consideration of quarterly and annual financial results for the financial 
year 2022-23 are as follows:

Period First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Date On or before  
August 14, 2022

On or before 
November 14, 2022

On or before 
February 14, 2023

On or before  
May 30, 2023
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Link Intime India Private Limited
(formely known as Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
Noble Height, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH-2, C-1 Block, LSC, 
Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058
Tel No: 011-41410592
Email: delhi@linkintime.co.in

All activities in relation to both share transfer facility are 
maintained by the registrar and Share transfer agent of 
the Company, a compliance certificate in this respect 
duly signed by the compliance officer and the authorised 
representative of the share transfer agent is submitted 
to the exchanges within 30 days from the end of the 
financial year with the requirements of sub- regulation 
7(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the requests 
for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed 
unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form 
with a depository and transmission, or transposition of 
securities held in physical or dematerialised form shall be 
effected only in dematerialised form. 

Applications for transfer of shares are received at the office 
of the Registrar and Share transfer agent of the Company. 
All valid transfers/requests are processed within 15 days 
from the date of receipt.

Physical shares received for dematerialization are 
processed and completed within a period of 21 days from 
the date of receipt, provided they are in order in all respects. 
Bad deliveries are immediately returned to depository 
participants under advice to the shareholders.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 40(9) of SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015, a certificate on the compliance 
of share transfer formalities on annual basis, quarterly 
certificate for timely dematerialization of the shares as 
per SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Regulation, 1996 
are sent to the Stock Exchanges where the shares are 
listed.

Reconciliation of share capital audit report

Reconciliation of share capital audit report by M/s. 
Sunpreet & Co., Practicing Company Secretary for 
reconciliation of the share capital confirming that the total 
issued capital of the Company is in agreement with the 
total number of shares in physical form and total number 
of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL, 

is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis. A copy 
of the audit report is submitted to the Stock Exchanges 
where company’s shares are listed.

Certificate from a company secretary in practice that 
none of the directors on the board of the company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of Companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority

On the basis of written representations/ declaration 
received from the Directors, as on 31st March 2022, M/s 
Sunpreet & Co., Company Secretaries (Membership 
No. F11075, CP No. 16084), have issued a certificate, 
confirming that none of the Directors on Board of the 
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Director of Companies by 
SEBI/ MCA or any such authority.

Mandatory requirements

The Company was fully compliant with mandatory 
requirements SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

Non-mandatory requirements:

1. The Board (maintenance of Chairman’s office):

 The Company has an Executive Chairman and as 
such does not require a Non-Executive Chairman’s 
Office.

2. Shareholders’ rights

 The quarterly and half-yearly financial results are 
published in widely circulated national and local 
dailies and are displayed on the Company’s website 
www.v2retail.com.

3. Audit qualification

 Statutory Auditor of the company has given the 
modified/qualified Auditor Report for the year 
ended March 31, 2022 and same has been specified 
in Board Report along with management response 
thereon.

4. Reporting of internal auditor

 The Company has a well-defined and structured 
internal audit control system to ensure reliability 
of operational and financial information, statutory/
regulatory compliances and safeguard of the assets 
of the Company. The internal audit or reports directly 
to the Audit Committee.
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CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

Certificate pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015

A) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2022 and that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting 
and we have disclosed to the Auditor and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies.

D) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting, if any, during the year;

2) Significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements; and 

3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting

Sd/-        Sd/-
Manshu Tandon      Akash Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer      Chief Financial Officer

Date:  May 30, 2022
Place: New Delhi
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE 
OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. 

We, M/s. Sunpreet & Co., Practicing Company Secretary, have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance Report prepared by the V2 Retail Limited (“the Company”), for the year ended on 31st March 2022, it 
contains details as stipulated in chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) with respect to Corporate Governance. This report 
is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the 
Company.

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure 
the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Our Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for 
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the 
Company.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations 
made by the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the condition of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: New Delhi For Sunpreet & Co.
Date: 14.07.2022 Formerly known as Sunpreet Singh & Associates

Company Secretaries

(Sunpreet Singh)
    M. No. F11075
     
 C.P. No. 16084

 UDIN: F011075D000625557
Firm Unique Code S2016DE418400
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
V2 RETAIL LIMITED
Khasra No. 928 Extended Lal Dora
Abadi Village Kapashera Tehsil Vasant Vihar,
South-West Delhi – 110037

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of M/s 
V2 Retail Limited having CIN L74999DL2001PLC147724 and having registered office at Khasra No. 928 Extended Lal 
Dora Abadi Village Kapashera Tehsil Vasant Vihar South West Delhi-110037 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
authority.

Sl. No. Name of the Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company

1 Ram Chandra Agarwal 00491885 23/07/2001

2 Lalit Kumar 00025150 27/01/2020

3 Arun Kumar Roopanwal 00406817 27/01/2020

4 Uma Agarwal 00495945 23/07/2001

5 Harbir Singh Sidhu 01943424 30/04/2019

6 Akash Agarwal 03194632 29/09/2017

7 Archana Surendra Yadav 07335198 27/01/2020

8 Rochelle Susanna Dsouza 07854452 28/11/2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: New Delhi For Sunpreet & Co.
Date: 14.07.2022 Formerly known as Sunpreet Singh & Associates

Company Secretaries

(Sunpreet Singh)
    M. No. F11075
     
 C.P. No. 16084

 UDIN: F011075D000625557
Firm Unique Code S2016DE418400
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR)
Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended and National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environment and Economic Responsibilities (NVG) as issued 
and revised by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, the “Business Responsibility Report” (BRR) 
of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 forming part of this Annual Report is as follows: 

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L74999DL2001PLC147724

2. Name of the Company V2 RETAIL LIMITED

3. Registered Address V2 Retail Ltd, Khasra No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi 
Village, Kapashera Border, Tehsil Vasant Vihar, New 
Delhi-110037

4. Website www.v2retail.com

5. Email ID cs@v2retail.net.in

6. Financial Year Reported April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022

7. Sector (s) that the Company is engaged in (Industrial 
activity code-wise)

Name and Description of main products/ services: 
Retail sale of clothing, footwear and leather articles in 
specialized stores : (NIC Main Class- 4771)
Retail sale of readymade garments, hosiery goods, 
other articles of clothing and clothing accessories : 
(NIC Code - 47711)

8. List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

1. Retail Trade of Apparels & garments 
2. Retail Trade of Fashion Accessories
3. Retail Trade of Textiles products

9. Total number of locations where business activity 
is undertaken by the Company
i. Number of international locations
ii. Number of national locations

Number of international locations - NIL
As on March 31, 2022, the Company operates 101 
retail stores spread across 16 states and 87 cities; a 
warehouse and a Corporate office

10. Markets served by the Company- Local/ State/ 
National/ International

India

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1. Paid Up Capital (B) 34.39 Crores

2. Total Turnover (B) 629.22 Crores (Standalone)

3. Total profit/(Loss) after taxes (B) (12.90) Crores (Standalone)

4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility as 
percentage of profit after tax (%)

Nil

5. List of activities in which expenditure in point 4 above 
has been incurred

The Company has identified the following CSR 
activities as per its CSR Policy :
•	 Environmental	 sustainability	 by	 adopting	

best ecological practices and encouraging 
conservation/judicious use of water and other 
natural re-sources. 

•	 Promoting	healthcare,	sanitation	and	making	
safe drinking water available 

•	 Employment	 enhancement	 through	 training	
and vocational skill development 

•	 Promoting	education	and	sports
•	 To	use	environmental	friendly	and	safe	process	

in production
The Company is committed to fulfil its CSR 
responsibilities.
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any subsidiary company/ 
companies?

Yes, the Company has one wholly owned subsidiary 
company namely, V2 Smart Manufacturing Private 
Limited.

2. Do the subsidiary company/companies participate in 
the BR initiatives of the parent Company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s).

At present, the BR initiatives have been undertaken 
at parent Company level.

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors 
etc.) that the Company does business with participate in 
the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate 
the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 
30-60%, more than 60%].

No

The Company will promote BR initiatives in its 
value chain.

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/ Directors responsible for BR

a) Details of the Director / Directors responsible for the implementation of BR policy/policies :

i. DIN Number: 00491885

ii. Name: Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal

iii. Designation: Chairman & Managing Director

b) Details of the BR Head :

i. DIN Number: 03194632

ii. Name: Mr. Akash Agarwal 

iii. Designation: Whole-time Director & CFO

iv. Telephone Number: 011 41771850

v. E-mail ID: akash@v2retail.net.in

LIST OF PRINCIPLES:

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency & Accountability.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

Principle 6: Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

Principle 7: Businesses should engage in influencing public and regulatory policy in a responsible manner.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide support customer value.
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2. Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines) BR Policy/policies (reply with YES/ NO)

2a.  Details of Compliance: 

Sr. No. Guidelines P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. Do you have a policy/ policies for …. Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2. Has the policy being formulated in 
consultation with the relevant stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3. Does the policy confirm to any national / 
international standards? If yes, specify? (50 
words)1

The polices has been drafted on the basis of applicable law, 
code of conduct & applicable standards.

4. Has the policy being approved by the Board? 
If yes, has it been signed by the MD/ Owner/ 
CEO/ appropriate Board Director?2

Policies mandated under the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 are approved by the Board 
and other policies are approved by the Managing Director / 
functional heads of the Company as appropriate from time 
to time

5. Does the company have a specified 
committee of the Board/ Director/ Official to 
oversee the implementation of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6. Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed 
online?3

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

7. Has the policy been formally communicated 
to all relevant internal and external 
stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8. Does the company have in-house structure 
to implement the policy/ policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9. Does the Company have a grievance 
Redressal mechanism related to the policy/ 
policies to address stakeholders’ grievances 
related to the policy/ policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10. Has the company carried out independent 
audit/ evaluation of the working of this policy 
by an internal or external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

(1)The policies are in compliance with applicable National/ International laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards. The 
policies are in conformance to the spirit of International standards.
(2) & (3) As per Company practice, the policies that are approved by the Board, are posted on the website of the Company  
www.v2retail.com. 

2b. If answer to S. No.1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

Sr. No. Guidelines P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. The company has not understood the Principles

NOT APPLICABLE

2. The company is not at a stage where it finds itself 
in a position to formulate and implement the 
policies on specified principles

3. The company does not have financial or 
manpower resources available for the task

4. It is planned to be done within next 6 months

5. It is planned to be done within the next 1 year

6. Any other reason (please specify)
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3. Governance related to BR 

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, committee 
of the Board or CEO assesses the BR performance of the Company- 
within 3 months, 3-6 months, annually, more than 1 year

The Company has decided to assess the 
BR performance annually and as and when 
required.

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the 
hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it is published?

Yes, the Company has decided to publish BR 
Report as a part of Annual Report every year.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption 
cover only the company? Yes/No. 
Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs /Others?

Yes

No

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Nil

Principle 2

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose 
design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns, risks and/or opportunities.

The Company designs its products and services in a 
way that they comply with the mandatorily required 
standards under the requisite laws. 
The company strictly forbidden hires or use of child 
force at work place and expect its vendors to follow the 
same.
The Company make all possible efforts to provide 
a healthy and safe working environment to its 
employees.

2. For each such product, provide the following 
details in respect of resource use (energy, water, 
raw material etc.) per unit of product(optional): 
i. Reduction during sourcing/production/ 
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?
ii. Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, 
water) has been achieved since the previous year?

The Company is not engaged in the business of 
manufacturing goods.

Considering the nature of business of the Company 
said questions are not applicable to the Company.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 
If yes, what percentages of your inputs were 
sourced sustainably? Also provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so.

The Company is putting in place procedure for 
sustainable sourcing of products sold by the 
Company.

4. Has the company taken any steps to procure 
goods and services from local and small 
producers, including communities surrounding 
their place of work? If yes, what steps have been 
taken to improve their capacity and capability of 
local and small vendors?

Yes 
The Company is contributing to the society at large by 
procuring goods & services from small scale industries 
and small producers.
The Company also employs locals to the extent 
available.
We provide early payment facilities to MSMED vendors 
to enable them to manage their finances properly.

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage 
of recycling of products and waste (separately as 
≤ 5%, 5-10%, ≥10%). Also, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so

The Company is not into manufacturing, thus there is 
not much waste generation in the Company, the waste 
generated at its offices and stores are managed as per 
the applicable laws & internal waste disposal process.
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Principle 3

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. Please indicate the Total number of employees as 
on March 31, 2022.

2,889

2. Please indicate the Total number of employees 
hired on temporary/contractual/ casual basis as on 
March 31, 2022.

Permanent: 2,422
Contractual: 467

3. Please indicate the Number of permanent women 
employees as on March 31, 2022.

221

4. Please indicate the Number of permanent 
employees with disabilities as on March 31, 2022.

Nil

5. Do you have an employee association that is 
recognized by management?

No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees are 
members of this recognised employee association?

Nil

7. Please indicate the Number of complaints relating 
to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, 
sexual harassment in the last financial year and 
pending, as on the end of the financial year

Category No. of 
complaints 
filed during 

the Financial 
year

No. of 
complaints 
pending as 

on the end of 
Financial Year

Child Labour/ Forced 
Labour/ Involuntary 
Labour/ 

NIL NIL

Sexual Harassment NIL NIL

Discriminatory 
Employment

NIL NIL

8. What percentage of your under mentioned 
employees were given safety and skill up-gradation 
training in the last year?
•	 Permanent	Employees
•	 Permanent	Women	Employees
•	 Casual/Temporary/Contractual	Employees
•	 Employees	with	Disabilities

100% 

Principle 4

Sr. No. Particulars Remark
1. Has the company mapped its internal and external 

stakeholders? Yes/No
Yes

2. Out of the above, has the company identified 
the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders

Yes

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so

As part of corporate social responsibility programme 
following initiatives are identified:
•	 To	 ensure	 environmental	 sustainability	

by adopting best ecological practices and 
encouraging conservation/judicious use of 
water and other natural re-sources. 

•	 Promoting	 healthcare,	 sanitation	 and	 making	
safe drinking water available 

•	 Employment	 enhancement	 through	 training	
and vocational skill development 

•	 Promoting	education	and	sports
•	 Ensuring	sustainable	environment
•	 To	use	environmental	friendly	and	safe	process	

in production
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Principle 5

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover 
only the company or extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / 
Suppliers/ Contractors /NGOs/Others?

The policy is basically applicable to the 
Company. 

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in 
the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily 
resolved by the management?

Nil

Principle 6

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
company or extends to the Group/ Joint Ventures/ 
Suppliers/ Contractors/ NGOs/ others.

The policy is basically applicable to the Company. 

2. Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give 
hyperlink for webpage etc. 

The Company has taken many energy initiatives 
such as: 

•	 Installation	 of	 LED	 lights	 &	 power	 saving	
equipment at all stores to reduce the electricity 
consumption

•	 optimum	use	of	air	conditioner	(AC)	at	the	stores	
in order to reduce the electricity consumption

•	 Automation	of	processes	 to	reduce	the	use	of	
paper

•	 Installation	of	glass	doors,	walls	and	windows	
at the stores to use the daylight and reduce 
electricity consumption

•	 Plantation	of	 trees	for	combating	air	pollution	
at warehouse

•	 Eliminate	the	use	of	plastic	bags	at	stores.

3. Does the company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

Yes

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether 
any environmental compliance report is filed?

No

5. Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives 
on-clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable 
energy etc.? Y/N. If yes, please hyperlink for webpage 
etc.

The initiatives taken by the Company towards 
energy conservation during the year under review 
are given in the Board Report

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB 
for the financial year being reported?

Not applicable since the company is in the business 
of Retail.

7. Number of show cause/legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year.

Nil
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Principle 7

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber 
or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones 
that your business deals with

Nil

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above 
associations for the advancement or improvement 
of public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad 
areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, 
Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, 
Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable 
Business Principles, Others)

Whenever Policy guidelines are issued, the 
company has been providing its suggestions to 
the Government and above Trade / Chamber 
Associations. Company officials have also attended 
seminars / workshops organized by the apex 
organizations for facilitating views on the policies.

Principle 8

Sr. No Particulars Remark

1. Does the company has specified programmes/
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

Yes, details are mentioned in Annexure IV of the 
Directors’ Report.

2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/ external NGO/
government structures/any other organization?

The Company has been implementing various CSR 
projects through in-house teams. 

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative?

Periodic review is undertaken by CSR Committee 
of the Board.

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects Amount in INR 
and the details of the projects undertaken?

Details are mentioned in Annexure IV of the 
Directors’ Report.

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by 
the community? Please explain in 50 words, or so

The primary & immediate beneficiaries of CSR 
policy of the Company would be the poor, needy 
and other section of the community/society 
especially from the areas surrounding & near to the 
Company Operation Areas

Principal 9

Sr. No. Particulars Remark

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 
cases were pending as on the end of financial year.

Customer Satisfaction is of utmost important 
for the Company. The Company has a dedicated 
customer care representative/cell to handle the day 
to day complaints of the customers. As at the end of 
financial year, no consumer case was pending.

2. Does the company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional 
information)

Not Applicable

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against 
the company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 
behaviour during the last five years and pending as 
on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so.

There are no cases pending in relation to unfair 
trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or 
anti competitive behavior. 

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction trends?

Yes
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of V2 Retail Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone 
financial statements of V2 RetailLimited (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us,except 
for the possible effects of the matters described in 
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India,of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2022, and its loss (including other comprehensive 
loss), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

3. As stated in Note 16(a) to the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, the Company’s 
other equity as at 31 March 2022 includes an 
amount	 of	 ₹	 365.36	 lakhs	 in	 the	 nature	 of	 capital	
reserve arising out of business restructuring 
carried out in earlier years, for which the 
Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary reconciliation and information. 
In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence, we are unable to comment upon the 
appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid 
balance, and the consequential impact, if any, 
on the financial statements. Our opinion on the 
standalone financial statements for the previous 
year ended 31 March 2021 was also modified in 
respect of this matter.

4. As stated in Note 35(a) to the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, the Company’s 
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 include 
certain	contingent	 liabilities	aggregating	 to	 ₹	747.26	
lakhs pertaining to litigations pending with various 

authorities, for which the Company’s management 
has not been able to provide necessary evidence 
in relation to probability of outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits. In the absence 
of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are 
unable to comment upon the appropriateness 
and classification of the aforesaid amounts as 
provision or contingent liabilities as at 31 March 
2022 in accordance with Ind AS 37, “Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” 
and the consequential impact, if any, on the total 
liabilities and loss as at and for the year then ended. 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was also qualified 
in respect of this matter.

5. As described in Note 47to the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, the Company has 
performed physical verification of property, plant 
and equipment during the year ended 31 March 
2022 in accordance with the phased program of 
conducting such verification over a period of 3 
years. However, the Company is in process of 
performing related reconciliation of such physical 
verification with the underlying fixed asset register 
maintained by the Company in respect of property, 
plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of 
Rs 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs 9,162.77 lakhs 
as at 31 March 2022. Pending completion of the 
said reconciliation, we are unable to comment on 
any adjustment that may be required to the carrying 
value of such Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 
March 2022.

6. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statementsunder the provisions of the 
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion.
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Emphasis of Matters

7. We draw attention to Note 46 of the accompanying 
Statement, which describes the uncertainties relating 
to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and 
the management’s evaluation of the impact on the 
standalone financial statements of the Company as 
at the balance sheet date. The extent of the impact of 
these uncertainties on the Company’s operations is 
significantly dependent on future developments, as 
they evolve.

8. We draw attention to Note 44 of the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, which describes 
that an advance amounting to Rs. 1,557.65 lacs (31 
March 2021: Rs. 1,557.65 lacs) outstanding since 
April 2019, as included in Non-current assets as 
at March 31, 2022 has been considered good basis 
management’s assessment of expected renewal of 
the underlying contract with Bennett, Coleman and 
Co. Limited (‘BCCL’) which will be valid till July 7, 
2022, basis past experience and ongoing discussion 
with the BCCL for such renewal. Further, the 

management is confident of the utilisation of such 
advance against future advertisement services to be 
provided by BCCL within the extended period of the 
contract and hence, has considered the aforesaid 
balance as fully recoverable as on date.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

9. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment,were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters.

10. We have determined the matters described below to 
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence and valuation of Inventories 

Refer note 1(iv)(k) for significant accounting policy and 
note 9 and 37 for the financial statement disclosure.

At the end of each reporting period, management of the 
Company assesses whether there is adequate provision 
for inventory losses on account of lower net realizable 
value and obsolete inventory. 

The management applies judgement in determining 
appropriate provisions for inventory losses which 
include:

a) Applying specific identification process to ascertain 
slow moving and obsolete inventory.

b) Assessing the net realizable value of such slow 
moving and obsolete inventory.

In addition to the above, the management adopts a 
cyclical count for physical verification of inventory 
which is a complex exercise owing to the nature of the 
inventory and the multiple locations covered in such 
cyclical counts.

Considering the aforesaid complexities involved in 
cyclical physical verification of inventory which required 
us to undertake alternate audit techniques as described 
in this key audit matter, and significant management 
judgements and estimates required with respect to 
allowance for inventory loss, existence and valuation of 
inventory was determined to be a key audit matter for the 
current year audit.

Our audit included, but was not limited to, the following 
audit procedures over inventory existence and 
valuation: 

•	 Understood	 the	management	 process	 for	 cyclical	
physical counts, identification of slow moving, non-
moving or obsolete inventories and determining 
net realisable value, and evaluated whether such 
processes are consistently followed.

•	 Evaluated	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of controls implemented around 
above mentioned processes throughout the year.

Cyclical physical counts and physical count performed 
subsequent to year end:

•	 Inspected	management’s	 inventory	 count	 records	
and observed physical inventory verification for 
locations selected based on materiality and risk 
considerations.

•	 Tested	 the	 roll-forward	 of	 the	 cyclical	 counts	
performed by the management for locations where 
such counts were performed before the year end.

•	 Performed	 independent	 test	counts	 to	corroborate	
the management count for the locations selected 
as above performed roll-back procedures by 
verification of movement between the year-end 
date and sample test count date with the supporting 
documents which included purchase invoice, sales 
invoice, dispatch register, gate inward/outward 
register, etc. to substantiate the existence of 
inventory as at the reporting date;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

•	 Tested	 the	 adjustment	 made	 in	 the	 books	 of	
accounts basis the results of the physical counts 
performed by the management.

Slow-moving/obsolete inventory provisions:

•	 Tested	 inventory	 ageing	obtained	 through	 system	
reports, where applicable.

•	 Obtained	 from	 management	 the	 list	 of	 slow	 and	
non-moving inventories identified as on 31 March 
2022 and their corresponding expected sales in 
future periods.

•	 Tested	 the	 computation	 for	 allowance	 for	 slow-
moving, non-moving and obsolete inventories by 
performing an independent age-wise analysis of 
the inventory line items along with specific inquiries 
with the management with respect to planned sales, 
corroborating the same with our prior experience 
and understanding of the business.

•	 Tested	 the	 net	 realizable	 value	 of	 traded	 goods	
inventory on a sample basis to recent selling prices.

•	 Compared	and	assessed	the	actual	utilization/sales	
to the previous estimates done by the management 
in prior periods to determine the efficacy of the 
process of estimation by the management.

Obtained written representations from management on 
the completeness and adequacy of inventory allowance 
as at the year end.

IND AS 116- Leases

Refer note 1(iv)(h) for significant accounting policy and 
note 45 for the financial statement disclosure relating 
to accounting for leases in accordance with Ind AS 116, 
Leases (‘Ind AS 116’).

The Company has recognised the Right of Use asset 
(ROU) and corresponding lease liability amounting to Rs 
27,852.32 lakhs and Rs 33,475.14 lakhs as at 31 March2022, 
respectively.

During the current yar, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, issued notification dated 24 July 
2020and 18 June 2021 amending Ind AS 116 to include 
a practicalexpedient by way of adding paragraphs 46A 
and 46B in the standard relating to accounting treatment 
of rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence 
of COVID-19 pandemic, giving a choice to the lessee 
to elect whether the said rent concessions are to be 
treated as ‘lease modifications’ subject to meeting of the 
conditions included therein.

The Company has assessed compliance with the 
aforementioned conditions given in paragraph 46B of 
Ind AS 116 and basis such assessment elected to apply 
the said practical expedient with respect to the rent ’.

Our audit included, but was not limited to, the following 
audit procedures:

•	 Understood	 the	 management	 process	 for	
identification of leasing arrangements for rent 
concession for applying the practical expedient.

•	 Evaluated	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of controls implemented around 
above mentioned process throughout the year.

•	 Reviewed	 the	 overall	 impact	 analysis	 prepared	 by	
the Company including completeness of lease 
contracts and application of practical expedients.

•	 Tested	the	accuracy	of	the	revised	lease	agreements	
entered for a sample of leases through the inspection 
of lease documentation.

•	 Verified	 the	 accuracy	of	 the	underlying	 lease	 data	
used to calculate the rent concession, by agreeing a 
representative sample of leases to original contracts 
or other supporting information.

•	 Evaluated	 the	 appropriateness	 and	 adequacy	 of	
disclosures made in the financial statements with 
respect to Lease liability, Right of Use Assets and 
application of practical expedient, in conformity 
with the Ind AS 116.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

concessions received during the applicable period 
for various stores of the Company and accordingly, 
recognised	₹	856.05	lakhs	under	head	‘Other	income

In order to compute the rent concession amount to apply 
the practical expedient, a significant data extraction 
exercise was undertaken by management to summarize 
the relevant data relating to lease contracts.

Further, the determination of rent concession amount 
using practical expedient and assessing compliance 
with the conditions given under paragraph 46B involved 
application of significant judgements and estimates.

Owing to the volume of the lease contracts, materiality 
of the impact of practical expedient and the estimates 
involved, we have considered this matter to be a key 
audit matter in our audit.

Obtained written representations from management 
on the completeness of lease data and application of 
practical expedient.

Implementation of new Information Technology (‘IT’) 
System for financial reporting and related migration 
of data:

Refer note 53 for the financial statement disclosure relating 
to implementation of new Information Technology (‘IT’) 
system for financial reporting and related migration of 
data.

From 04 January 2022, the Company has implemented 
a new Information Technology System, SAP Hana, (“new 
IT system”) for supporting its operations and financial 
reporting, which required an extensive exercise of data 
migration from the erstwhile used IT system SAP ECS 
(“old IT system”).

Such significant system change increases the risk to the 
internal financial controls environment. These changes 
represent a financial reporting risk while migration takes 
place as controls and processes that have been established 
over a number of years are updated and migrated into a 
new environment. Hence, considering the significance 
of the activity and the pervasive impact on the financial 
statements, this matter has been determined as a key 
audit matter for current year audit.

Our audit work included, but was not limited to, the 
following procedures: 

•	 Obtained	 the	 understanding	 of	 the	 process	
followed by the Company for implementing the 
new IT system and migration of standing data 
from erstwhile IT systems into SAP Hana, including 
proper authorization, completeness, accuracy and 
manual controls put in place in such process.

•	 Tested	the	migrated	balances,	for	completeness	and	
accuracy as of January 4, 2022.

•	 Evaluated	 the	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of key controls over the new 
system implementation, which includes the 
overall project implementation plan; project roles 
and responsibilities; approval for new system 
requirements; and inspection of formal sign-offs 
including authorisation for go-live.

•	 Tested	substantively	a	sample	general	/	sub-ledger	
balances, masters and balances of the financially 
significant data within the financial systems from 
old system to the new system.

•	 We	evaluated	the	design	and	operating	effectiveness	
of the IT General Controls (ITGCs) and business 
processes post migration (both automated and 
manual) of the new system, and evaluated the 
impact of results in planning our audit procedures.

Information other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon

11. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible 
for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual 
Report but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
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financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

12. The accompanying standalone financial statements 
have been approved by the Company’s Board 
of Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors 
are responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
and presentation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

13. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of 
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

14. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements

15. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

16. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

•	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control;

•	 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls;

•	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management;

•	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	Board	of	Directors’	
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern;

•	 Evaluate	 the	 overall	 presentation,	 structure	 and	
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation;
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17. We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

18. We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

19. From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

20. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on 
our audit,we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in 
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid 
down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act.

21. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of 
the Act we give in the Annexure I a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable.

22. Further to our comments in Annexure I, as required 
by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and except for the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of 
our audit of the accompanying standalone 
financial statements;

b) Except for the possible effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, in our opinion, proper books of 
account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

c) The standalone financial statements dealt with 
by this report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

d) Except for the possible effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, in our opinion, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements comply with 
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of section 
164(2) of the Act;

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance 
of accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section;

g) With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company as on 31 March 
2022 and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls,refer to our separate Report 
in Annexure II wherein we have expressed 
amodifiedopinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. Except for the possible effects of the 
matters described in paragraph 4 of the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the 
Company, as detailed in note 35 (a) to 
the standalone financial statements, has 
disclosed the impact of pending litigations 
on its financial position as at 31 March 
2022;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses as at 31 March 2022;

iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company during the year ended 31 March 
2022;

iv. a. The management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or securities 
premium or any other sources or kind 



Annual Report 2021-22 91 

Corporate
Overview

Notice Financial Statements
and Notes

Statutory
Section

of funds) by the Company to or in 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company (‘the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 b. The management has represented 
that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall, whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party 
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and

 c. Based on such audit procedures 
performed as considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the 
management representations under 
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain 
any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year ended 31 March 
2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner

Membership No.: 096521
UDIN: 22096521AJWSQU5231

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022
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Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 21of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members 
of V2 Retail Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by 
us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we 
report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, 
plant and equipment (including right of use 
assets).

  (B) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets.

 (b) The Company has a regular program of 
physical verification of its fixed assets under 
which fixed assets are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of 3 years, which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 
size of the Company/Holding Company and 
the nature of its assets. In accordance with 
this program, certain fixed assets were verified 
by the management but the reconciliation 
of physically verified property, plant and 
equipment with the books of account was 
in process as at year ended as stated in note 
47 to the standalone financial statements. 
Therefore, we are unable to comment on the 
discrepancies, if any, which could have arisen 
during a forested reconciliation process.

 (c) The Company does not own any immovable 
property (including investment properties) 
(other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (d) The Company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (and Right of Use assets) 
or intangible assets during the year.

 (e) No proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year, except for goods-in-transit. 
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure 
of such verification by the management is 

appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory 
were noticed

 (b)  The Company has a working capital limit in 
excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by a bank or 
financial institutions based on the security 
of current assets. The quarterly statements, 
in respect of the working capital limits have 
been filed by the Company with such banks or 
financial institutions and such statements are 
in agreement with the books of account of the 
Company for the respective periods.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the 
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Companyhas 
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 
186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees and security, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or there is no amount which 
has been considered as deemed deposit within the 
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s 
products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, undisputed 
statutory dues including goods and services 
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, , duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and other material statutory dues, as applicable, 
have generally been regularly deposited with 
the appropriate authorities by the Company, 
though there have been slight delays in a few 
cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-
end for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.
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 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except 
for the following:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Gross 
Amount (I in 

lacs)

Amount paid 

under Protest 
(I in lacs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Remarks, 
if any

Finance Act, 1994 Service 
Tax

302.08 75.00 2006-07 to 
2010-11

Commission 
of Service Tax

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 100.00 Nil 2007-08 Appellate 
Authority

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 173.54 Nil 2007-08 Joint 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 68.11 Nil 2007-08 Deputy 
Commissioner

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 15.26 Nil 2007-08 Assistant 
Commissioner

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 83.87 Nil 2008-09 Deputy 
Commissioner

Rajasthan Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 0.50 Nil 2009-10 Assistant 
Commissioner

The Uttar Pradesh 
Value Added Tax 
Act, 2008

Sales Tax 2.03 Nil 2009-10 Joint 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

The Uttar Pradesh 
Value Added Tax 
Act, 2008

Sales Tax 22.43 Nil 2009-10 Assistant 
Commissioner

West Bengal Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 2,250.00 Nil 2008-09 Deputy 
Commissioner

The Assam Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 7.20 Nil 2010-11 Deputy 
Commissioner

Bihar Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005

Sales Tax 19.05 Nil 2016-17 Assistant 
Commissioner

Haryana Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2003

Sales Tax 59.79 Nil 2014-15 Deputy 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

975.17 Nil 2009-10 High Court of 
Calcutta

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

11,880.72 Nil 2010-11 High Court of 
Calcutta

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

6.77 Nil 2017-18 National 
Faceless 
Appeal Centre

Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 21of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members 
of V2 Retail Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 21of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members 
of V2 Retail Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(viii) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which 
have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)  (a)  Accordingto the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us including confirmations received 
from banks/ financial institution and/or other 
lenders and  representation received from the 
management of the Company, and on the 
basis of our audit procedures, we report that 
the Company has not been declared a willful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lender. 

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any money by way of term 
loans during the year and did not have any 
term loans outstanding at the beginning of 
the current year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.                                         

 (d) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, funds raised by the Company on 
short term basis have not been utilised for long 
term purposes. 

 (e) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on an overall examination of 
the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiary. 

 (f) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not raised any 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiary.

(x)  (a)  The Company has not raised any money by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments), during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) 

convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit.

 (b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has 
been filed with the Central Government for the 
period covered by our audit. 

 (c)  According to the information and explanations 
given to us including the representation made 
to us by the management of the Company, there 
are no whistle-blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, all transactions 
entered into by the Company with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of 
such related party transactions have  been disclosed 
in the standalone financial statements, as required 
under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party 
Disclosures specified in Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2021 as prescribed under section 
133 of the Act / Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 
AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv)  (a)  In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company 
has an internal audit system as required under 
section 138 of the Act which is commensurate 
with the size and nature of its business.

 (b) We have considered the reports issued by the 
Internal Auditors of the Company till date for 
the period under audit.

(xv)   According to the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with them and accordingly, provisions 
of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
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1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)
(a),(b)and(c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in 
the current as well as the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the standalone financial statements, 
our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors 
and management and based on our examination of 
the evidence supporting the assumptions , nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
thatany material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, although the Company fulfilled the criteria as 
specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net 
profits in the immediately three preceding years, 
there is no requirement for the Company to spend 
any amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of 
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is 
not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, 
no comment has been included in respect of said 
clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner

Membership No.: 096521
UDIN: 22096521AJWSQU5231

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022
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ANNEXURE I

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted along 
with Standalone Annual Audited Financial Results

Figure in Rs. Lakh, except for per share data

Statement on impact of audit qualifications for the financial year ended 31 March 2022

[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

I. S. 
No.

Particulars Audited Figures 
(as reported 

before adjusting 
for qualifications)

Audited Figures 
(as reported after 

adjusting for 
qualifications)

1. Turnover /total income 64,480.89 64,480.89

2. Total expenditure 66,116.71 66,116.71

3. Net (Loss)/profit for the period (1,290.20) (1,290.20)

4. Earnings per share (3.76) (3.76)

5. Total assets 77,174.19 77,174.19

6. Total liabilities 51,159.72 51,159.72

7. Net worth 26,014.47 26,014.47

8. Any other financial item (as felt appropriate by the 
management)

Nil Nil

II. Audit qualification (each audit qualification separately)

a. Details of audit qualifications: 

The audit report of statutory auditors includes following qualifications on the audited financial statements/
results for the quarter/year ended March 31, 2022:

As stated in Note 4 to the accompanying standalone financial results, the Company’s other equity as at 31 
March	2022	includes	an	amount	of	₹	Rs	365.36	lakhs	in	the	nature	of	capital	reserve	arising	out	of	business	
restructuring carried out in earlier years, for which the Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary reconciliation and information. In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, 
we are unable to comment upon the appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid balance, and the 
consequential impact, if any, on the financial results. Our opinion on the standalone financial results for 
the previous year ended 31 March 2021 was also modified in respect of this matter.

As stated in Note 5 to the accompanying standalone financial results, the Company’s contingent liabilities 
as at 31 March 2022 include certain contingent liabilities aggregating to Rs. 747.26 lakhs pertaining to 
litigations pending with various authorities, for which the Company’s management has not been able 
to provide necessary evidence in relation to probability of outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits. In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment upon the 
appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid amounts as provision or contingent liabilities as at 
31 March 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” 
and the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying statements. Our opinion on the standalone 
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2021 was also qualified in respect of this matter.

As described in Note 10 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the Company has performed 
physical verification of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance 
with the phased program of conducting such verification over a period of 3 years. However, the Company 
is in process of performing related reconciliation of such physical verification with the underlying fixed 
asset register maintained by the Company in respect of property, plant and equipment with aggregate gross 
block of Rs 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs 9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022. Pending completion of 
the said reconciliation, we are unable to comment on any adjustment that may be required to the carrying 
value of such Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 March 2022. 

b. Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time/repetitive/since how long continuing

Repetitive- Qualification stated in (i) is continuing from the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

Qualification stated in (ii) is continuing from the financial year ended 31 March 2012. However, the figure 
mentioned has been updated.
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c. For audit qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management’s Views:

Management’s view: not applicable

d. For audit qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:

Not quantified

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

a) The Company restructured its business in the financial year 2010-11 resulting in creation of capital reserve 
amounting to Rs. 60,523.24 lakh. The aforementioned reserve has been reconciled except for Rs. 365.36 
lakh which the Company is in the process of reconciling. However, the management believes that there is 
no impact of the same on standalone statement of profit and loss.

b) Out of contingent liabilities existing as at 31 March 2022, certain liabilities aggregating to Rs. 747.26 lakh 
are under appeal with different authorities at different levels. Whilst the impact of contingent liabilities on 
these results can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly 
assessed based on available information/documents that based on the merits of such cases, the Company 
has reasonably good chances on succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these 
standalone financial results.

c) The Company has performed physical verification of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 
31 March 2022 in accordance with the phased program of conducting such verification over a period 
of 3 years.  However, the Company is in process of performing related reconciliation of such physical 
verification with the underlying fixed asset register maintained by the Company in respect of property, 
plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of Rs. 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs. 9,162.77 lakhs as 
at 31 March 2022.  However the management does not impact resultant adjustments to be material to the 
financial statements.

(iii) Auditor’s comments on (i) and (ii) above:

 Since management could not ascertain the impact, the auditors have given qualifications in their auditor’s 
report.

III Signatories:
    
Yours Sincerely,  
For V2 Retail Limited  

Ram Chandra Agarwal 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN00491885                                         

Akash Agarwal 
Chief Financial Officer  

Lalit Kumar     
Audit Committee Chairman  

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner  
Membership No. 096521
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Annexure II as referred to in paragraph 22(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of 
V2 Retail Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of V2 Retail Limited (‘the 
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2022, we have audited the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the 
Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s 
business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal 
Financial Controls with Reference to Financial 
Statements 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, and 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance 
Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and 

if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements includes obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our qualified audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference 
to Financial Statements 

6. A company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with Reference to Financial Statements 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or 
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improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

8. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our audit, the following material 
weaknesses have been identified in the operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements as 
at31 March 2022:

a) The Company’s internal financial controls over 
retention of adequate information towards 
reconciliation of capital reserve in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India were not operating effectively, which 
could lead to a potential material misstatement 
in Other equity in the accompanying financial 
statements.

b) The Company’s internal financial controls over 
retention of adequate information towards 
estimating provisions and contingent liabilities 
with respect to outstanding litigations were not 
operating effectively, which could result in an 
inappropriate assessment of the accuracy and 
completeness of provisions and contingent 
liabilities, which is not in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standard 37 - Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

c) The Company’s internal financial controls 
system over the reconciliation of physically 
verified property, plant and equipment with 
the books of account were not operating 
effectively, which could lead to a potential 
material misstatement in the carrying value 
of the PPE and its consequential impact on 
earnings, other equity and related disclosures 
in the accompanying financial statements.

9. A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the company’s annual or 
interim financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis.

10. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 
respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements as at31 March 2022, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal financial controls 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI, 
and except for the possible effects of the material 
weaknesses described above on the achievement of 
the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at31 March 
2022.

11. We have considered the material weaknesses 
identified and reported above in determining the 
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2022, and these material weaknesses mentioned 
in paragraph 8(a), 8(b) and 8(c) have affected our 
opinion on the standalone financial statements 
of the Company and we have issued a qualified 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner

Membership No.: 096521
UDIN: 22096521AJWSQU5231

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125

Place: New Delhi   
Date: May 30, 2022  

Particulars
Note As at As at

  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 
ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment 2 (i)  9,162.77  9,709.46 
Right of use assets (ROU) 3 (i)  27,852.32  28,489.89 
Intangible assets 3(ii)  454.82  49.19 
Intangible assets under development 3(iii)  -   462.47 
Financial assets 4  -  

Investment  1,500.00  1,500.00 
Other financial assets 5  766.75  702.59 

Deferred tax assets (net) 6  2,685.34  2,326.47 
Non-current tax assets (net) 7  163.55  214.23 
Other non-current assets 8  1,848.70  1,923.57 
Total non-current assets   44,434.25  45,377.87 
   
Current assets   
Inventories 9  26,734.12  26,535.70 
Financial assets  

Trade Receivables 10  94.16  68.99 
Cash and cash equivalents 11  594.09  1,517.03 
Other bank balances 12  85.71  66.85 
Other financial assets 13  1,675.78  1,499.32 

Other current assets 14  3,556.08  4,254.51 
Total current assets   32,739.94  33,942.40 
Total assets   77,174.19  79,320.27 
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Equity   

Share capital 15  3,438.93  3,410.50 
Other equity 16  22,575.54  23,775.98 

Total equity   26,014.47  27,186.48 
   
Non-current liabilities   
Financial liabilities   

Borrowings 17  -   11.66 
Lease Liabilities  3 (i)  30,257.93  30,555.05 
Other financial liabilities 18  14.74  13.84 

Provisions (Employee Benefit Obligation) 19  394.80  273.98 
Total non-current liabilities   30,667.47  30,854.53 
   
Current liabilities   
Financial liabilities   

Borrowings 20  4,892.63  5,038.51 
  Lease Liabilities  3 (i)  3,217.21  3,196.69 
  Trade payables 21

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises   458.94  249.91 
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small  

   enterprises  

 10,729.63  11,484.92 

 Other financial liabilities 22  806.36  954.06 
Provisions (Employee Benefit Obligation) 23  221.99  216.75 
Other current liabilities 24  165.49  138.42 
Total current liabilities   20,492.25  21,279.26 
Total liabilities   77,174.19  79,320.27 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements    
As per our report of even date attached    
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125

Place: New Delhi   
Date: May 30, 2022  

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
     
 Note

 
 For the year ended

 31 March 2022 
For the year ended

31 March 2021

Income

Revenue from operations 25  62,922.49  53,864.74 

Other income 26  1,558.40  2,215.84 

Total income  64,480.89  56,080.58 

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade 27  44,213.29  44,970.28 

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28  (147.40)  (6,939.21)

Employee benefits expense 29  5,760.82  4,767.50 

Finance costs 30  3,607.09  3,023.51 

Depreciation and amortization expense 31  5,659.36  5,378.51 

Other expenses 32  7,023.55  6,189.00 

Total expenses  66,116.71  57,389.59 

Loss before exceptional items and tax  (1,635.82)  (1,309.01)

Exceptional items  -   -  

Loss before tax  (1,635.82)  (1,309.01)

Tax expenses: 6

Current tax  -   -  

Deferred tax (income)/charge  (345.62)  (205.18)

Total tax expense  (345.62)  (205.18)

Loss for the year  (1,290.20)  (1,103.83)

Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss) of defined employee benefit plans  (52.69)  (1.27)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  13.26  0.33 

Other comprehensive loss for the year  (39.43)  (0.94)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,329.63)  (1,104.77)

Significant accounting policies 1

Earnings per share (face value of I 10 each) 34

Basic (B)  (3.76)  (3.24)

Diluted (B)  (3.76)  (3.24)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
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Particulars

 For the year ended For the year ended
   31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax  (1,635.82)  (1,309.01)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  5,659.36  5,378.51 
Interest income  (580.05)  (999.99)
Rent concession on lease rentals  (856.05)  (1,072.19)
Intangible assets under development written-off  51.00  -  
Finance charges  3,607.09  3,023.51 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (15.61)  -  
Provision against inventory  628.10  838.89 
Provision against advances  57.53  -  
Balances written off  31.22  339.84 
Share based payment expense  129.19  237.51 

Operating profit before working capital changes  7,075.96  6,437.07 
Movement in working capital

Movement in trade payables  (546.24)  1,437.82 
Movement in trade receivables  (25.17)  (68.29)
Movement in provisions  73.37  59.62 
Movement in other liabilities  27.07  22.29 
Movement in other financial iabilities  (44.86)  57.25 
Movement in inventories  (826.52)  (7,758.98)
Movement in other financial assets  (178.83)  879.01 
Movement in other assets  684.54  (2,583.06)

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities post working capital changes  6,239.32  (1,517.27)
Income taxes paid (net)  50.68  (20.79)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities (A)  6,290.00  (1,538.06)
B. Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress and 
payable towards property, plant and equipment)

 (1,365.02)  (2,213.52)

Sale of property, plant and equipment  121.45  -  
Purchase of intangible assets  (68.05)  (52.30)
Investment in fixed deposits (net)  (30.03)  636.95 
Interest received  14.04  41.37 

Net cash flows (used in) Investing activities (B)  (1,327.61)  (1,587.50)
C. Cash flows from financing activities  

Proceeds from issuance of equity share  28.43  -  
(Repayment of) / proceeds from current borrowings (net)  (145.88)  2,716.01 
Repayment of non-current borrowings  (11.66)  (64.08)
Payment of lease liabilities  (5,294.82)  (3,996.44)
Interest paid  (461.40)  (59.16)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (5,885.33)  (1,403.67)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (922.94)  (4,529.23)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,517.03  6,046.26 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  594.09  1,517.03 
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
Cash on hand  155.54  429.27 
Balance with banks:
 -in current accounts  438.55  1,087.76 
Total  594.09  1,517.03 

Note:
1. The figures in bracket indicate outflows.      
2. The cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect method”, as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.
3. Additions to property, plant and equipment are stated inclusive of movements of capital work-in-progress (including capital advances) and the 

same has been treated as part of investing activities.      
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements  
As per our report of even date attached

Statement of Standalone Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2021 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125

Place: New Delhi   
Date: May 30, 2022  
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B Other equity

 Particulars  Attributable to owners of V2 Retail Limited  Total 

  Reserves and surplus 

  Retained 
earnings 

 Securities 
premium 

reserve 

 Capital 
reserve 

 Share 
options 

outstanding 
account 

      

Balance as at 01 April 2020  (66,114.54)  29,574.09  61,043.56  140.14  24,643.25 

Loss for the year  (1,103.83)  -   -   -   (1,103.83)

Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)  (0.94)  -   -   -   (0.94)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,104.77)  -   -   -   (1,104.77)

Employee stock options charge for the year (refer note 29)  -   -   -   237.51  237.51 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 (67,219.31)  29,574.09  61,043.56  377.65  23,775.99 

Balance as at 1 April 2021  (67,219.31)  29,574.09  61,043.56  377.65  23,775.99 

Loss for the year  (1,290.20)  -   -   -   (1,290.20)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)  (39.43)  -   -   -   (39.43)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,329.63)  -   -   -   (1,329.63)

Employee stock options exercised during the year  397.29  (397.29)  -  

Employee stock options charge for the year (refer note 29)  -   -   -   129.19  129.19 

Balance as at 31 March 2022  (68,548.94)  29,971.38  61,043.56  109.55  22,575.55 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

Opening balance  3,410.50  3,410.50 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period  -   -  

Changes in equity share capital during the year  28.43  -  
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors  -   -  
Closing Balance  3,438.93  3,410.50 

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125

Place: New Delhi   
Date: May 30, 2022  
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

1. i) Corporate information
 V2 Retail Limited formerly known as Vishal Retail Limited (the Company) is a public Company domiciled in 

India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company’s ethos stands for “value and 
variety” and remains focused on selling quality fashion garments for significant lower prices targeting the very 
core of the nation. With currently 101 stores under its umbrella out of which 3 in Delhi-NCR, 26 in Bihar, 24 in 
Uttar Pradesh, 15 in Odisha, 6 in Assam, 4 in Karnataka, 3 in Madhya Pradesh, 8 in Jharkhand, 5 in Uttarakhand, 
2 in Goa and 1 each in Himachal, West Bangal, Jammu & Kashmir, Arunachal Pradesh and Tripura, it has been 
successfully serving the Indian retail market for more than 25 years.The Company is listed on both National Stock 
Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) having itsregistered office located at Khasra No. 928,Extended 
Lal Dora Abadi Village,Kapashera Border,Tehsil Vasant Vihar,New Delhi – 110037.

ii) Basis of preparation

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of 
India to the extent applicable.

 The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are 
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been 
classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out 
in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time 
between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention basis except for the following –

•	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 
instruments); and

•	 De₹ned	bene₹t	plans	–	plan	assets	measured	at	fair	value.

•	 Assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost to sell.

 The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (B), which is also its functional currency 
and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per 
the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

iii) Use of estimates

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate 
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are 
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

iv) Significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is:

•	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle*

•	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

•	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

•	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 A liability is current when:

•	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle*

•	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

•	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

•	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period

 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

 *Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

b) Property, plant and equipment

 Recognition and initial measurement

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent 
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable	that	future	economic	bene₹ts	attributable	to	such	subsequent	cost	associated	with	the	item	will	₹ow	to	the	
Company.	All	other	repair	and	maintenance	costs	are	recognized	in	statement	of	pro₹t	or	loss	as	incurred.	Capital	
work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired on deferred payment basis, interest expenses 
included in deferred payment is recognized as interest expense and not included in cost of asset. 

 Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method arrived on the basis 
of the useful life which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for 
furniture and fixtures and vehicles in which useful lives are different from those prescribed under Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of furniture and fixtures and vehicles, the management believes that these 
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to 
be used. The following useful life of assets has been taken by the Company:

Tangible Assets Useful Life as per the 
Schedule II

Useful Life as assessed 
by the management

Vehicles-Motor Cycle 15 Years 15 Years

Vehicles-Motor cars 10 Years 8 Years

Office equipment 10 Years 10 Years

Computer equipment 8 Years 8 Years

Servers and networking equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Electrical equipment &fittings 3 Years 3 Years

Air conditioners 6 Years 6 Years

Generator sets 10 Years 10 Years

Generator sets 10 Years 10 Years

15 Years 15 Years
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 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, 
discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significate components replaced; depreciation on such assets is calculated 
on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month of such addition or, as the case 
may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

 De-recognition

 An item of property, plant and equipment and any significate part initially recognized is de-recognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

c) Intangible Assets

 Recognition and initial measurement

 Purchased intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. 

 Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

	 All	 ₹nite-lived	intangible	assets	are	accounted	for	using	the	cost	model	whereby	capitalized	costs	are	amortized	
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible 
assets is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other 
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of 
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. The following useful 
lives are applied:

 Intangible assets                 Useful life (in years)

 Software                         Amortized over a period of 3 years

 De-recognition

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s 
(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 
groups of assets.

 These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

 Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

e) Non-current assets held for sale

 Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as 
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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f) Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest calculated using the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs like finance charges in respect of the 
finance leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 17, that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

g) Functional and presentation currency

 Thefinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency. 

 Foreign currencies

 Transactions and balances

 Initial recognition

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at 
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

 Subsequent measurement

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with 
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items 
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).

 Exchange differences

 Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the 
year in which they arise.

h) Leases

(i) Transition

 Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and elected to measure the right-of-use 
assets at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that 
existed at the date of transition. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and the 
right of use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date 
of the lease. Accordingly, Company has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date 
of initial application (1 April 2019). 

(ii) The Company as a lessee

 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of property leases. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether 
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the 
contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits 
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the 
asset.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease.

 Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

 The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 
option.

i) Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

•	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable

 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period or each case.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.
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j) Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

k) Inventories

 The Company has only trading goods in its inventory which is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
Cost of inventory comprises of cost of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present condition and location. Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

l) Revenue recognition

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties.

 The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s 
activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the 
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

 Sale of goods

 The Company operates a chain of retail stores selling quality fashion garments. Revenue from the sale of goods 
is recognised when Company sells a product to the customer.

 It is the Company’s policy to sell its products to the end customer with a right of return within 30 days. Accumulated 
experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of sale.

 Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade 
discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on 
sales such as goods and service tax (GST).

 Income from services

 Revenues from rent and display activities are recognized as per the terms of the contract.

 Interest income

 Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate 
applicable. 

 For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. The future cash flows include all other transaction costs 
paid or received, premiums or discounts if any, etc. 

m) Financial instruments

 Financial instruments are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair 
value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. 

 If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Company 
accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

•	 at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses 
only data from observable markets. The Company recognizes the difference between the fair value at initial 
recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss. 
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•	 in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the 
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Company recognizes 
that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including 
time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. 

 Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

 Financial assets 

 Classification and subsequent measurement 

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon 
initial recognition: 

i. Financial assets at amortized cost – a financial instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the 
following conditions are met: 

•	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method. 

ii. Financial assets at fair value

•	 Investments in equity instruments other than above – All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 
109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified 
as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides 
to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument 
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in 
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the P&L. 

•	 Mutual funds – All mutual funds in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and 
loss (FVTPL). 

 De-recognition of financial assets

 A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

 Financial liabilities

 Subsequent measurement

 After initial recognition, the financial liabilities, other than derivative liabilities, are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method (EIR). 

 Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

 De-recognition of financial liabilities

 A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
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or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 Impairment of financial assets

 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments.

 For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

 Defined Contribution plan

 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company makes defined 
contribution to Government Employee Provident Fund, Employee Deposit Linked Insurance and ESI which are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

 The Company recognizes contributions payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an 
employee renders the related services. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to 
the Provided Fund. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction 
in the future payments is available.

 Defined benefit plan

 The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. 

 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

 Other employee benefits

 Compensated absences

 Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the 
balance sheet date is recognizedon the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or 
estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences 
becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis 
of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

 The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period 
using the actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The 
benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurement as a result of experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual 
settlement is expected to occur.
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 Other short-term benefits

 Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of amount paid or payable for the 
period during which services are rendered by the employees.

o) Employee stock option plan

 The cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognized based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date. 
The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase 
in other equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is period over which all of the 
specified vesting conditions are satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number 
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the 
impact of revision to original estimates, if any, in statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment 
to equity. The fair value of options is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.

p) Provisions

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a 
provision is presented in the statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value 
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability.

q) Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events including a bonus issue.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares 
would decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

r) Taxes

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable 
income.

 Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
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 Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits (Minimum alternate tax credit 
entitlement) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit 
or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items 
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

s) Segment reporting

 The Company is engaged in the business of retail trade of garments, textiles and accessories in India and there 
are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 ‘Segment Reporting’.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

u) Contingent liabilities 

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

v) Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

 The following are the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management has 
made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that may have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial Statements or that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

i. Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties 
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain 
software, IT equipment and other plant and equipment. 

ii. Defined benefit obligation (DBO) – Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses. 

iii. Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets – The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

iv. Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on 
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an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. 

v. Contingent liabilities – The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range 
of matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is 
difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases and claims against the Company often raise 
difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to many uncertainties, including but not 
limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences 
in applicable law. In the normal course of business, management consults with legal counsel and certain 
other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined 
that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

vi. Inventories – The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most 
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by 
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. Further, the Company 
also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage, pilferage etc. along with NRV impact on old inventory taking into 
account most reliable information available at the reporting date.
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 2 (i)  Property, plant and equipment 

Description Leasehold 
improvements

Vehicle* Office 
equipments

Plant and 
machinery

Electrical 
equipments

Furniture 
and 

fixture

Computer 
hardware

Total

 Gross carrying value 

 As at 1 April 2020  363.86  352.49  2,288.87  1,628.58  2,720.88  5,282.90  1,581.62  14,219.20 

 Additions  121.53  -   333.91  122.08  460.77  1,175.19  292.50  2,505.98 
 Disposals  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  
 As at 31 March 2021  485.39  352.49  2,622.79  1,750.66  3,181.65  6,458.09  1,874.12 16,725.18 
 Additions  78.07  -   126.23  192.77  217.76  452.10  196.13  1,263.06 
 Disposals  (23.01)  -   (35.38)  (90.13)  (4.28)  (38.42)  (4.73)  (195.95)
 As at 31 March 2022  540.44  352.49  2,713.63  1,853.30  3,395.14  6,871.77  2,065.53 17,792.30 

 Accumulated depreciation 

 As at 1 April 2020  84.01  61.01  750.73  316.00  881.95  2,149.47  1,087.21  5,330.38 

 Charge for the year  53.55  41.90  313.32  108.79  269.88  642.01  255.89  1,685.34 

 Disposals  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

 As at 31 March 2021  137.57  102.91  1,064.05  424.79  1,151.82  2,791.47  1,343.10  7,015.72 

 Charge for the year  66.53  41.82  336.46  76.79  298.39  679.83  204.10  1,703.92 

 Disposals  (23.01)  -   (20.86)  (20.74)  (1.02)  (21.11)  (3.37)  (90.11)

 As at 31 March 2022  181.08  144.73  1,379.65  480.84  1,449.19  3,450.20  1,543.83  8,629.53 

 Net block as at 31 March 2021  347.82  249.57  1,558.73  1,325.87  2,029.83  3,666.62  531.02  9,709.46 

 Net block as at 31 March 2022  359.36  207.75  1,333.98  1,372.46  1,945.94  3,421.57  521.70  9,162.77 

        
Notes:

a. Contractual obligations    
 Refer note 35(b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.   

b. Capitalised borrowing cost
 The Company has not capitalised any borrowing costs during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.   

 *  Gross block of vehicles amounting to Rs 217.36 lakhs (217.36 lakhs) are hypothecated against vehicle loans taken.Refer note 17.  

3 (i) Right of use assets and lease liabilities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets and lease liabilities and the movements during the year:  

Particulars  Total
(a) Right-of-use assets
Cost
Balance as on 1 April 2020  35,694.11 
Add: Additions during the year  12,679.55 
Less: Deletion during the year  (4,512.41)
Balance as at 31 March 2021  43,861.25 
Add: Additions during the year  4,796.57 
Less: Deletion during the year  (1,552.60)
Balance as at 31 March 2022  47,105.22 

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as on 1 April 2020  11,754.74 
Add: Amortisation for the year (refer note 31)  3,616.62 
Balance as at 31 March 2021  15,371.36 
Add: Amortisation for the year (refer note 31)  3,881.54 
Balance as at 31 March 2022  19,252.90 

Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2021  28,489.89 
Balance as at 31 March 2022  27,852.32 

(b) Lease liabilities
 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance  33,751.74  28,711.60 
Add: Addition in lease liabilities during the year  4,726.60  12,477.31 
Add: Deletion in lease liabilities during the year  (1,998.03)  (5,332.89)
Add: Interest on lease liabilities  3,145.70  2,964.35 
Less: Rent concession on lease rentals  (856.05)  (1,072.19)
Less: Lease liabilities paid  (5,294.82)  (3,996.44)
Closing balance  33,475.14  33,751.74 
Current  3,217.21  3,196.69 
Non-current  30,257.93  30,555.05 
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3(ii)  Intangible assets  

Description Computer 
software

Total

 Gross carrying value   

 As at 1 April 2020  359.77  359.77 

 Additions  1.30  1.30 

 Disposals  -   -  

 As at 31 March 2021  361.07  361.07 

 Additions  479.52  479.52 

 Disposals  -   -  

 As at 31 March 2022  840.59  840.59 

 Accumulated amortization 

 As at 1 April 2020  235.33  235.33 

 Amortisation  76.55  76.55 

 Disposals  -   -  

 As at 31 March 2021  311.88  311.88 

 Amortisation  73.90  73.90 

 Disposals  -   -  

 As at 31 March 2022  385.77  385.77 

 Net block as at 31 March 2021  49.19  49.19 

 Net block as at 31 March 2022  454.82  454.82 

   

As at As at

  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

3(iii) Intangible assets under development

 Intangible assets under development - 411.47

-  411.47 
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Movement in intangible assets under development: 

      Total 

 As at 1 April 2020      411.47 

 Additions during the year  51.00 

 Capitalisation during the year  - 

 As at 31 March 2021      462.47 

 Additions during the year  - 

 Capitalisation during the year  462.47 

 As at 31 March 2022      - 

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March 2021

Intangible assets under development  Amount for a period of  Total 

 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years 

 Projects in progress  -  51.00 26.25  385.22  462.47 

 Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 

There are no projects as on each reporting period where activity had been suspended. Also there are no projects as on the 
reporting period which has exceeded cost as compared to its original plan or where completion is overdue.
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 As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

4 Loans

 Unquoted investment 

 Investment in 150,00,000 (31 March 2021 :150,00,000) equity shares of V2 Smart 
Manufacturing Private Limited 

 1,500.00  1,500.00 

 1,500.00  1,500.00 

*Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary are stated at cost using the exemption 
provided under Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Financial statements’.    

Notes:

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows: 

 Description  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised/ 
(reversed) 

through profit 
and loss 

 Recognised 
/ (reversed) 

in other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Closing 
Balance 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:   

 Security deposits  (76.91)  (25.63)  -   (102.54)

 Provision for employee benefits  179.82  26.02  13.26  219.10 

 Unabsorbed business losses  570.01  48.08  -   618.09 

 Property, plant and equipment  70.71  54.33  -   125.04 

 Lease liabilities  530.99  103.74  -   634.73 

 Expenses allowable on payment basis  33.47  139.09  -   172.56 

Remeasurement of lease liabilities on account of transition 
to INDAS 116 

 1,018.38  -   -   1,018.38 

  2,326.47  345.62  13.26  2,685.34 

 As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

5  Other financial assets 
 Fixed deposits having maturity of more than 12 months*  39.51  28.34 
 Security deposits  638.53  589.50 
 Advance paid against dispute  88.71  84.75 

 766.75  702.59 
 *Fixed deposits amounting to Rs 39.51 laks ( Rs 28.34 lakh) are held as margin money 
towards bank guarantees and overdraft facility.     

 As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

 6  (i) Deferred tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:

 Property, plant and equipment  125.04  70.71 

 Provision for employee benefits  219.10  179.80 

 Expenses not allowed in Income-tax Act, 1961  172.56  33.48 

 Unabsorbed business losses  618.09  570.00 

 Lease liabilities  634.73  530.99 

 Tax on impact of Ind AS 116 in retained earnings  1,018.38  1,018.40 

  2,787.88  2,403.38 

Deferred tax liability arising on account of:

 Security deposits  102.54  76.91 

 102.54  76.91 

Net deferred tax assets  2,685.34  2,326.47 
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(b) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows: 

 Description  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised/ 
(reversed) 

through profit 
and loss 

 Recognised 
/ (reversed) 

in other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Closing Balance 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:     
Security deposits  (42.15)  (34.76)  -   (76.91)
Provision for employee benefits  182.57  (3.08)  0.33  179.82 
Unabsorbed business losses  591.25  (21.24)  -   570.01 
Property, plant and equipment  (4.47)  75.18  -   70.71 
Lease liabilities  356.87  174.12  -   530.99 
Expenses allowable on payment basis  -   33.47  -   33.47 
Remeasurement of lease liabilities on account of 
transition to INDAS 116 

 1,413.94  (395.56)  -   1,018.38 

Impact of change in rate of Income tax on 
retained earnings 

 (377.05)  377.05  -   -  

  2,120.96  205.18  0.33  2,326.47 

   Year ended Year ended

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

(ii) Tax expense

The income tax expense consists of the following:

Current tax

Current tax expense  -   -  

Deferred tax expense/ (credit)  (345.62)  (205.18)

Total income tax expense  (345.62)  (205.18)
 
   Year ended Year ended

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

(a) The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense 
based on the domestic effective tax rate of at 25.17% (31 March 2021: 25.17%) and the 
reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:    

Profit before income tax  (1,635.82)  (1,309.01)

Income tax using the Company's domestic tax 
rate *

25.17% 25.17%

Expected tax expense [A]  (411.70)  (329.45)

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported 
income tax expense

Tax effect of expenses not eligible for deduction  

Provision for employee benefits  - 0.34 

Items of permanent difference on which deferred 
tax not created

66.08 75.50 

Impact of change in tax rate - 48.43 

Total adjustments [B]   66.08     124.27  

Actual tax expense [C=A+B]  (345.62)  (205.18)

* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has 
been computed as follows

22% 22%

Base tax rate 10% 10%

Surcharge (% of tax) 4% 4%

Cess (% of tax) 25.17% 25.17%

Applicable rate

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

7  Non-current tax assets (net) 

 Advance tax (net of provision of tax)  163.55  214.23 

 163.55  214.23 

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

8  Other non-current assets 
 Advance for services (refer note 44)  1,557.65  1,557.65 
 Advance with service tax department  75.00  75.00 
 Advance paid against dispute  113.98  25.95 
 Advance for capex  102.07  264.97 

 1,848.70  1,923.57 
9 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

 Stock-in-trade  26,662.97  26,515.57 
 Stores and consumables  71.15  20.13 

 26,734.12  26,535.70 

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

10  Trade receivables 
 Unsecured, considered good 

 Receivable from related party  -   -  
 Receivables from other than related party  94.16  68.99 

 94.16  68.99 
     Refer note 43 for information about receivable from related party. 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 94.16  -  -  -  - 94.16 

Total  94.16  -  -  -  -  94.16 

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  68.99  -  -  -  - 68.99

Total  68.99  -  -  -  - 68.99

(b) Unused tax losses and credits on which deferred tax assets has not been recognised

 As at As at
  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 
Long Term Capital Loss
2017-2018 (2025-26*)              1,127.49                 1,127.49 
2020-2021 (2028-29*)                 175.18                    175.18 

             1,302.67                 1,302.67 
* year of expiry

Unabsorbed Depreciation on which Deferred tax assets has not been recognised
Unabsorbed Depreciation              1,711.38                 1,520.34 

             1,711.38                 1,520.34 
Total tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation              3,014.05                 2,823.01 

Potential tax benefit                 728.77 680.69 
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As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

11  Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash on hand  155.54  429.27 

 Balances with banks 

   -in current accounts  438.55  1,087.76 

  594.09  1,517.03 

Notes:

(i) Other than as disclosed, there are no repatriation restrictions with respect to other bank balances as at the end of the reporting 
year and prior year.    

(ii) The carrying values are a reasonable approximate of their fair values.

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

12 Other bank balances

Fixed deposits having maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months *  85.71  66.85 

 85.71  66.85 

Out of the above, fixed deposits amounting to B 66.85 lakhs (31 March 2020: B 105.52 lakhs) are held as margin money 
towards bank guarantees.   

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

13  Other financial assets 

 Current 

 Advances recoverable in cash   -    25.20 

 Credit card receivables  58.43  57.94 

 Security Deposits  87.39  57.76 

 Others  1,529.96  1,358.43 

 1,675.78  1,499.33 

The carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost. 

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

14  Other current assets 

 Prepaid expenses  7.07  54.46 

 Advances recoverable in kind or value to be received  26.43  1,275.49 

 Advance to suppliers  583.34  447.72 

 Advance to employees  23.69  74.10 

 Balance with statutory authorities  2,915.55  2,402.74 

  3,556.08  4,254.51 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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   31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

    No of 
shares 

 Amount  No of 
shares 

 Amount 

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  3,41,05,026  3,410.50 3,41,05,026  3,410.50 

Changes during the year*  2,84,315  28.43  -    -   

Equity shares at the end of the year  3,43,89,341  3,438.93  ,41,05,026  3,410.50 

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares/warrants

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of B 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The Board of Directors of the Company has not 
declared any dividend during the reporting period.    

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.    

*During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has made allotment of 284,315 equity shares @ Rs 10 per equity share to 
the eligible employees on exercise of employee stock option scheme.    

   31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

    No of 
shares 

 % holding  No of 
shares 

 % holding 

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Unicon Marketing Private Limited    54,44,710 15.83%  54,44,710 15.96%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited    71,70,000 20.85%  71,70,000 21.02%

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal    32,07,911 9.33%  32,07,911 9.41%

"India 2020 Fund II, Limited"    22,00,000 6.40%  22,00,000 6.45%

  1,80,22,621 1,80,22,621 

As at As at

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

15 Equity share capital

Authorised

40,000,000 equity shares of B 10 each (31 March 2021 : 40,000,000 equity shares of B 10 each)  4,000.00  4,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

34,389,341 equity shares of B 10 each (31 March 2021: 34,105,026 equity shares of B 10 each)  3,438.93  3,410.50 

 3,438.93  3,410.50 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

“Details of promoters share holding in the 
company as on 31 March 2022”

 Shareholding as 
on 01 April 2021 

 Purchase 
during the 

year 

 Sales 
during the 

year 

Shareholding 
as on 31 

March 2022 

 % change in 
Shareholding 

(d) Details of promoters share holding in the company

Ram Chandra Agarwal  32,07,911  -    -    32,07,911 0.00%

Uma Agarwal  3,44,000  -    -    3,44,000 0.00%

Ramchandra Agarwal (HUF)  1,55,000  -    -    1,55,000 0.00%

Akash Agarwal  1,31,500  1,980  -    1,33,480 1.51%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited  71,70,000  -    -    71,70,000 0.00%

Unicon Marketing Private Limited  54,44,710  -    -    54,44,710 0.00%

Vishal Waterworld Private Limited  10,84,134  -    -    10,84,134 0.00%

V2 Conglomerate Limited  6,32,582  -    -    6,32,582 0.00%

Sunita Fashion Private Limited  2,48,000  -    -    2,48,000 0.00%

 1,84,17,837  1,980  -    1,84,19,817 
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 As at  As at 
  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

16 Other equity
Other equity

Securities premium account  29,574.09  29,574.09 
Opening balance  397.29  -   
Change during the year  29,971.38  29,574.09 

Capital reserve [refer note (a) below]  61,043.56  61,043.56 

Opening balance  -    -   

Change during the year  61,043.56  61,043.56 

Employees' stock option outstanding account  377.65  140.14 

Opening balance  (397.29)  -   

Exercised during year  129.19  237.51 
Charge for the year  109.55  377.65 

 Retained earnings  (67,219.31)  (66,114.54)

 Opening balance

Net loss for the year  (1,290.20)  (1,103.83)
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of tax)  (39.43)  (0.94)

 (68,548.94)  (67,219.31)
 22,575.54  23,775.98 

 (a) The Company restructured its business in the financial year 2010-11 resulting in creation of Capital Reserve amounting to 
Rs. 60,523.24 lakhs. The aforementioned reserve has been reconciled to amount recognised in the books of accounts except 
for Rs. 365.36 lakhs which the Company is in the process of reconciling. However, the management believes that there is no 
impact of the same on statement of profit and loss.  

(b) Nature and purpose of other reserves
(i) Securities premium 

Securities premium  represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Capital reserve:
This reserve represents the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid at the time of amalgamation 
done in prior years. This reserve is not available for the distribution to the shareholders.

(iii) Employees’ stock options outstanding account
The account is used to recognise the grant date value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan and 
adjusted as and when such options are exercised or otherwise expire.  

(iv) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

“Details of promoters share holding in the 
company as on 31 March 2021”

 Shareholding as 
on 01 April 2021 

 Purchase 
during the 

year 

 Sales 
during the 

year 

Shareholding 
as on 31 

March 2022 

 % change in 
Shareholding 

(d) Details of promoters share holding in the company

Ram Chandra Agarwal  32,07,911  -  -  32,07,911 0.00%

Uma Agarwal     3,44,000  -  -  3,44,000 0.00%

Ramchandra Agarwal (HUF)     1,55,000  -  -  1,55,000 0.00%

Akash Agarwal     -  1,31,500  -  1,31,500 100.00%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited     71,70,000  -  -  71,70,000 0.00%

Unicon Marketing Private Limited     54,44,710  -  -  54,44,710 0.00%

Vishal Waterworld Private Limited  10,84,134  -  -  10,84,134 0.00%

V2 Conglomerate Limited     6,32,582  -  -  6,32,582 0.00%

Sunita Fashion Private Limited  2,48,000  -  -  2,48,000 0.00%

 1,82,86,337  1,31,500  -  1,84,17,837 
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 As at 

 31 March 2022 
 As at 

 31 March 2021

17 Non-current borrowings

Term loan

Secured 

Vehicle loans from financial institutions  11.10  75.53 

 11.10  75.53 

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 20)  11.10  63.87 

 -    11.66 

Notes:

1 Vehicle loan from Volkswagen Finance Private Limited amounting to B Nil (31 March 2021: B 53.13 lakh) was carrying an 
interest @ 9.26% per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ended in March 2022. The loan was secured 
against hypothecation of vehicle.      

2 Vehicle loan from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to B 11.10 lakh (31 March 2021: B 22.40 lakh) carries an interest @ 8.70% per 
annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ending in February 2023. The loan is secured against hypothecation 
of vehicle.      

3 Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost and analysis of their 
maturity profiles.     

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022 
 As at 

 31 March 2021
18 Other non-current financial liabilities

Security deposits*  14.74  13.84 

 14.74  13.84 
* The above amount includes security deposits received from shop-in-shop vendors.    

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022 
 As at 

 31 March 2021
19 Provisions-non-current

Provision for employee benefits 
Provision for gratuity  252.77  165.45 

Provision for compensated absences  142.03  108.53 

 394.80  273.98 
For disclosures on Gratuity and Other post employment benefit obligation, refer note 38

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022 
 As at 

 31 March 2021
20 Short-term borrowings

Secured 
   Working capital facility from bank (refer note below)  4,881.53  4,974.64 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 17 above)  11.10  63.87 

 4,892.63  5,038.51 

a. Working capital facility of Rs. 5000 lacs from PNB carries an interest @ 10.85% per annum. This facility is secured against 
stock and book debts.      

b. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows:  

Particulars

As at
Cash out 

flows 

Non cash changes As at

1 April 
2021 Lease 

additions

Impact of rent 
concession & 
leases closed

Interest 
expenses

 31 March 
2022 

Long-term borrowings  11.66  (11.66)  -    -    -    -   

"Lease liabilities (including current maturities)”  33,751.74  (5,294.82)  4,726.60  (2,854.08)  3,145.70  33,475.14 

Short-term borrowings (net)  5,038.51  (145.88)  -    -    -    4,892.63 

Interest accrued on borrowings  -    (461.40)  -    -    461.40  -   

Issuance of equity shares  3,410.50  28.43  -    -    -    3,438.93 

Total liabilities from financial activities  42,212.41  (5,885.33)  4,726.60  (2,854.08)  3,607.10  41,806.70 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars

As at
Cash out 

flows 

Non cash changes As at

1 April 
2020 Lease 

additions

Impact of rent 
concession & 
leases closed

Interest 
expenses

 31 March 
2021 

Long-term borrowings  75.74  (64.08)  -    -    -    11.66 

"Lease liabilities (including current maturities)"  28,711.60  (3,996.44)  12,477.31  (6,405.08)  2,964.35  33,751.74 

Short-term borrowings (net)  2,322.50  2,716.01  -    -    -    5,038.51 

Interest accrued on borrowings  -    (59.16)  -    -    59.16  -   

Issuance of equity shares  3,410.50  -    -    -    -    3,410.50 

Total liabilities from financial activities  34,520.34  (1,403.67)  12,477.31  (6,405.08)  3,023.51  42,212.41 

    As at  As at 

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

21 Trade payables

i.  Undisputed- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  458.94  249.91 
ii. Undisputed-  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises  10,729.63  11,484.92 

 11,188.57  11,734.83 

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
(MSMED) Act, 2006      

 Particulars    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year   

 Principal amount remaining unpaid   458.94  249.91 

 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end   -  -

ii) Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act  -   -  

iii) Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective due date.   -   -  

iv) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments (which 
have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the Act.   -   -  

v) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting period. -  14.16 

vi) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.  -   -  

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

(b) Trade payables ageing is as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed- MSME  458.94  -  -  -  458.94 

(ii) Undisputed- Others  10,729.63  -  -  -  10,729.63 

Total  11,188.57  -  -  -  11,188.57 

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed- MSME  249.91  -  -  -  249.91 

(ii) Undisputed- Others  11,484.92  -  -  -  11,484.92 

Total  11,734.83  -  -  -  11,734.83 
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended

31 March 2021

25 Revenue from operations   

 Operating revenue   

 Sale of products*  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 Other operating revenue   

 Scrap sales  115.00  84.43 

 Display income  51.33  58.48 

   62,922.49  53,864.74 

 * Details of sale of products   

 Apparels  58,542.65  49,889.86 

 Non-apparels  4,213.51  3,831.97 

  62,756.16  53,721.83 
 
 Detail of Operating revenue by Geographical locations

 In India  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 Outside India  -    -   

 Total  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 
 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

26 Other income  

 Interest from:   

 Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 566.02 958.62

 Bank deposits 14.04 41.37

Rent concession received from landlords (refer no 45) 856.05 1,072.19

 Gain on sale of assets (net) 15.61  -  

Insurance claim received 46.49 -

 Sales of consumables 21.24 3.53

 Miscellaneous income 38.95 140.13

  1,558.40  2,215.84 

 
 

 As at 
 31 March 2022 

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

23 Provisions-current

Provision for gratuity  109.83  106.22 

Provision for compensated absences  112.16  110.53 

 221.99  216.75 

For disclosures on Gratuity and Other post employment benefit obligation, refer note 38 

 
 

 As at 
 31 March 2022 

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

24 Other current liabilities

Statutory liabilities  152.81  132.79 

Revenue received in advance  12.68  5.63 

 165.49  138.42 

    As at  As at 

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

22 Other financial liabilities    

Current  

Employee related payables  538.77  583.31 

Creditors for capital purchases  255.61  357.56 

 Others    11.98  13.19 

 806.36  954.06 
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

27 Purchase of stock-in-trade   

 Purchase of stock-in-trade (refer note below)  44,213.29  44,970.28 

   44,213.29  44,970.28 

a. Details of purchase of stock-in-trade   

 Apparels  40,775.29  41,859.28 

 Non-apparels  3,438.00  3,111.00 

   44,213.29  44,970.28 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

28 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade  

 Traded goods   

 Closing stock (refer note below)  26,662.97  26,515.57 

 Opening stock  26,515.57  19,576.36 

   (147.40)  (6,939.21)

a. Details of closing stock   

 Apparels  24,584.73  24,825.99 

 Non-apparel  2,078.24  1,689.58 

   26,662.97  26,515.57 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

29 Employee benefit expense   

 Salaries, wages and bonus  5,085.58  4,074.22 

 Post-employment and other long-term benefits expense (refer note 38)  59.62  42.39 

 Contribution to provident and other funds  288.40  236.64 

 Staff welfare  198.03  176.74 

 Share based payments to employees (refer note 39)  129.19  237.51 

   5,760.82  4,767.50 
    

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

30 Finance costs  

 Interest on   

 Term loans  3.74  9.31 

 Working capital loans  445.35  39.15 

 Interest on lease liabilities  3,145.70  2,964.35 

 Others  12.30  10.70 

   3,607.09  3,023.51 
    

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

31 Depreciation and amortisation  

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  1,703.92  1,685.34 

 Amortization of intangible assets  73.90  76.55 

 Depreciation on right of use assets  3,881.54  3,616.62 

   5,659.36  5,378.51 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

32 Other expenses   

 Power, fuel and electricity  1,941.26  1,386.29 

 Water charges  8.01  14.86 

 Repair and maintenance

     - Building  12.41  64.15 

     - Plant and machinery  9.61  13.08 

     - Others  229.48  218.95 

 Rent (refer note 45)  70.63  300.36 

 Insurance charges  41.08  49.56 

 Rates and taxes  133.83  209.55 

 Bank charges  137.48  58.88 

Legal and professional  407.46  290.60 

Motor vehicle expenses  23.74  16.66 

 Printing and stationery  35.93  40.00 

Packing materials & expenses  436.55  674.40 

 Security service charges  193.34  154.83 

 GST input tax reversal  -    114.51 

 Housekeeping expenses  149.92  130.92 

 Telephone expenses  70.54  60.29 

 E-Commerce expenses  1,014.59  428.14 

 Traveling and conveyance  158.32  123.52 

 Postage and telephones  0.87  10.74 

 Payment to auditors (refer note a below)  27.56  30.25 

 Director's sitting fees  14.96  13.00 

 Credit cards charges  99.01  79.54 

 Advertisement & sales promotion  505.25  462.33 

 Commission charges  6.63  2.04 

 Transportation charges  980.57  982.73 

 Corporate social responsibility expenses  -    36.00 

 Miscellaneous expenses  314.52  222.82 

  7,023.55  6,189.00 

   

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

a.  Auditors’ remuneration  

 Statutory audit (including fees for limited reviews)  25.30  23.00 

 Other services  -    5.50 

 Out of pocket expenses  2.26  1.75 

  27.56  30.25 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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 Year ended Year ended

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

33 Details of expenditure incurred in relation to CSR activates during the year

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Act, the Board of 
Directors of the Company had constituted a CSR committee. The details for CSR 
activities are as follows:

 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years  -    1,761.99 

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  -    35.24 

 Amount spent during the year on the following:

      (a) Construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   

      (b) On purposes other than (a) above  -    36.00 

Amount unspent during the year and deposited in a scheduled bank  -    -   

Shortfall at the end of the year  -    -   

Reason of Shortfall  NA  NA 

Nature of CSR activity  NA  Education and 

social upliftment 

Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard

 -    -   

     Year ended Year ended

     31 March 2022 31 March 2021

34 Earnings per share

Loss attributable to equity shareholders before exceptional items (A)  (1,290.20)  (1,103.83)

 Nominal value per share  10.00  10.00 

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic)

 Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the beginning  3,41,05,026  3,41,05,026 

 Issued ordinary shares  2,84,315  -   

 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)  3,43,89,341  3,41,05,026 

 

 Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted)     

 No. of Options

  Category Grant date  31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 B 24 October 2017  -    3,277 

 D 2 May 2018  -    31,407 

H 27 January 2020  -    2,50,000 

  28 June 2021   2,25,000  -   

  Total ESOP’s granted    2,25,000  2,84,684 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Average price of the share  140.86  76.18 

 Face Value  10  10 

 Exercise price  10  10 

 Diluted shares (nos.)  15,973  37,370 

 Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (C)  3,44,05,314  3,41,42,396 

 Basic loss per equity share (Amount in I) (A/B)  (3.76)  (3.24)

 Diluted loss per equity share (Amount in I) (A/C)  (3.76)  (3.23)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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35 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

(a) 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt [refer note (i) below]  1,869.51  1,957.87 

Other money for which the company is contingently liable:

   Dispute under sales tax law (matters under appeal) [refer note (ii) below]  2,801.78  2,774.48 

   Dispute under service tax law (matters under appeal) [refer note (iii) below]  302.08  302.08 

   Disputes under income tax law 11,887.49 -

(i) The Company has certain cases/disputes aggregating to B 1,869.51 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 1957.87 lakhs) involving 

customers, vendors and ex-employees. Whilst the impact of these litigations on these financial statements can only be 

ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed that based on the merits of such 

cases, the Company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in 

these standalone financial statements.    

(ii) The Company has certain litigations related to Sales tax and Values added tax (VAT) pending under Rajasthan Value Added 

Tax Act, 2003 aggregating to B 441.27 lakhs, West Bengal Value Added Tax Act, 2003 aggregating to B 2,250 lakhs, The 

Assam Value Added Tax Act, 2003 aggregating to B 7.21 lakhs, The Uttar Pradesh Value Added Tax Act, 2008 aggregating 

to B 24.45 lakhs, The Haryana Value Added Tax Act, 2003 aggregating to B 19.05 lakhs and The Bihar Value Added Tax 

Act, 2005 B 59.80 lakhs. Whilst the impact of these litigations on these financial statements can only be ascertained on 

the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed that based on the merits of such cases, the 

Company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these 

standalone financial statements.    

(iii) The Company has pending litigation related to service tax under Finance Act, 1994 amounting to B 302.08 lakhs (31 

March 2021: B 302.08 lakhs). Whilst the impact of these litigations on these financial statements can only be ascertained 

on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed that based on the merits of such cases, 

the Company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these 

standalone financial statements.    

(iv) Out of contingent liabilities existing as at 31 March 2022 as disclosed above, certain cases amounting to B 747.25 lakh 

(31 March 2021: B 799.59 lakhs) comprising of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt of B 281.51 lakh 

(31 March 2021: B 282.31 lakh) and Value added tax related disputes aggregating B 465.75 lakh (31 March 2021: B 517.28 

lakh) [(included in point (i) and (ii) above] are under appeal with different authorities at different levels for which the 

management does not have necessary details and information. Whilst the impact of these contingent liabilities on the 

standalone financial statements can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has 

broadly assessed that based on the merits of such cases, the Company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and 

accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these standalone financial statements.   

(b) Commitments 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 

not provided for (net of advance)   

 38.77  401.87 

36 Segment information 

“In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Board of directors, being the Chief operating decision maker of the Company, has 

determined that the Company is engaged in the business of retail trade of garments, textiles and accessories in India and there 

are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount 

of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of 

charge for depreciation during the year is as reflected in the financial statement. The Company’s operations are such that all 

activities are confined only to India and here are no customers accounting for more than 10% of its revenue.“

37 During the current year ended 31 March 2022, the management has recorded additional provision amounting to B 628.09 (31 

March 2021: B 1,273.69 lakhs) for expected loss for sale of old inventory taking into account most reliable information available 

at the reporting date and in view of management, the provision is adequate. Further, during the current year, management 

has performed physical verification of inventories at stores and warehouse. Based on the physical verification, the Company 

has written-off inventory amounting to B 825.20 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 1,872.52 lakhs) which has been adjusted against the 

provision created. The closing provision as at March 31, 2022 is B 641.78 lakhs (March 31, 2021 B 838.89 lakhs).

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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38 Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans   

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity  109.83  252.77  106.22  165.45 

 109.83  252.77  106.22  165.45 

A Gratuity

The Company operates gratuity plan where in every employee is entitled to benefit equivalent to 15 days salary (includes 

dearness allowance) last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or 

retirement, or death whichever is earlier. The benefits vests after five years of continuous service. Gratuity benefits valued 

were in accordance with the payment of  Gratuity Act, 1972.      

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and 

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity plan:      

(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:     

Description 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost^   59.61  42.38 

Interest cost*    12.30  10.70 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss    71.91  53.08 

(ii) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Description

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year  271.67  240.63 

Current service cost  59.61  42.38 

Interest cost  12.30  10.70 

Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the year  52.69  1.27 

Benefits paid  (33.67)  (23.31)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year  362.60  271.67 

(iii) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive income is as under:

Description

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption  26.47  -   

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption  (2.64)  2.12 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment  28.86  (0.85)

Total actuarial (gain)/loss  52.69  1.27 

(iv) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for 
the Company are shown below

Description

Discount rate 4.97% 4.53%

Retirement age 58 years 58 years

Mortality rates inclusive of provision 

for disability 

100% of IALM 

(2012 - 14)

100% of IALM 

(2012 - 14)

Attrition at ages:

- Upto 30 years 50.00% 50.00%

- From 31 to 44 years 40.00% 50.00%

- Above 44 years 20.00% 50.00%

Rate of increase in compensation 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.    

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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(v) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year  362.60  271.67 

- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %  (4.78)  (2.47)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %  4.94  2.52 

Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year  362.60  271.67 

- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %  4.10  2.10 
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %  (4.03)  (2.08)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In 
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity 
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit 
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied which was 
applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.   
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior period.

Expected contribution 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected contribution to Gratuity in next year    78.97  57.62 

(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Description
Within next 12 months  109.83  107.13 
Between 2-5 years  196.29  140.86 
Beyond 5 years  56.48  23.68 

 Notes:     
 1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for 

the estimated term of obligations. 
2 The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflations, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

factors on long term basis.        
3 The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 1.72 years (31 March 2021: 1.40 years).
      
B Defined contribution scheme     
 The Company’s state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and labour welfare fund scheme are 

considered as defined contribution plans. The contribution under the schemes is recognised as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. There are no other obligations other than the contribution 
payable to the respective funds. The amount of contribution made by the Company to employees’ provident fund is B 224.36 
lakhs (31 March 2021: B 181.29 lakhs).         

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
 (i) Contributuion towards provident fund 224.36 181.29
 (ii) Contributuion towards employees’ state insurance fund 64.04 55.35
 Total 288.40 236.64

C Other long term employee benefits     

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Long term compensated absences     
 Principal assumptions for long term compensated absences   
 Discount rate 4.97% 4.53%
 Retirement age 58 years 58 years

 Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

 Attrition at ages:
 - Upto 30 years 50.00% 50.00%
 - From 31 to 44 years 40.00% 50.00%
 - Above 44 years 20.00% 50.00%
 Rate of increase in compensation   10.00% 10.00%
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Particulars Provision for 
compensated absences

As on 31 March 2020  189.20 
Addition during the year  67.40 
Utilisation / reversal during the year  37.54 
As on 31 March 2021  219.06 
Addition during the year  98.20 
Utilisation / reversal during the year  63.07 

As on 31 March 2022  254.19 

39 Share based payment

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has granted 225,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) (net of ESOP lapsed during the 

year) employee stock options (“ESOP”) as per scheme approved by “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”, at an exercise 

price of B 10 per option. Further, out of  284,684 (31 March 2021: 284,684) ESOP outstanding as at the beginning of the year, the 

Company has forfeited 369 (31 March 2021: 5,489) ESOP and Company has issued shares for 284,315 (31 March 2021: Nil) ESOP 

exercised. Total ESOP outstanding as at 31 March 2022 are 225,000 (31 March 2021: 284,684). The vesting period of the ESOP 

is ranging from 15 months to 36 months. The granted options can be exercised after vesting at any time before the expiry of 

3 months from vesting date. An amount of B 129.19 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 237.51 lakhs) has been recorded for the year ended 

31 March 2022 as employee benefits expense, as the proportionate cost of ESOP granted.   

The Company provides share-based payment scheme to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an Employee 

Stock Option Plan was introduced. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant as below, In the Annual General Meeting 

held on 30 September 2016, the Board of Directors (“Board’) has approved the V2 R-Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 (‘ESOP 

2016’) and grant of options to the eligible employee of the company under the Scheme. The Details of the scheme are as below:

a) Employee stock option scheme : 
As at 31 March 2022 the Company had the following outstanding share based payment arrangements:  

Particulars ESOP 
Scheme

Vesting 
period

Grant Date No. of 
Options 
granted

Exercise 
price per 
share (`)

Market 
price on 

the date of 
granting of 
option (`)

Tranche -I-2021 Scheme 
2016

 20 Months  28 June 
2021 

 2,25,000 10  128.55 

b) Movement of option granted

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

price

Number 
of 

options

Weighted 
average 

price

Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,84,684  156.31  2,90,173  156.31 

Granted during the year (net of lapsed)  2,25,000  128.55  -    -   

Exercised during the year  2,84,315  121.20  -    -   

Forfeited during the year  369  156.31  5,489  156.31 

Options outstanding during the year  2,25,000  128.55  2,84,684  156.31 

Options unvested at the end of the year  2,25,000  128.55  2,84,684  156.31 

Option exercisable at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   

c) Fair Valuation:

The fair valuation of the options used to compute profoma net profit and earnings per share have been done by an independent 
valuer on the date of grant using Black-Scholes Merton Formula. The key assumption and fair value are as under:  

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Change in provision for compensated absences is as below:
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40 Revenue from Contracts with Customers   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115”), establishes a framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised 
through a 5-step approach: 
(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;  
(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;  
(iii) Determine the transaction price;  
(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and  
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

 Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

 
 

Description As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current

    

 Contract liabilities related to sale of goods   

 Advance from customers  -    12.68  -    5.63 

 Contract receivables related to sale of goods   

 Trade receivables  -    94.16  -    68.99 
    
 Significant changes in contract assets and 

liabilities
  

 There has been no significant changes in contact assets/contract liabilities during the year.
    
 Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities   

 Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of major changes on account of revenue recognised in the reporting period from the 
contract liability balance at the beginning of the period and other changes.    

 Description Year ended Year ended

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Opening balance  5.63  4.59 

 Addition during the year  12.68  5.63 

 Revenue recognised during the year  (5.63)  (4.59)

 Closing balance  12.68  5.63 
    
 Disaggregation of revenue   

 Revenue arises mainly from the sale of traded goods:
    
 Description 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 (A) Sale of goods   

 Revenue from sale of goods  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 (B) Other ancillary revenue

 Scrap sales  115.00  84.43 

 Display income  51.33  58.48 

   62,922.49  53,864.74 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  

Risk free 
Interest Rate 

(%)

Life (Years) Expected 
Volatility 

(%)

Expected 
Dividend 
Yield (%)

Weighted 
average Fair 

Value Per 
Option (`)

Tranche - I -2021  7.40 1.11 23.23 - 131.16

The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise 
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the 
life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not also necessary be the actual outcome.
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Reconciliation of revenue recognised with 
contract price  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contract Price  62,756.16  53,721.83 

Less: Rebate and Discount  -    -   

Revenue from contracts with customers  62,756.16  53,721.83 

Timing of Revenue Recognition  31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue recognised at point in time  62,756.16  53,721.83 

Revenue recognised over time  -    -   

Revenue from contracts with customers  62,756.16  53,721.83 

43 Related party disclosures

(a) Directors

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mrs. Uma Agarwal (Director)

Mr. Akash Agarwal (Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mrs. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza  (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu (Non-executive Director)

Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav (Non-executive Director)

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Lalit Kumar (Non-executive Director)

(b) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Manshu Tandon (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sudhir Kumar (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Ms. Jagpreet Kaur (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) [w.e.f. 02 January 2020 upto 17 June 2020]

(c) Companies in which Directors and Key Management Personnel or their relatives have control or significant 
influence

Vishal Water World Private Limited

(d) Summary of transactions with related parties:

V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited

(e) Summary of transactions with related parties:

S. No. Particulars  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

1 Loans accepted   

 Vishal Water World Private Limited  -    5.79 

2 Loans repaid   

 Vishal Water World Private Limited  -    5.79 

3 Remuneration*   

 Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal  54.50  50.00 

 Mrs. Uma Agarwal  53.75  49.25 

Mr. Akash Agarwal  51.21  50.00 

Mr. Manshu Tandon*  69.23  61.22 

Mr. Sudhir Kumar  12.25  8.64 

Mrs. Jagpreet Kaur  -    0.35 

 240.94 219.46

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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S. 
No.

Particulars  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

4 Sales of property, plant and equipment during the year   

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  171.52  55.44 

5 Sales of Traded goods during the year

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  -    7.58 

6 Purchase of Traded goods during the year   

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  10,054.36  5,229.61 

7 Advance paid against purchase of traded goods during the year   

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  8,900.44  6,482.74 

8 Sitting fees   

 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu  3.00  3.25 

 Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav  3.00  3.25 

 Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal  3.00  3.25 

 Mr. Lalit Kumar  3.00  3.25 

9 Balance outstanding as at the year end:   

 Trade Receivable   

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  1,532.94  1,361.42 

 Advance

 V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited  99.20  1,253.12 

10 Remuneration Payable   

 Mrs. Uma Agarwal  6.50  3.83 

Mr. Akash Agarwal  11.55  -   

Mr. Manshu Tandon*  -    1.72 

 Mr. Sudhir Kumar  0.80  0.62 

18.85 6.17

11 Sitting fees Payable

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu  0.75  0.75 

Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav  0.75  0.75 

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal  0.75  0.75 

Mr. Lalit Kumar  0.75  0.75 

3.00 3.00

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Managerial Remuneration comprises of following:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Remuneration (excluding post employment benefit) 159.46 149.25

Total 159.46  149.25 

Certain KMPs also participate in post employment benefits plans provided by the Company. The amount in respect of these 
towards the KMPs can not be segregated as these are based on actuarial valuation for all employees of the Company.

*excludes the amount charged/reversed to the statement of profit and loss on grant/forfeiture of employee stock options.
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42 Fair value disclosures

A Financial instruments by category

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars FVOCI FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVOCI FVTPL Amortised 
cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost     

Security deposits  -    -    725.92  -    -    647.26 

Cash and bank balances  -    -    679.80  -    -    1,583.88 

Trade Receivables  -    -    94.16  -    -    68.99 

Other financial assets  -    -    1,716.61  -    -    1,554.66 

Total  -    -    3,216.49  -    -    3,854.79 
       
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost     

Borrowings  -    -    4,892.63  -    -    5,050.17 

Lease liabilities  -    -    33,475.14  -    -    33,751.74 

Trade payable  -    -    11,188.57  -    -    11,734.83 

Other financial liabilities  -    -    821.10  -    -    967.91 

Total  -    -    50,377.44  -    -    51,504.65 

Note: Investment in equity instrument of subsidiary is measured at cost as per Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” and 
hence, not presented here.        

B Fair values hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above has been classified into three categories depending 
on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].

Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or 
in part using a net asset value or valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

C Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost 

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are 
calculated using Level 3 inputs:         

Particulars    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

   Carrying 
value

Fair 
value

Carrying 
value

Fair value

Security deposits   725.92  725.92  647.26  647.26 

    725.92  725.92  647.26  647.26 

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, Interest accrued on bank deposits 
with banks, other current financial assets  and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely 
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.      

The fair values of borrowings, lease liabilities and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their 
fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.      
       

42(a) Financial risk management

i) Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the 
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements. 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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Risk
Exposure arising 

from
Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash 
equivalents, 

financial assets 
measured at 

amortised cost

Aging analysis Bank deposits, diversification 
of asset base, credit limits and 

collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and 
other liabilities

Rolling cash 
flow forecasts

Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk - interest rate Recognised 
variable rate 

financial liabilities 
denominated in 

Indian rupee (INR)

Cash flow 
forecasting

Company is in the process of 
reducing the debt component to 

reduce the interest rate risk

A) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investments in debt 
securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
- cash and cash equivalents,  
- loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and 
- deposits with banks

a) Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of 
customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the company, and incorporates this information into 
its credit risk controls. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. 
The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and 
factors specific to the class of financial assets.        

A: Low

B: Medium

C: High

Assets under credit risk:

Credit rating Particulars  31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021 

A: Low Security deposits  725.92  647.26 

 Cash and bank balances  679.80  1,583.88 

 Trade Receivables  94.16  68.99 

 Other financial assets  1,716.61  1,554.66 

Cash & cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and 
diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.      

Trade receivable, loans and other financial assets measured at amortised cost    

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances to employees, security deposits and others. 
Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, 
while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits.  

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the 
business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities. Management 
monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash 
flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.   

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity of Company based on their contractual 
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.        

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.      

    

31 March 2022   Less than 1 
year

1-3 year More than 
3 years

Total

Borrowings  4,892.63  -    -    4,892.63 

Lease liabilities  3,217.21  7,980.84  22,277.09  33,475.14 

Trade payable  11,188.57  -    -    11,188.57 

Other financial liabilities  806.36  14.74  -    821.10 

Total    20,104.77  7,995.58  22,277.09  50,377.44 

  

31 March 2021   Less than 1 
year

1-3 year More than 
3 years

Total

Borrowings  5,038.51  11.66  -    5,050.17 

Lease liabilities  3,196.69  6,937.47  23,617.58  33,751.74 

Trade payable  11,734.83  -    -    11,734.83 

Other financial liabilities  954.07  13.84  -    967.91 

Total    20,924.10  6,962.97  23,617.58  51,504.65 

C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

a) Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. As at 31 March 2022, the 
Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. 

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars  31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021

Variable rate borrowing  4,881.53  4,974.64 

Fixed rate borrowing  11.10  75.53 

Total borrowings   4,892.63  5,050.17 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Interest sensitivity*  

 Interest rates – increase by 100 basis points  48.82  49.75 

 Interest rates – decrease by 100 basis points  (48.82)  (49.75)

 * Holding all other variables constant  

ii) Assets

The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to 
interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because 
of a change in market interest rates.          

42(b) The Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation and business losses to the extent 
there is reasonable certainty the Company would be able to realise the deferred tax assets against future taxable income.

43 Capital management

The Company’s capital management objectives are

- to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern

- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash 
equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure 
while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. 
The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce 
debt.         

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follows.
 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total borrowings  4,892.63  5,050.17 

Less: cash and cash equivalents  719.31  1,612.22 

Net debt  4,173.32  3,437.95 

Total equity  26,014.47  27,186.48 

 Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 16.04% 12.65%

44 Advertising advance to Bennett, Coleman and Company Limited (BCCL)

 The Company executed an Advertisement contract dated 7 July 2015 for the period of 5 years with Bennet Coleman and 
Company Limited (BCCL), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to give advertisements of Rs. 5,000 lakhs, being 
the total commitment and BCCL has extended long-term credit facility amounting to Rs. 3,250 lakhs to be utilized in 
accordance with the terms of aforesaid agreement. The aforesaid agreement was further extended twice for a term of 
one year each and the management is confident of its renewal beyond July 7, 2022 basis its ongoing discussion with 
BCCL and past practice. The Company has paid Rs. 1,557.65 lakhs till year ended 31 March 2021 (outstanding since April, 
2019,) pursuant to this contract and disclosed this amount under “other non-current assets” as at 31 March 2022.  Further, 
the management  is confident of utilising the above advance with in the extended contractual period and therefore, has 
considered the aforesaid advance as good and recoverable.      

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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45 Ind AS 116 - Leases

“The Company has leases for the office , warehouse, retail stores and others. With the exception of short-term leases and 
leases with variable lease payments, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. 
The lease terms for office premises, warehouse and store sites are for an period of one year to fifteen years and having 
a lock-in period ranging from one to three years. The lease are further renewable on expiry of total lease term subject to 
mutual consent of both the parties. The Company also sub lease portion of retail stores. However, the sub-lease income is 
not material to the total lease outflows.“

A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability 
 
Particulars     31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenses relating to short term leases (included in other expenses)  70.63  300.36 

Total       70.63  300.36 

B The table below describes the nature of the Company’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on 
balance sheet:     

Right-of-use asset No of right-
of-use assets 

leased

"Range of 
remaining term 

(in years)"

"Average 
remaining 
lease term 
(in years)"

Office 1 2.19 Year 2.19 Year

Stores 101 0.1-14.33 Year 7.31 Year

Warehouse 1 3.5 Year 3.5 Year

C The following are amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:  

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amortisation expense of right-of-use assets  3,881.54  3,616.62 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  3,145.70  2,964.35 

Rent expense  70.63  300.36 

Total  7,097.87  6,881.33 

The Company had elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease modification, 
as per MCA notification dated 24 July 2020 and 18 June 2021 on Ind AS 116 for rent concessions which are granted due to 
COVID-19 pandemic. Accordingly, it has accounted for Rs. 856.05 lakhs in  year ended 31 March 2022, (Rs.1,072.19 lakhs 
in year ended 31 March 2021)  under head other income with respect to unconditional rent concessions confirmed by the 
landlord.      

For movement of lease liability refer note no. 3(i)(b) and for maturity profile of lease liability refer note 44(a).  
For Cash flow of lease liabilty refer note no. 20(b)  

46  World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak of Corona virus disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic in month 
of February 2020. Consequent to this, Government of India had declared lockdown i.e. 24 March 2020 which caused 
significant economic slowdown and disruptions of business operations. Subsequently, the second wave and third wave 
of COVID-19 has emerged in India, due to which various State Governments have also imposed lockdown in respective 
states. This had also temporarily impacted the business activities of the Company such as closure of stores and warehouse, 
disruption of supply chain, etc. The Company has prepared cash flow projections to assess the cash flow requirements 
and funds available from various sources including bank borrowings etc. consequent to uncertainty caused by COVID-
19 for next 12 months. The management has also considered the possible effects of the pandemic on the carrying values 
of assets and the business forecasts. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible impacts of this pandemic 
and cash flow projections, the Company has used internal and external information up to the date of approval of these 
financial results and current indicators of future economic conditions. The Company expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets and have sufficient liquidity for business operations for at least another twelve months. Further, the 
Company has re-assessed valuation and recoverability of inventory. In its assessment the management has considered 
projected sales, purchase, discounts, promotion schemes, other logistic costs, etc. It has carried out sensitivity analysis and 
based on the same it is of the view that provision for markdown and shrink is sufficient and appropriate to cover any loss 
that may arise due to various uncertainties involved. The impact of the pandemic on the Company’s financial results may 
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results and the management will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business.  

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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47 The Company has performed physical verfication of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2022 
in accordance with the phased program of conducting such verification over a period of 3 years.  However, the Company 
is in process of performing related reconciliation of such physical verification with the underlying fixed asset register 
maintained by the Company in respect of property, plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of Rs. 17,792.30 lakhs 
and net block of Rs. 9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022.  However the management does not impact resultant adjustments 
to be material to the financial statements.    

48 No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between 31 March 2022 and the date of authorisation.

50 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020, which would impact Employees Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, etc. The effective date from which the 
changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the final rules are yet to be framed. The impact of the changes, will be 
assessed and recognised post notification of the relevant provision and related rules are published.  

51 Other Statutory Information

(i) “The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against  
the Company for holding any Benami property.”    

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.   

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

(v) “The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
 foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:”   
“(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

 behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or”      
(b)   provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries   

(vi) “The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
 Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:”
“(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or”      
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,   

^Working capital facility has been obtained from Punjab National Bank of B 5,000 lacs. This facility is secured against all 
current assets of the Company.      

*Vehicle loan from Volkswagen Finance Private Limited amounting to B Nil (31 March 2021: B 53.13 lakh) was carrying an 
interest @ 9.26% per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ended in March 2022. The loan was secured 
against hypothecation of vehicle.      

*Vehicle loan from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to B 11.10 lakh (31 March 2021: B 22.40 lakh) carries an interest @ 8.70% 
per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ending in February 2023. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of vehicle.      

49 Assets pledged as security

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

Current assets

Inventories  26,734.12  26,535.70 

Trade Receivables  94.16  68.99 

Cash and cash equivalents  594.09  1,517.03 

Other Bank balances  85.71  66.85 

Other financial assets  1,675.78  1,499.32 

Other current assets  3,556.08  4,254.51 

 Total current assets pledged as security^  32,739.94  33,942.40 

Vehicles*  143.75  169.57 

 Total current assets pledged as security  32,883.69 34,111.97

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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(vii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961      

(viii) “The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions  
are in agreement with the books of accounts.”    

(ix) The Company has not been declared as a ‘Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India.      

(x) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.      

(xi) There is no immovable property in the books of the Company, hence disclosure with  respect to the same is not 
applicable.      

52 The Company has implemented a new Information Technology System, SAP Hana, (“new IT system”) as on 04 January 
2022  for supporting its operations and financial reporting, which required an extensive exercise of data migration 
from the erstwhile used IT system SAP ECS (“old IT system”). The Company has hired external consultant to check the 
implementation of new IT software and certify that data has been accurately and completely migrated.  

53 “Standards issued but not yet effective 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“”MCA””) vide its notification dated March 23, 2022 has notified Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 to further amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015. Amendments have been made to the following standards.”      

“Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall 
deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds received from selling items produced while 
the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.

Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost of 
fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate 
directly to fulfilling contracts. 

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies 
that which fees an entity should include when it applies the ‘10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognise 
a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) 
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf. 
The amendments listed above will be effective on or after April 1, 2022 and are not expected to significantly affect the 
current or future periods.“  

54 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever considered necessary 
including requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013, to make them comparable with current 
year classification.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of V2 Retail Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of V2 Retail Limited (‘the 
Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred 
to as ‘the Group’), as listed in Annexure 1, which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 
March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the consideration of the reports of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements except for 
the possible effects of the matters described in the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under 
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India of 
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 
March 2022, and their consolidated loss (including 
other comprehensive income), consolidated cash 
flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

3. As stated in Note 15(a) to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the Holding 
Company’s other equity as at 31 March 2022 
includes	an	amount	of	₹	365.36	lakhs	in	the	nature	of	
capital reserve arising out of business restructuring 
carried out in earlier years, for which the Holding 
Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary reconciliation and information. 
In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence, we are unable to comment upon the 
appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid 
balance, and the consequential impact, if any, 
on the financial statements. Our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements for the previous 

year ended 31 March 2021 was also modified in 
respect of this matter.

4. As stated in Note 35(a) to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the Holding 
Company’s contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 
include certain contingent liabilities aggregating 
to	 ₹	 747.26	 lakhs	 pertaining	 to	 litigations	 pending	
with various authorities, for which the Holding 
Company’s management has not been able to 
provide necessary evidence in relation to probability 
of outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits. In the absence of sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence, we are unable to comment upon the 
appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid 
amounts as provision or contingent liabilities as 
at 31 March 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 37, 
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets” and the consequential impact, if any, on the 
total liabilities and profit as at and for the year then 
ended. Our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 was 
also qualified in respect of this matter.

5. As described in Note 47 to the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the Parent 
Company has performed physical verification of 
property, plant and equipment during the year 
ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the phased 
program of conducting such verification over a 
period of 3 years. However, the Parent Company is 
in process of performing related reconciliation of 
such physical verification with the underlying fixed 
asset register maintained by the Parent Company 
in respect of property, plant and equipment with 
aggregate gross block of Rs 17,792.30 lakhs and 
net block of Rs 9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022. 
Pending completion of the said reconciliation, we 
are unable to comment on any adjustment that may 
be required to the carrying value of such Property, 
Plant and Equipment as at 31 March 2022.

6. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group, in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements under the 
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provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained together with the audit evidence obtained 
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred 
to in paragraph 21 of the Other Matter section below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

7. We draw attention to Note 48 of the accompanying 
Statement, which describes the uncertainties relating 
to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and 
the management’s evaluation of the impact on the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group as 
at the reporting date. The extent of the impact of 
these uncertainties on the Group’s operations is 
significantly dependent on future developments, as 
they evolve.

8. We draw attention to Note 45 of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, which describes 
that an advance amounting to Rs. 1,557.65 lacs (31 
March 2021: Rs. 1,557.65 lacs) outstanding since 
April 2019, as included in Non-current assets as 
at March 31, 2022 has been considered good basis 
management’s assessment of expected renewal of 

the underlying contract with Bennett, Coleman and 
Co. Limited (‘BCCL’) which will be valid till July 7, 
2022, basis past experience and ongoing discussion 
with the BCCL for such renewal. Further, the 
management is confident of the utilisation of such 
advance against future advertisement services to be 
provided by BCCL within the extended period of the 
contract and hence, has considered the aforesaid 
balance as fully recoverable as on date.

 Our opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters.

Key Audit Matters

9. Key audit matters are those matters that, in 
our professional judgment and based on the 
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on 
separate financial statements of the subsidiary, were 
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

10. We have determined the matters described below to 
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence and valuation of Inventories 

Refer note 1(vi)(k)  for significant accounting policy and 
note 8 for the financial statement disclosure.

At the end of each reporting period, management of the 
Company assesses whether there is adequate provision 
for inventory losses on account of lower net realizable 
value and obsolete inventory. 

The management applies judgement in determining 
appropriate provisions for inventory losses which 
include:

a) Applying specific identification process to ascertain 
slow moving and obsolete inventory.

b) Assessing the net realizable value of such slow 
moving and obsolete inventory.

In addition to the above, the management adopts a 
cyclical count for physical verification of inventory 
which is a complex exercise owing to the nature of the 
inventory and the multiple locations covered in such 
cyclical counts.

Considering the aforesaid complexities involved 
in cyclical physical verification of inventory which 
required us to undertake alternate audit techniques 
as described in this key audit matter, and significant

Our audit included, but was not limited to, the following 
audit procedures over inventory existence and 
valuation: 

Understood the management process for cyclical 
physical counts, identification of slow moving, non-
moving or obsolete inventories and determining net 
realisable value, and evaluated whether such processes 
are consistently followed.

Evaluated design and tested the operating effectiveness 
of controls implemented around above mentioned 
processes throughout the year.

Cyclical physical counts and physical count performed 
subsequent to year end:

Inspected management’s inventory count records and 
observed physical inventory verification for locations 
selected based on materiality and risk considerations.

Tested the roll-forward of the cyclical counts performed 
by the management for locations where such counts 
were performed before the year end.

Performed independent test counts to corroborate 
the management count for the locations selected as 
above performed roll-back procedures by verification . 
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 management judgements and estimates required with 
respect to allowance for inventory loss, existence and 
valuation of inventory was determined to be a key audit 
matter for the current year audit.

of movement between the year-end date and sample 
test count date with the supporting documents which 
included purchase invoice, sales invoice, dispatch 
register, gate inward/outward register, etc to substantiate 
the existence of inventory as at the reporting date;

Tested the adjustment made in the books of accounts 
basis the results of the physical counts performed by the 
management.

Slow-moving/obsolete inventory provisions:

Tested inventory ageing obtained through system 
reports, where applicable.

Obtained from management the list of slow and non-
moving inventories identified as on 31 March 2022 and 
their corresponding expected sales in future periods.

Tested the computation for allowance for slow-moving, 
non-moving and obsolete inventories by performing 
an independent age-wise analysis of the inventory line 
items along with specific inquiries with the management 
with respect to planned sales, corroborating the same 
with our prior experience and understanding of the 
business.

Tested the net realizable value of traded goods inventory 
on a sample basis to recent selling prices.

Compared and assessed the actual utilization/sales to 
the previous estimates done by the management in 
prior periods to determine the efficacy of the process of 
estimation by the management.

Obtained written representations from management on 
the completeness and adequacy of inventory allowance 
as at the year end.

IND AS 116- Leases

Refer note 1(vi)(h) for significant accounting policy and 
note 46 for the financial statement disclosure.

The Company has recognized the Right of Use asset 
(ROU) and corresponding lease liability amounting 
to Rs 28,638.16 and Rs 34,306.70 as at 31 March 2022, 
respectively.

During the current year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India, issued a notification dated 24 July 
2020 & 18 June 2021 amending Ind AS 116 to include a 
practical expedient by way of adding paragraphs 46A and 
46 B in the standard relating to accounting treatment of 
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence 
of COVID-19 pandemic, giving a choice to the lessee 
to elect whether the said rent concessions are to be 
treated as ‘lease modifications’ subject to meeting of the 
conditions included therein.

The Company has assessed compliance with the 
aforementioned conditions given in paragraph 46B of 
Ind AS 116 and basis such assessment elected to apply 
the said practical expedient with respect to the rent 
concessions received during the applicable period 
for various stores of the Company and accordingly, 
recognised	₹	865.98	lakhs	under	head	‘Other	income’.

Our audit included, but was not limited to, the following 
audit procedures:

Understood the management process for identification 
of leasing arrangements where the Company negotiated 
rent concession as a direct consequence of COVID-19 
pandemic for applying the practical expedient.

Evaluated design and tested the operating effectiveness 
of controls implemented around above mentioned 
processes.

Reviewed the overall impact analysis prepared by the 
management ensuring completeness of lease contracts 
and accurate application of practical expedient. Further, 
verified the integrity and arithmetical accuracy of such 
calculations.

Ensure that rent concession received from the lessors 
as considered for application of practical expedient is 
received as a direct consequence of COVID-19 basis 
inspection of underlying communication between the 
company and the lessors.

Tested the accuracy of the underlying lease data used to 
calculate the rent concession, by agreeing a representative 
sample of leases to original contracts, addenda and other 
supporting documents;
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In order to compute the rent concession amount to apply 
the practical expedient, a significant data extraction 
exercise was undertaken by management to summarize 
the relevant data relating to lease contracts. Further, the 
determination of rent concession amount using practical 
expedient and assessing compliance with the conditions 
given under paragraph 46B involved application of 
significant judgements and estimates.

Owing to the volume of the lease contracts, materiality 
of the impact of practical expedient and the estimates 
involved, we have considered this matter to be a key 
audit matter in our audit.

Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy of 
disclosures made in the financial statements with respect 
to Lease liability, Right of Use Assets and application of 
practical expedient, in conformity with the Ind AS 116.

•	 Obtained	written	representations	from	management	
on the completeness of lease data and application of 
practical expedient.

Implementation of new Information Technology (‘IT’) 
System for financial reporting and related migration 
of data:

From 04 January 2022, the Company has implemented 
a new IT System, SAP Hana, for supporting its operations 
and financial reporting, which required an extensive 
exercise of data migration from the erstwhile used IT 
system (SAP ECS).

Such significant system change increases the risk to the 
internal financial controls environment. These changes 
represent a financial reporting risk while migration takes 
place as controls and processes that have been established 
over a number of years are updated and migrated into a 
new environment. Hence, considering the significance 
of the activity and the pervasive impact on the financial 
statements, this matter has been determined as a key 
audit matter for current year audit.

Our audit work included, but was not limited to, the 
following procedures: 

•	 Obtained	 the	 understanding	 of	 the	 process	
followed by the Company for implementing the 
new IT system and migration of standing data 
from erstwhile IT systems into SAP Hana, including 
proper authorization, completeness, accuracy and 
manual controls put in place in such process.

•	 Tested	the	migrated	balances,	for	completeness	and	
accuracy as of January 4, 2022.

•	 Evaluated	 the	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of key controls over the new 
system implementation, which includes the 
overall project implementation plan; project roles 
and responsibilities; approval for new system 
requirements; and inspection of formal sign-offs 
including authorisation for go-live.

•	 Tested	substantively	a	sample	general	/	sub-ledger	
balances, masters and balances of the financially 
significant data within the financial systems from 
old system to the new system.

•	 We	evaluated	the	design	and	operating	effectiveness	
of the IT General Controls (ITGCs) and business 
processes post migration (both automated and 
manual) of the new system, and evaluated the 
impact of results in planning our audit procedures.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial 

Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

11. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

12. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements have been approved by the Holding 
Company’s Board of Directors. The Holding 
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in 
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
including its associates and joint ventures in 
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and its associates and joint 
ventures are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, 
as aforesaid.

13. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing 
the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

14. Those respective Board of Directors are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the companies included in the Group.

 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Standards on Auditing will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements.

16. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

•	 Identify	 and	 assess	 the	 risks	 of	 material	
misstatement of theconsolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control;

•	 Obtain	 an	 understanding	 of	 internal	 control	
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Holding Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.};

•	 Evaluate	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management;

•	 Conclude	 on	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 Board	 of	
Directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern; and

•	 Evaluate	 the	 overall	 presentation,	 structure	
and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain	 sufficient	 appropriate	 audit	 evidence	
regarding the financial information/ financial 
statements of the entities or business activities 
within the Group, to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial statements 
of such entities included in the financial 
statements, of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the 
financial statements, which have been audited 
by the other auditors, such other auditors remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audits carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

17. We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

18. We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

19. From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

20. We did not audit the financial statements of one 
subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects total 

assets	of	 ₹5,250.39	 lakhs	and	net	 assets	of	 ₹	 1,479.20	
lakhs as at	31	March	2022,	total	revenues	of	₹9,573.28	
lakhs	 and	net	 cash	outflows	amounting	 to	 ₹	 615.96	
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered 
in the consolidated financial statements. These 
financial statements have been audited by other 
auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the 
management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this 
subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) 
of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiary are based solely on the report of 
the other auditor.

 Our opinion above on the consolidated financial 
statements, and our report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements below, are not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done by and the report of the 
other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

21. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on 
our audit and on the consideration of the report of 
the other auditor, referred to in paragraph 21, on 
separate financial statements of the subsidiary, we 
report that the Holding Company under the Act 
have paid remuneration to their respective directors 
during the year in accordance with the provisions 
of and limits laid down under section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act are not applicable to one subsidiary 
company, incorporated in India whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act, since 
such company is not a public company as defined 
under section 2(71) of the Act.s

22. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of 
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the 
Order’) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the 
consideration of the Order reports issued by us and 
by the respective other auditor as mentioned in 
paragraph 21 above, of companies included in the 
consolidated financial statements and covered under 
the Act we report that there are no qualifications or 
adverse remarks reported in the respective Order 
reports of such companies.

23. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of the report of 
the other auditor on separate financial statements 
and other financial information of the subsidiary, 
incorporated in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, we report, to the 
extent applicable, that:
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a) We have sought and except for the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of 
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the report 
of the other auditor, except for the possible 
effects of the matters described in paragraph 
3, paragraph 4 and paragraph 5 of the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion section with respect to the 
financial statements of the Holding Company;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements;

d) Except for the possible effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, in our opinion, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements comply with 
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) 

f) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company, and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the Holding Company, and the 
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary 
company, covered under the Act, none of the 
directors of the Group company, are disqualified 
as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) The qualifications relating to the maintenance 
of accounts and other matters connected 
therewith are as stated in paragraph 3, paragraph 
4 and paragraph 5 of the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion section with respect to the Holding 
Company,;

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company, and its 
subsidiary company, covered under the Act, and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I’ 
wherein we have expressed a modified opinion; 
and

i) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and 
other financial information of the subsidiary 
incorporated in India whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act: 

i. Except for the possible effects of the 
matters described in paragraph 4 of the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the 
consolidated financial statements disclose 
the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the 
Group, as at 31 March 2022, as detailed in 
Note 35(a) to the consolidated financial 
statements;

ii. The Holding Company, its subsidiary 
company, did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses as at 31 March 2022;

iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Holding Company, and its subsidiary 
company, covered under the Act, during 
the year ended 31 March 2022;

iv. a. The respective managements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India whose financial 
statements have been audited under the 
Act have represented to us and the other 
auditors of such subsidiary, respectively 
that,to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or securities premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 
Company or its subsidiary company, to or 
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Holding Company, or any 
such subsidiary company, (‘the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

 b. The respective managements of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary 
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company, incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act have represented to us and 
the other auditors of such subsidiary, 
respectively that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Holding Company or its 
subsidiary company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the 
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Holding Company, or any such 
subsidiary company, shall, whether 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and

 c. Based on such audit procedures performed 
by us and that performed by the auditors 
of the subsidiary, as considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our or other auditors’ 
notice that has caused us or the other 
auditors to believe that the management 
representations under sub-clauses 
(a) and (b) above contain any material 
misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company and its subsidiary 
company, have not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year ended 31 March 
2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner

Membership No.: 096521
UDIN: 22096521AJWUAG1443

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022



Annual Report 2021-22 151 

Corporate
Overview

Notice Financial Statements
and Notes

Statutory
Section

Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of V2 Retail Limited on the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Annexure I

Independent Auditor’s report on the internal financial 
controls with reference to the consolidated financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of V2 Retail Limited (‘the 
Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as 
‘the Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2022, we have audited the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary company,, which are 
companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 

with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary company, which are 
companies covered under the Act, are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting 
(‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s 
business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal 

Financial Controls with Reference to Financial 

Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements, 
and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements includes obtaining an 
understanding of such internal financial controls, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the 
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary company, as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference 

to Financial Statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements include those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations 
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of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

8. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our audit, the following material 
weaknesses have been identified in the operating 
effectiveness of the holding’s internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements as at 
31 March 2022:

a) The Holding’s internal financial controls over 
retention of adequate information towards 
reconciliation of capital reserve in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India were not operating effectively, which 
could lead to a potential material misstatement 
in Other equity in the accompanying financial 
statements.

b) The Holding’s internal financial controls over 
retention of adequate information towards 
estimating provisions and contingent liabilities 
with respect to outstanding litigations were not 
operating effectively, which could result in an 
inappropriate assessment of the accuracy and 
completeness of provisions and contingent 
liabilities, which is not in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standard 37 - Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

c) The Holding’s internal financial controls system 
over the reconciliation of physically verified 

property, plant and equipment with the books of 
account were not operating effectively, which 
could lead to a potential material misstatement 
in the carrying value of the PPE and its 
consequential impact on earnings, other equity 
and related disclosures in the accompanying 
financial statements.

Other Matter

9. We did not audit the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements insofar as it relates 
to one subsidiary companies, which are companies 
covered under the Act, whose financial statements 
reflect	total	assets	of	₹5,250.39	lakhs	and	net	assets	of	
₹1,479.20	 lakhs	as	at31st March 2022, total revenues 
of	₹9,573.28	lakhs	and	net	cash	outflows	amounting	
to	 ₹615.96	lakhs	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date,	as	
considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
The consolidated financial statements also include 
the Group’s share of net profit (including other 
comprehensive	 income)	 of	 ₹	 255.91	 for	 the	 year	
ended 31st March 2022. The internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in 
so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have 
been audited by other auditors whose report has 
been furnished to us by the management and our 
report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements for the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary company, as aforesaid, under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such 
subsidiary company is based solely on the reports 
of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter with respect 
to our reliance on the work done by and on the 
reports of the other auditors.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner

Membership No.: 096521
UDIN: 22096521AJWUAG1443

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022
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Annexure I

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted along 
with Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Results

Figure in Rs. Lakh, except for per share data
Statement on impact of audit qualifications for the financial year ended 31 March 2022
[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

I. S. 
No.

Particulars Audited Figures 
(as reported 

before adjusting 
for qualifications)

Audited Figures 
(as reported after 

adjusting for 
qualifications)

1. Turnover /total income 64,511.39 64,511.39

2. Total expenditure 65,997.25 65,997.25

3. Net (Loss)/profit for the period (1,167.72) (1,167.72)

4. Earnings per share (3.40) (3.40)

5. Total assets 79,218.30 79,218.30

6. Total liabilities 53,398.46 53,398.46

7. Net worth 25,819.84 25,819.84

8. Any other financial item (as felt appropriate by the 
management)

Nil Nil

II. Audit qualification (each audit qualification separately)

a. Details of audit qualifications: 

 The audit report of statutory auditors includes following qualifications on the audited consolidated 
financial statements/results for the year/quarter ended March 31, 2022:

 As stated in Note 4 to the accompanying consolidated financial results, the Holding Company’s other 
equity	as	at	31	March	2022	includes	an	amount	of	₹	365.36	lakhs	in	the	nature	of	capital	reserve	arising	out	
of business restructuring carried out in earlier years, for which the Holding Company’s management 
has not been able to provide necessary reconciliation and information. In the absence of sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment upon the appropriateness and classification of 
the aforesaid balance, and the consequential impact, if any, on the financial statements. Our opinion 
on the consolidated financial results for the previous year ended 31 March 2021 was also modified in 
respect of this matter.

 As stated in Note 5 to the accompanying consolidated financial results, the Holding Company’s 
contingent	liabilities	as	at	31	March	2022	include	certain	contingent	liabilities	aggregating	to	 ₹	747.26	
lakhs pertaining to litigations pending with various authorities, for which the Holding Company’s 
management has not been able to provide necessary evidence in relation to probability of outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits. In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are 
unable to comment upon the appropriateness and classification of the aforesaid amounts as provision 
or contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 in accordance with Ind AS 37, “Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying 
statements. Our opinion on the consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 March 2021 was 
also qualified in respect of this matter.

 As described in Note 10 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Parent Company 
has performed physical verification of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 
2022 in accordance with the phased program of conducting such verification over a period of 3 years. 
However, the Parent Company is in process of performing related reconciliation of such physical 
verification with the underlying fixed asset register maintained by the Parent Company in respect of 
property, plant and equipment with aggregate gross block of Rs 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs 
9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022. Pending completion of the said reconciliation, we are unable to 
comment on any adjustment that may be required to the carrying value of such Property, Plant and 
Equipment as at 31 March 2022.
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b. Type of audit qualification: Qualified Opinion/Disclaimer of Opinion/Adverse Opinion 

 Qualified opinion

c. Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time/repetitive/since how long continuing

 Repetitive- Qualification stated in (i) is continuing in the auditors’ report of holding company from the 
financial year ended 31 March 2011.

 Qualification stated in (ii) is continuing in the auditors’ report of holding company from the financial 
year ended 31 March 2012. However, the figure mentioned has been updated.

d. For audit qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management’s Views:

 Management’s view: not applicable

e. For audit qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:

 Not quantified

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

a) The Holding Company restructured its business in the financial year 2010-11 resulting in creation of 
capital reserve amounting to Rs. 60,523.24 lakh. The aforementioned reserve has been reconciled 
except for Rs. 365.36 lakh which the Holding Company is in the process of reconciling. However, 
the management believes that there is no impact of the same on consolidated statement of profit 
and loss.

b) Out of contingent liabilities existing as at 31 March 2022, certain liabilities aggregating to Rs. 747.26 
lakh are under appeal with different authorities at different levels. Whilst the impact of contingent 
liabilities on these results can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, 
management has broadly assessed basis available information/ documentation that based on the 
merits of such cases, the Holding Company has reasonably good chances on succeeding and 
accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these consolidated financial results.

c) The parent Company has performed physical verification of property, plant and equipment 
during the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the phased program of conducting 
such verification over a period of 3 years.  However, the parent Company is in process of 
performing related reconciliation of such physical verification with the underlying fixed asset 
register maintained by the parent Company in respect of property, plant and equipment with 
aggregate gross block of Rs. 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs. 9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022.  
However the management does not impact resultant adjustments to be material to the financial 
statements.

(iii) Auditor’s comments on (i) and (ii) above:

 Since management could not ascertain the impact, the auditors have given qualifications in their 
auditor’s report.

III Signatories:
    
Yours Sincerely,  
For V2 Retail Limited  

Ram Chandra Agarwal 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN 00491885                                         

Akash Agarwal 
Chief Financial Officer  

Lalit Kumar     
Audit Committee Chairman  

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2022

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish
Partner  
Membership No. 096521
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125
Place: New Delhi    
Date: 30 May 2022

Particulars
Notes

 
As at

 31 March 2022
As at

 31 March 2021 
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2  10,290.22  10,491.21 
Right of use assets (ROU) 3 (i)  28,638.16  28,953.78 
Intangible assets 3 (ii)  454.82  49.19 
Intangible assets under development 3 (iii)  -    462.47 
Financial assets

Other financial assets 5  801.91  718.21 
Deferred tax assets (net) 6  2,741.30  2,409.88 
Non-current tax assets (net) 7  180.09  221.66 
Other non-current assets 8  1,872.09  1,923.57 
Total non-current assets  44,978.59  45,229.97 
Current assets
Inventories 9  29,077.63  30,176.57 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10  94.16  65.81 
Cash and cash equivalents 11  653.86  2,192.77 
Other bank balances  85.71  66.85 
Other financial assets 12  145.83  140.90 
Other current assets 13  4,182.53  3,436.97 

Total current assets  34,239.72  36,079.87 
Assets held for sale  -    -   
Total assets  79,218.31  81,309.84 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14  3,438.93  3,410.50 
Other equity 15  22,380.90  23,458.97 
Total equity  25,819.83  26,869.47 
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 16  560.81  11.66 
Lease Liability 3 (i)  30,885.08  30,936.12 
Other financial liabilities 17  14.74  13.84 
Provisions (Employee benefit obligation) 18  403.59  279.57 
Deferred tax liability (net)

Total non-current liabilities  31,864.22  31,241.19 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 19  4,892.63  5,368.51 
   Lease Liability 3 (i)  3,421.64  3,309.71 
     Trade payables 20

(a)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  462.55  249.91 
(b)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small  

 enterprises
 11,491.48  12,894.49 

    Other financial liabilities 21  868.37  1,010.74 
Provisions (Employee benefit obligation) 22  225.22  218.91 
Other current liabilities 23  172.37  146.91 
Total current liabilities  21,534.26  23,199.18 
Total liabilities  79,218.31  81,309.84 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125
Place: New Delhi    
Date: 30 May 2022

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 Notes
 

 For the year ended 
 31 March 2022 

 For the year ended 
 31 March 2021 

Income

Revenue from operations 24  62,922.49  53,864.74 

Other income 25  1,588.90  2,296.54 

Total income  64,511.39  56,161.28 

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade 26  39,090.41  44,465.13 

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 27  1,149.95  (8,677.33)

Direct expenses 28  2,526.80  1,801.90 

Employee benefits expense 29  6,300.30  5,068.42 

Finance costs 30  3,657.18  3,128.10 

Depreciation and amortization expense 31  5,883.08  5,551.32 

Other expenses 32  7,389.53  6,352.84 

Total expenses  65,997.25  57,690.38 

Loss before exceptional items and tax  (1,485.86)  (1,529.10)

Exceptional item  -    -   

Loss before tax  (1,485.86)  (1,529.10)

Tax expense: 5

Current tax  -    -   

Deferred tax (income)/charge  (318.14)  (244.83)

Total tax expense  (318.14)  (244.83)

Loss for the year  (1,167.72)  (1,284.27)

Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss) of defined employee benefit plans  (52.80)  (1.55)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  13.28  0.37 

Other comprehensive loss for the year  (39.52)  (1.18)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,207.24)  (1,285.45)

Significant accounting policies 1

Earnings per share (face value of I 10 each)

Basic (B) 34  (3.40)  (3.77)

Diluted (B)  (3.39)  (3.76)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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 For the year ended 
 31 March 2022

 For the year ended 
 31 March 2021 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax  (1,485.86)  (1,529.10)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  5,883.08  5,551.32 
Interest income  (581.84)  (1,051.40)
Intangible assets under development written-off  51.00 
Rent concession on lease rentals  (865.98)  (1,101.48)
Finance charges  3,657.18  3,128.10 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (15.61)  -   
Provision against inventory  628.10  838.89 
Provision against advances  57.53  -   
Balances written off  31.22  339.84 
Share based payments expense  129.19  237.51 

Operating profit before working capital changes  7,488.01  6,413.68 
Movement in working capital

Movement in trade payables  (1,190.39)  2,920.12 
Movement in trade receivables  (28.35)  (65.12)
Movement in provisions  77.55  65.21 
Movement in other liabilities  25.47  25.72 
Movement in other financial iabilities  (43.58)  92.44 
Movement in inventories  470.83  (9,497.10)
Movement in other financial assets  (33.99)  1,987.32 
Movement in other assets  (945.73)  (1,578.90)

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities post working capital 
changes

 5,819.82  363.37 

Income taxes paid (net)  41.58  (26.17)
Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating activities (A)  5,861.40  337.20 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress and 
payable towards property, plant and equipment)

 (1,608.47)  (2,706.22)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 121.45  -   
Purchase of intangible assets  (68.05)  (52.30)
Investment in fixed deposits, net  (30.03)  636.95 
Interest received  14.04  91.54 

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from investing activities (B)  (1,571.06)  (2,030.03)
C. Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from issuance of equity share
Proceeds from money against share warrants
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares  28.43  -   
(Repayment of) / proceeds from current borrowings (net)  (475.88)  2,550.82 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings  666.00  -   
Repayment of non-current borrowings  (116.85)  (482.08)
Payment of lease liabilities  (5,468.50)  (4,114.68)
Interest paid  (462.45)  (117.68)

Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (C)  (5,829.25)  (2,163.62)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,538.91)  (3,856.45)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  2,192.77  6,049.22 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  653.86  2,192.77 
Components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash on hand  160.01  429.58 
Balance with banks:
 -in current accounts  493.85  1,763.19 
Total  653.86  2,192.77 

Note:
The cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect method”, as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements   
As per our report of even date attached

Statement of Consolidated Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125
Place: New Delhi    
Date: 30 May 2022
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B Other equity

 Particulars  Attributable to owners of V2 Retail Limited 

 Total 
 

 
 Reserves and surplus 

 Retained 
earnings 

 Securities 
premium 

reserve 

 Capital 
reserve 

 Share options 
outstanding 

account 

Balance as at 1 April 2020  (66,250.89)  29,574.09  61,043.56  140.14  24,506.90 

Loss for the year  (1,284.27)  -    -    -    (1,284.27)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)  (1.18)  -    -    -    (1.18)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,285.44)  -    -    -    (1,285.44)

Employee stock options charge for the year (refer 
note 29)

 -    -    -    237.51  237.51 

Balance as at 1 April 2021  (67,536.34)  29,574.09  61,043.56  377.65  23,458.97 

Balance as at 1 April 2021  (67,536.34)  29,574.09  61,043.56  377.65  23,458.96 

Loss for the year  (1,167.72)  -    -    -    (1,167.72)

Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax)  (39.52)  -    -    -    (39.52)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,207.24)  -    -    -    (1,207.24)

Employee stock options exercised during the year  -    397.29  -    (397.29)  -   

Employee stock options charge for the year (refer note 

29)

 -    -    -    129.19  129.19 

Balance as at 31 March 2022  (68,743.58)  29,971.38  61,043.56  109.55  22,380.89 

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening Balance  3,410.50  3,410.50 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period  -    -   

Changes in equity share capital during the year  28.43  -   

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors  -    -   

Closing Balance  3,438.93  3,410.50 

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125
Place: New Delhi    
Date: 30 May 2022
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

1. i) Corporate Information
 V2 Retail Limited formerly known as Vishal Retail Limited (‘Holding Company’) is a public Company domiciled 

in India and incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Group’s ethos stands for “value and 
variety” and remains focused on selling quality fashion garments for significant lower prices targeting the very 
core of the nation. With currently 101 stores under its umbrella out of which 3 in Delhi-NCR, 26 in Bihar, 24 in 
Uttar Pradesh, 15 in Odisha, 6 in Assam, 4 in Karnataka, 3 in Madhya Pradesh, 8 in Jharkhand, 5 in Uttarakhand, 
2 in Goa and 1 each in Himachal, West Bangal, Jammu & Kashmir, Arunachal Pradesh and Tripura,it has been 
successfully serving the Indian retail market for more than 25 years. The Holding Company is listed on both 
National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) having its registered office located at Khasra 
No. 928, Extended Lal Dora Abadi Village, Kapashera Border, Tehsil Vasant Vihar, New Delhi – 110037.

 The Holding Company has one wholly owned subsidiary, V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited (‘VSMPL’)
which was incorporated on October 25, 2019.VSMPL is in the business of manufacturing of apparels.

ii) Application of new and revised Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

 All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the consolidated financial statements are authorized have been considered 
in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

iii) Basis of preparation

 The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as 
defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 prescribed under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Ind AS”) and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 
and the guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India to the extent applicable.

 The Consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 
2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other explanatory Information for 
the year ended 31 March 2022.

 The wholly owned subsidiary,V2 Smart Manufacturing Private Limited was incorporated on 25 October 2019 and 
had commenced its business on 12 November 2019. 

 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. All assets 
and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other 
criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products 
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification 
of assets and liabilities.

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention basis except for the 
following –

•	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 
instruments); and

•	 De₹ned	bene₹t	plans	–	plan	assets	measured	at	fair	value.

•	 Assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost to sell.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Indian Rupees (B), which is also the functional 
currency of the Holding Company and all amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes 
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise 
stated.

iv) Basis of consolidation

 The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Holding Company and its 
wholly owned subsidiary as at 31 March 2022. 
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 The financial statements of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting 
date as that of the Holding Company.

 Subsidiaries are all entities over which, Holding Company exercises control. Holding Company exercises control 
only if it has the following:

a)  power over the entity

b)  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and 

c)  the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of its returns.

 The Holding Company or any of its subsidiaries, whether it controls an entity, if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

 The difference between the cost of investment in subsidiaries (investee company) to the Group and the 
proportionate share in the equity of the investee Company as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. Goodwill arising on 
consolidation is tested for impairment at the Balance Sheet date. Non-controlling interests which represent part 
of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the 
Group, are excluded.

 The Consolidation of the financial statements of subsidiaries begins on the date control is established.

v) Use of estimates

 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application 
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in 
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the 
consolidated financial statements.

vi) Significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is:

•	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle*

•	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

•	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

•	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 

 All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 A liability is current when:

•	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle*

•	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

•	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

•	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period

 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

 *Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
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for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

b) Property, plant and equipment

 Recognition and initial measurement

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the  purchase price. Subsequent 
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it	is	probable	that	future	economic	bene₹ts	attributable	to	such	subsequent	cost	associated	with	the	item	will	₹ow	
to	the	Group.	All	other	repair	and	maintenance	costs	are	recognized	in	consolidated	statement	of	pro₹t	or	loss	as	
incurred. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

 In case an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired on deferred payment basis, interest expenses 
included in deferred payment is recognized as interest expense and not included in cost of asset. 

 Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method arrived on the basis 
of the useful life which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for 
furniture and fixtures and vehicles in which useful lives are different from those prescribed under Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of furniture and fixtures and vehicles, the management believes that these 
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to 
be used. The following useful life of assets has been taken by the Group:

Tangible Assets Useful Life as per the 
Schedule II

Useful Life as assessed 
by the management

Plant and machinery 15 Years 15 Years

Furniture and fittings 10 Years 8 Years

Vehicles-Motor Cycle 10 Years 10 Years

Vehicles-Motor cars 8 Years 8 Years

Office equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Computer equipment 3 Years 3 Years

Servers and networking equipment 6 Years 6 Years

Electrical equipment &fittings 10 Years 10 Years

Air conditioners 10 Years 10 Years

 The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 Where,	during	any	 ₹nancial	year,	any	addition	has	been	made	to	any	asset,	or	where	any	asset	has	been	sold,	
discarded,	demolished	or	destroyed,	or	signi₹cant	components	replaced;	depreciation	on	such	assets	is	calculated	
on	a	pro	rata	basis	as	individual	assets	with	speci₹c	useful	life	from	the	month	of	such	addition	or,	as	the	case	may	
be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

 De-recognition

	 An	 item	of	 property,	 plant	 and	 equipment	 and	 any	 signi₹cant	 part	 initially	 recognizedis	 de-recognized	upon	
disposal	or	when	no	future	economic	bene₹ts	are	expected	from	its	use	or	disposal.	Any	gain	or	loss	arising	on	
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

c) Intangible Assets

 Recognition and initial measurement

 Purchased intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. 
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

	 All	 ₹nite-lived	intangible	assets	are	accounted	for	using	the	cost	model	whereby	capitalized	costs	are	amortized	
on	a	 straight-line	basis	over	 their	 estimated	useful	 lives.	The	estimated	useful	 life	of	 an	 identi₹able	 intangible	
asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other 
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of 
maintenance	expenditures	required	to	obtain	the	expected	future	cash	₹ows	from	the	asset.	The	following	useful	
lives are applied:

 Intangible assets    Useful life (in years)

 Software     Amortized over a period of 3 years

 De-recognition

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

d) Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Groupassesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups 
of assets.

 These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

 Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

e) Non-current assets held for sale

 Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

 Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as 
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

f) Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist 
of interest calculated using the effective interest rate (EIR) and other costs like finance charges in respect of the 
finance leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 17, that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

g) Functional and presentation currency

 The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Holding Company’s 
functional currency. 

 Foreign currencies

 Transactions and balances

 Initial recognition

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
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 Subsequent measurement

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with 
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items 
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).

 Exchange differences

 Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit 
and loss in the year in which they arise.

h) Leases

(i) Transition

 Effective 1 April 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts 
existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method and elected to measure the right-of-use assets 
at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that existed at the 
date of transition. Consequently, the Group recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments 
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and the right of use asset at its 
carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date of the lease. Accordingly, 
Group has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application (1 April 2019). 
Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore 
will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for year ended 
31 March 2019.

(ii) The Group as a lessee

 The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of property leases. The Group assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract 
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or 
less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the 
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

 Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

 The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 
option.
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i) Fair value measurement

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transactionbetween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption thatthe transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

•	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by theGroup.

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
whenpricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

 The Groupuses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
areavailable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use 
ofunobservable inputs.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statementsare 
categorizedwithinthe fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair valuemeasurement as a whole:

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
isdirectly or indirectly observable

 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable

 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statementson a recurring basis, the 
Groupdetermineswhether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization 
(based on the lowestlevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period or each case.

 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Grouphas determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

j) Trade receivables

 Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

k) Inventories

 The Group has only trading goods in its inventory which is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 
of inventory comprises of cost of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
condition and location. Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method.

 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

l) Revenue recognition

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties.

 The Grouprecognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities 
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of 
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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 Sale of goods

 The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling quality fashion garments. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
recognised when Group sells a product to the customer.

 It is the Group’s policy to sell its products to the end customer with a right of return within 30 days. Accumulated 
experience is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the time of sale.

 Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade 
discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on 
sales such as goods and service tax (GST).

 Income from services

 Revenues from rent and display activities are recognized as per the terms of the contract.

 Interest income

 Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate 
applicable. 

 For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. The future cash flows include all other transaction costs 
paid or received, premiums or discounts if any, etc. 

m) Financial instruments

 Financial instruments are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair 
value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. 

 If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Group 
accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

•	 at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active 
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses 
only data from observable markets. The Grouprecognizes the difference between the fair value at initial 
recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss. 

•	 in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the 
fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Grouprecognizes that 
deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) 
that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. 

 Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

 Financial assets 

 Classification and subsequent measurement 

 For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon 
initial recognition: 

i. Financial assets at amortized cost – a financial instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the 
following conditions are met: 

•	 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows, and 

•	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 
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ii. Financial assets at fair value

•	 Investments in equity instruments other than above – All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are 
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value 
through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same 
either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL). The Group makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made 
on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

 If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain 
or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the P&L. 

•	 Mutual funds – All mutual funds in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL). 

 De-recognition of financial assets

 A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

 Financial liabilities

 Subsequent measurement

 After initial recognition, the financial liabilities, other than derivative liabilities,are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method (EIR). 

 Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss. 

 De-recognition of financial liabilities

 A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 Impairment of financial assets

 The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments.

 For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

 Defined Contribution plan

 Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Groupmakes defined 
contribution to Government Employee Provident Fund, Employee Deposit Linked Insurance and ESI which are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.
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 The Group recognizes contributions payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee 
renders the related services. The Group has no obligation other than the contribution payableto the Provided 
Fund. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future 
payments is available.

 Defined benefit plan

 The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. 

 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

 Other employee benefits

 Compensated absences

 Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the 
balance sheet date is recognizedon the basis of undiscounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or 
estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences 
becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis 
of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

 The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected 
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period 
using the actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The 
benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurementas a result of experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual 
settlement is expected to occur.

 Other short-term benefits

 Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of amount paid or payable for the 
period during which services are rendered by the employees.

o) Employee stock option plan

 The cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognized based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date. 
The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase 
in other equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is period over which all of the 
specified vesting conditions are satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number 
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the 
impact of revision to original estimates, if any, in consolidated statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding 
adjustment to equity. The fair value of options is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.

p) Provisions

 Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
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 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value 
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability.

q) Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events including a bonus issue.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares 
would decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

r) Taxes

 Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable 
income.

 Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits (Minimum alternate tax credit 
entitlement) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit 
or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items 
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority.

s) Segment reporting

 The Group is engaged in the business of retail trade of garments, textiles and accessories in India and there are 
no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 ‘Segment Reporting’.
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t) Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

u) Contingent liabilities 

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

v) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

 The following are the critical judgments and the key estimates concerning the future that management has made 
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that may have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial Statements or that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

i. Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets – Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of 
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties 
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain 
software, IT equipment and other plant and equipment. 

ii. Defined benefit obligation (DBO) – Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical 
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of 
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses. 

iii. Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets – The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

iv. Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on 
an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. 

v. Contingent liabilities – The Group is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range of 
matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is 
difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases and claims against the Group often raise 
difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to many uncertainties, including but not 
limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences 
in applicable law. In the normal course of business, management consults with legal counsel and certain 
other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Group accrues a liability when it is determined 
that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

vi. Inventories – The Group estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most 
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected 
by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. Further, the 
Group also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage, pilferage etc. along with NRV impact on old inventory 
taking into account most reliable information available at the reporting date.
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3 (i) Right of use assets and lease liabilities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets and lease liabilities and the movements during the year:  

Particulars  Total
(a) Right-of-use assets
Cost
Balance as on 1 April 2020  36,337.50 
Add: Additions during the year  12,679.55 

Less: Deletion during the year  (4,512.41)
Balance as at 31 March 2021  44,504.64 
Add: Additions during the year  5,277.54 
Less: Deletion during the year  (1,552.60)
Balance as at 31 March 2022  48,229.58 

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as on 1 April 2020  11,805.00 
Add: Amortisation for the year (refer note 31)  3,745.86 
Balance as at 31 March 2021  15,550.86 
Add: Amortisation for the year (refer note 31)  4,040.56 
Balance as at 31 March 2022  19,591.42 

Net carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2021  28,953.78 
Balance as at 31 March 2022  28,638.16 

(b) Lease liabilities
 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance  34,245.83  29,307.14 
Add: Addition in lease liabilities during the year  5,198.64  12,477.31 
Add: Deletion in lease liabilities during the year  (1,998.01)  (5,332.89)
Add: Interest on lease liabilities  3,194.74  3,010.41 
Less: Rent concession on lease rentals  (865.98)  (1,101.48)
Less: Lease liabilities paid  (5,468.50)  (4,114.66)
Closing balance  34,306.72  34,245.83 
Current  3,421.64  3,309.71 
Non-current  30,885.08  30,936.12 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

2 Property, plant and equipment  

Description Leasehold 
improve-

ments

Vehicle Office 
equip-
ments

Plant and 
machin-

ery

Air con-
ditioner

Genera-
tor Set

Electrical 
equip-
ments

Furniture 
and fix-

ture

Compu-
ter hard-

ware

Total

Gross carrying value 

As at 1 April 2020  363.86  352.49  3,252.79  934.09  -  -  2,769.98  5,299.07  1,582.82  14,555.10 

Additions  122.21  -  397.18  545.95  -  -  463.01  1,176.92  292.50  2,997.77 

Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31 March 2021  486.07  352.49  3,649.97  1,480.04  -  -  3,232.99  6,475.99  1,875.32  17,552.87 

Additions  106.57  -  134.36  445.28  0.88  29.37  268.90  472.88  215.24  1,673.48 

Disposals  (23.01)  -  (35.38)  (90.13)  -  -  (4.28)  (38.42)  (4.77)  (195.99)

As at 31 March 2022  569.63  352.49  3,748.95  1,835.19  0.88  29.37  3,497.61  6,910.45  2,085.79  19,030.36 

Accumulated depreciation         

As at 1 April 2020  84.01  61.01  966.11  102.27  -  -  882.45  2,149.63  1,087.24  5,332.72 

Charge for the year  53.55  41.90  377.67  81.44  -  -  274.57  643.55  256.23  1,728.91 

Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31 March 2021  137.56  102.91  1,343.78  183.71  -  -  1,157.02  2,793.18  1,343.47  7,061.63 

Charged for the year  67.28  41.82  340.03  127.68  0.06  0.36  304.03  682.20  205.16  1,768.62 

Charge for the period-V2R  66.53  41.82  336.46  76.79  -  -  298.39  679.83  204.10  1,703.92 

 Charge for the period-V2S  0.75  -  3.57  50.90  0.06  0.36  5.63  2.37  1.06  64.70 

 Disposals/Impairment  (23.01)  -  (20.86)  (20.74)  -  -  (1.02)  (21.11)  (3.37)  (90.11)

 As at 31 March 2022  181.83  144.73  1,662.95  290.65  0.06  0.36  1,460.03  3,454.27  1,545.26  8,740.14 

 Net block as at 31 March 2021  348.51  249.58  2,306.19  1,296.33  -  -  2,075.97  3,682.81  531.85  10,491.24 

 Net block as at 31 March 2022  387.80  207.76  2,086.00  1,544.54  0.82  29.01  2,037.58  3,456.18  540.53  10,290.22 
          

 Notes: 

a.  Contractual obligations 

 Refer note 35(b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. 

b.  Capitalised borrowing cost 

 The Group has not capitalised any borrowing costs during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. 

c.  Gross block of vehicles amounting to Rs 217.36 lakhs (217.36 lakhs) are hypothecated against vehicle loans taken.Refer note 17. 
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3(ii)  Intangible assets  

Description Computer 
software

Total

 Gross carrying value   

 As at 1 April 2020  359.77  359.77 

 Additions  1.30  1.30 

 Disposals  -    -   

 As at 31 March 2021  361.07  361.07 

 Additions during the year  479.53  479.53 

 Disposals  -    -   

 As at 31 March 2022  840.60  840.60 

 Accumulated amortization 

 As at 1 April 2020  235.33  235.33 

 Amortisation for the period  76.55  76.55 

 Disposals  -    -   

 As at 31 March 2021  311.88  311.88 

 Amortisation for the period  73.90  73.90 

 Disposals  -    -   

 As at 31 March 2022  385.78  385.78 

 Net block as at 31 March 2021  49.19  49.19 

 Net block as at 31 March 2022  454.82  454.82 

   

As at As at

  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

3(iii) Intangible assets under development

 Intangible assets under development  -    462.47 

 -    462.47 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Movement in intangible assets under development: 

      Total 

 As at 1 April 2020      411.47 

 Additions during the year (411.47)

 Capitalisation during the year  - 

 As at 31 March 2021     -

 Additions during the year  - 

 Capitalisation during the year -

 As at 31 March 2022      - 

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March 2021

Intangible assets under development  Amount for a period of  Total 

 Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 
years 

 Projects in progress  -  51.00 26.25  385.22  462.47 

 Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  - 

There are no projects as on each reporting period where activity had been suspended. Also there are no projects as on the 
reporting period which has exceeded cost as compared to its original plan or where completion is overdue. 
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 As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

4  Other financial assets 
 Fixed deposits having maturity of more than 12 months   39.51  28.34 
 Security deposits  673.69  605.12 
 Advance paid against dispute  88.71  84.75 

 801.91  718.21 
*Fixed deposits amounting to Rs 39.51 laks ( Rs 28.34 lakh) are held as margin money 
towards bank guarantees and overdraft facility.    

 As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

5  (i) Deferred tax assets (net) 
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
 Property, plant and equipment 98.28 55.96
 Provision for employee benefits 222.54 182.75
 Provision against doubtful advances -  33.47  
 Expenses not allowed in Income-tax Act, 1961 172.56 -
 Carried forward losses 688.94 660.70
 Lease liabilities 643.70 535.76
 Tax on impact of Ind AS 116 in retained earnings  1,018.38  1,018.38 
  2,844.40  2,487.02 
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
 Security deposits  103.10  77.14 

 103.10  77.14 
Net deferred tax assets  2,741.30  2,409.88 

Notes:

(a) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:  

 Description  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised/ 
(reversed) 

through profit 
and loss 

 Recognised/ 
(reversed) 
in other 

comprehensive 
income 

 Closing 
balance 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:   
 Security deposits  (77.14)  (25.96)  -    (103.10)
 Provision for employee benefits  182.75  26.51  13.28  222.54 
 Carried forward business losses  660.70  28.24  -    688.94 
 Property, plant and equipment  55.96  42.32  -    98.28 

 Expenses allowable on payment basis  33.47  139.09  -    172.56 
 Lease liabilities  535.76  107.94  -    643.70 
 Impact of Ind AS 116 on retained earnings  1,018.38  -    -    1,018.38 
  2,409.88  318.14  13.28  2,741.30 

(b) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for the year ended 31 March 2021:

 Description  Opening 
Balance 

 Recognised 
/ (reversed) 

through  
profit and loss 

 Recognised 
/ (reversed) 

in other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Closing 
Balance 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:     
 Compulsory convertible debentures (CCD)  -   -  -  -
 Security deposits  (42.25)  (34.89)  -   (77.14) 
 Provision for employee benefits  183.50  (1.12)  0.37 182.75 
 Carried forward business losses  639.62  21.08  -   660.70 
 Property, plant and equipment  (9.95)  65.91  -   55.96 
 Expenses allowable on payment basis  -    33.47  -   33.47 
 Lease liabilities  356.86  178.90  -   535.76 
 Impact of Ind AS 116 on retained earnings  1,036.90  (18.52)  -   1,018.38 

  2,164.68  244.83  0.37  2,409.88 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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    Year ended Year ended

     31 March 
2022 

 31 March 
2021 

5 (ii) Tax expense
The income tax expense consists of the following:
Current tax
Current tax expense  -    -   

Deferred tax expense/ (credit)  (318.14)  (244.83)
Total income tax expense  (318.14)  (244.83)
 
   

 
Year ended
 31 March 

2022 

Year ended
 31 March 

2021
(a) The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on 

the domestic effective tax rate of 25.17% and the reported tax expense in statement of profit 
and loss are as follows:      
Profit before income tax  (1,485.86)  (1,529.10)
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate * 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax expense [A]  (373.95)  (384.84)

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax 
expense

 -   -  

Items of permanent difference on which 
deferred tax not created

 53.16  75.55 

Impact of change in tax rate  -    64.09 
Others  2.65  0.37 
Total adjustments [B] 55.81 140.01

Actual tax expense [C=A+B]  (318.14)  (244.83)
Tax expense recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss  (318.14)  (244.83)
* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Group has been computed as follows
Base tax rate 22% 22%
Surcharge (% of tax) 10% 10%
Cess (% of tax) 4% 4%
Applicable rate holding company 25.17% 25.17%
Applicable rate subsidiary company 17.16% 17.16%

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 
 

As at
 31 March 

2022 

As at
 31 March 

2021 

6  Non-current tax assets (net) 

 Advance tax (net of provision of tax)  180.09  221.66 

 180.09  221.66 

(b) Unused tax losses and credits on which deferred tax assets has not been recognised
     Year ended

 31 March 
2022 

Year ended
 31 March 

2021
  Long Term Capital Loss 
 2017-2018 (2025-26*) (Holding Company) 1,127.49          1,127.49 
 2020-2021 (2028-29*) (Holding Company) 175.18             175.18 
 1,302.67          1,302.67 
 * year of expiry
 Business Loss
 2019-2020 (2027-2028*) (Subsidiary)  145.73             145.73 
 2020-2021 (2028-2029*) (Subsidiary)  62.40              64.03 
   208.13             209.76 
 * year of expiry    
 Unabsorbed Depreciation on which Deferred tax assets has not been recognised   
 Unabsorbed Depreciation (Holding Company)  1,711.38          1,520.34 
 2019-2020 (30 December 2020) (Subsidiary Company)  23.71              23.71 
 2020-2021 (15 February 2022) (Subsidiary Company)  108.16             108.16 
   1,843.25          1,652.21 
     
 Potential tax benefit holding company  728.77             680.69 
 Potential tax benefit subsidiary company  58.34              58.62 
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As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

7  Other non-current assets 
 Advance for services (refer note 45)  1,557.65  1,557.65 
 Advance with service tax department  75.00  75.00 
 Advance paid against dispute  113.98  25.95 
 Advance for capex  102.07  264.97 
 Security deposit with suppliers (IGL)  23.39  -   

 1,872.09  1,923.57 
8 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw materials 1,664.83 1,959.47
Work-in-process 869.90 1,740.10
Finished goods 41.07 13.67
Stock-in-trade  26,430.68 26,443.20 
Stores and consumables  71.15  20.13 

 29,077.63  30,176.57 

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022 

As at
 31 March 2021 

9  Trade receivables 
 Unsecured, considered good 

 Receivable from related party  -    -   
 Receivables from other than related party  94.16  65.81 

 94.16  65.81 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less 
than 6 

months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 94.16  -  -  -  - 94.16 

Total  94.16  -  -  -  -  94.16 

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Less 

than 6 
months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years
2-3 

years
More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 65.81  -  -  -  - 65.81
Total 65.81  -  -  -  - 65.81

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

10  Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash in hand  160.01  429.58 

 Balance with banks: - -
 -in current accounts  493.85  1,763.19 

  653.86  2,192.77 

Notes:

(i) Other than as disclosed, there are no repatriation restrictions with respect to other bank balances as at the end of the reporting 
year and prior year.

(ii) The carrying values are a reasonable approximate of their fair values.
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As at As at

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

14 Equity share capital

Authorised

 40,000,000 equity shares of B 10 each (31 March 2021 : 40,000,000 equity shares of B 10 
each)

 4,000.00  4,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

34,389,341 equity shares of B 10 each (31 March 2021: 34,105,026 equity shares of B 10 
each)

 3,438.93  3,410.50 

 3,438.93  3,410.50 

   31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

    No of 
shares 

 Amount  No of 
shares 

 Amount 

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  3,41,05,026  3,410.50 3,41,05,026  3,410.50 

Changes during the year*  2,84,315  28.43  -    -   

Equity shares at the end of the year  3,43,89,341  3,438.93 3,41,05,026  3,410.50 

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares/warrants

The holding company has only one class of equity shares having par value of B 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The holding company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The Board of Directors of 
the holding company has not declared any dividend during the reporting period.    

In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.    

*During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Holding Company has made allotment of 284,315 equity shares @ Rs 10 per 
equity share to the eligible employees on exercise of employee stock option scheme.    

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

11 Other bank balances

Fixed deposits having maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months*  85.71  66.85 

 85.71  66.85 

*Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 85.71 lakh (Rs 66.85 lakh) are held as margin money towards bank guarantees. 

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

12  Other financial assets 

 Current 

 Advances recoverable in cash   -    25.20 

 Credit card receivables  58.43  57.94 

 Security Deposits  87.40  57.76 

 145.83  140.90 

The carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

 Refer note 44 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost.  

 
 

As at
 31 March 2022

As at
 31 March 2021 

13  Other current assets 

 Prepaid expenses  10.93  58.24 

 Advances recoverable in kind or value to be received  29.18  24.53 

 Advance to suppliers  723.72  447.72 

 Advance to employees  23.69  76.05 

 Balance with statutory authorities  3,395.01  2,830.43 

  4,182.53  3,436.97 
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   31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

    No of 
shares 

  % holding   No of 
shares 

  % holding  

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the holding company

Unicon Marketing Private Limited    54,44,710 15.96%  54,44,710 15.96%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited    71,70,000 20.35%  71,70,000 21.02%

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal    32,07,911 9.41%  32,07,911 9.41%

Bennett, Coleman and Company Limited   5.38% 5.38%

"India 2020 Fund II, Limited"    22,00,000 6.45%  22,00,000 6.45%

  1,80,22,621 1,80,22,621 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

“Details of promoters share holding in the 
company as on 31 March 2022”

 Shareholding as 
on 01 April 2021 

 Purchase 
during the 

year 

 Sales 
during the 

year 

Shareholding 
as on 31 

March 2022 

 % change in 
Shareholding 

(d) Details of promoters share holding in the company

Ram Chandra Agarwal  32,07,911  -    -    32,07,911 0.00%

Uma Agarwal  3,44,000  -    -    3,44,000 0.00%

Ramchandra Agarwal (HUF)  1,55,000  -    -    1,55,000 0.00%

Akash Agarwal  1,31,500  1,980  -    1,33,480 1.51%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited  71,70,000  -    -    71,70,000 0.00%

Unicon Marketing Private Limited  54,44,710  -    -    54,44,710 0.00%

Vishal Waterworld Private Limited  10,84,134  -    -    10,84,134 0.00%

V2 Conglomerate Limited  6,32,582  -    -    6,32,582 0.00%

Sunita Fashion Private Limited  2,48,000  -    -    2,48,000 0.00%

 1,84,17,837  1,980  -    1,84,19,817 

“Details of promoters share holding in the 
company as on 31 March 2021”

 Shareholding as 
on 01 April 2021 

 Purchase 
during the 

year 

 Sales 
during the 

year 

Shareholding 
as on 31 

March 2022 

 % change in 
Shareholding 

(d) Details of promoters share holding in the company

Ram Chandra Agarwal  32,07,911  -  -  32,07,911 0.00%

Uma Agarwal     3,44,000  -  -  3,44,000 0.00%

Ramchandra Agarwal (HUF)     1,55,000  -  -  1,55,000 0.00%

Akash Agarwal     -  1,31,500  -  1,31,500 100.00%

Ricon Commodities Private Limited     71,70,000  -  -  71,70,000 0.00%

Unicon Marketing Private Limited     54,44,710  -  -  54,44,710 0.00%

Vishal Waterworld Private Limited  10,84,134  -  -  10,84,134 0.00%

V2 Conglomerate Limited     6,32,582  -  -  6,32,582 0.00%

Sunita Fashion Private Limited  2,48,000  -  -  2,48,000 0.00%

 1,82,86,337  1,31,500  -  1,84,17,837 
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 As at  As at 
  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

15 Other equity
Securities premium account
Opening balance  29,574.09  29,574.09 
Change during the year  397.29  -   

 29,971.38  29,574.09 
Capital reserve [refer note (a) below]
Opening balance  61,043.56  61,043.56 
Change during the year  -    -   

 61,043.56  61,043.56 
Employees' stock option outstanding account
Opening balance  377.65  140.14 
Less: Exercised during year  (397.29)  -   
Add: Charge for the year  129.19  237.51 

 109.55  377.65 
Retained earnings

 Opening balance  (67,536.34)  (66,250.89)
 Add: Net loss for the year  (1,167.72)  (1,284.27)

Add: Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (net of tax)  (39.52)  (1.18)
 (68,743.58)  (67,536.34)

 22,380.89  23,458.97 

 (a) The Holding Company restructured its business in the financial year 2010-11 resulting in creation of Capital Reserve 
amounting to B 60,523.24 lakhs. The aforementioned reserve has been reconciled to amount recognised in the books of 
accounts except for B 365.36 lakhs which the Holding Company is in the process of reconciling. However, the management 
believes that there is no impact of same on Consolidated statement of profit and loss.  

Nature and purpose of other reserves
(i) Securities premium 

(ii)

(iii)

Securities premium  represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Capital reserve:  

This reserve represents the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid at the time of amalgamation done 
in prior years. This reserve is not available for the distribution to the shareholders.   

Employees’ stock options outstanding account  

The account is used to recognise the grant date value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan and 
adjusted as and when such options are exercised or otherwise expire.  

(iv) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
16 Non-current borrowings

Term loan
Secured 
Term loan from banks  -    330.00 
Vehicle loans from financial institutions  11.10  75.53 
Unsecured   
Loan from directors  560.81  -   

 571.91  405.53 
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 19)  11.10  393.87 

 560.81  11.66 
Notes:
Vehicle loan from Volkswagen Finance Private Limited amounting to B Nil (31 March 2021: B 53.13 lakh) was carrying an interest @ 9.26% 
per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ended in March 2022. The loan was secured against hypothecation of 
vehicle.

Vehicle loan from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to B 11.10 lakh (31 March 2021: B 22.40 lakh) carries an interest @ 8.70% per annum 
repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ending in February 2023. The loan is secured against hypothecation of vehicle.

Term loan facility of B Nil (31 March 2021: B 330.00 lakh) from ICICI bank for purchase of plant carries an interest @ 8.50% per annum, 
secured against earmarked fixed deposits. The loan was repayable in 60 equated monthly installments but being prepaid in April 2021.

Refer note 43 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost and analysis of their maturity 
profiles.
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 As at 

 31 March 2022
 As at 

 31 March 2021 

17 Other non-current financial liabilities

Security deposits*  14.74  13.84 

 14.74  13.84 

* The above amount includes security deposits received from shop-in-shop vendors.

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022
 As at 

 31 March 2021 

18 Provisions

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for gratuity  255.25  166.14 

Provision for compensated absences  148.34  113.43 

 403.59  279.57 

For disclosures on gratuity and other post employment benefit obligation, refer note 39  

 
 As at 

 31 March 2022
 As at 

 31 March 2021 

19 Short-term borrowings

Secured 

   Working capital facility from PNB (refer note a below)  4,881.53  4,974.64 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings  11.10  393.87 

 4,892.63  5,368.51 

a. Working capital facility of Rs. 5000 lacs ( Rs 5000 lakhs) from PNB, availed by the holding company, carries an interest @ 9.05 
% per annum (10.85% per annum). This facility is secured against stock and book debts of holding company. 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
Cash out 

flows 

Non cash changes As at

1 April 
2020 Lease 

additions

Impact of rent 
concession & 
leases closed

Interest 
expenses

 31 March 
2021 

Long-term borrowings  493.74  (482.08)  -    -    -    11.66 

"Lease liabilities (including current maturities)"  29,307.15  (4,114.68)  12,477.31  (6,434.37)  3,010.41  34,245.83 

Short-term borrowings (net)  2,817.69  2,550.82  -    -    -    5,368.51 

Interest accrued on borrowings  -    (117.68)  -    -    117.68  -   

Issuance of equity shares  3,410.50  -    -    -    -    3,410.50 

Total liabilities from financial activities  36,029.08  (2,163.62)  12,477.31  (6,434.37)  3,128.10  43,036.49 

The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the 

balance sheet date. 
The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions in relation to secured 
borrowings wherever applicable, are in agreement with the books of accounts.

b. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows:  

Particulars

As at
Cash out 

flows 

Non cash changes As at

1 April 
2021 Lease 

additions

Impact of rent 
concession & 
leases closed

Interest 
expenses

 31 March 
2022 

Long-term borrowings  11.66  549.15  -    -    -    560.81 

"Lease liabilities (including current maturities)"  34,245.83  (5,468.50)  5,198.64  (2,863.99)  3,194.74  34,306.72 

Short-term borrowings (net)  5,368.51  (475.88)  -    -    -    4,892.63 

Interest accrued on borrowings  -    (462.45)  -    -    462.45  -   

Issuance of equity shares  3,410.50  28.43  -    -    -    3,438.93 

Total liabilities from financial activities  43,036.50  (5,829.25)  5,198.64  (2,863.99)  3,657.19  43,199.09 
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    As at  As at 

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021

21 Other financial liabilities    

Current

Employee related payables  595.76  639.03 

Creditors for capital purchases  260.64  358.54 

 Others    11.97  13.17 

 868.37  1,010.74 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

    As at  As at 

    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

20 Trade payables

i.  Undisputed- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

ii. Undisputed-  total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small  
    enterprises 

 462.55  249.91 

Total  11,491.48  12,894.49 

 11,954.03  13,144.40 

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
(MSMED) Act, 2006      

 Particulars    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at 
the end of each accounting year

 Principal amount remaining unpaid  462.55  249.91 

 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end - -

ii) "Amount of interest paid by the Group to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act"  -   -  

iii) Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective due date.  -   -  

iv) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments (which have 
been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Act.

 -   -  

v) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of accounting period.

-  14.16 

vi) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.

-  -  

 
(b) Trade payables ageing is as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed- MSME  462.55  -    -    -    462.55 

(ii) Undisputed- Others  450.29  10,868.21  57.83  43.91  71.24  11,491.48 

Total  450.29  11,330.76  57.83  43.91  71.24  11,954.03 

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed- MSME  -    249.91  -    -    -    249.91 

(ii) Undisputed- Others  1,124.66  11,510.92  141.77  82.48  34.66  12,894.49 

Total  1,124.66  11,760.83  141.77  82.48  34.66  13,144.40 
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Year ended

31 March 2022

Year ended

31 March 2021

24 Revenue from operations   

 Operating revenue   

 Sale of products*  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 Other operating revenue   

 Scrap sales  115.00  84.43 

 Display income  51.33  58.48 

   62,922.49  53,864.74 

 * Details of sale of products   

 Apparels  58,542.65  37,710.26 

 Non-apparels  4,213.51  16,011.57 

  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 

 Detail of Operating revenue by Geographical locations

 In India  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 Outside India  -    -   

 Total  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 
 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

25 Other income  

 Interest from:   

 Interest from:  567.81  959.86 

  Other financial assets carried at amortised cost  14.04  91.54 

 Bank deposits  865.98  1,101.48 

 Rent concession received from landlords  15.61  -   

 Gain on sale of assets (net)  46.49  -   

 Insurance claim received  21.23  3.53 

 Sales of consumables  57.74  140.13 

 Miscellaneous income  1,588.90  2,296.54 

    

 
 

 As at 
 31 March 2022 

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

22 Provisions

Current   

Provision for gratuity (refer note 39A) 109.86 106.23

Provision for compensated absences (refer note 39C) 115.36 112.68

225.22 218.91

For disclosures on gratuity and other post employment benefit obligation, refer note 39

 
 

 As at 
 31 March 2022 

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

23 Other current liabilities

Statutory liabilities  159.68  141.27 

Revenue Received in advance  12.69  5.64 

 172.37  146.91 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

26 Cost of material consumed   
 Raw material inventory at the beginning of the year 1,959.47 1,135.58
 Add: Purchases during the year 4,450.39 4,475.79
 Less: Raw material inventory at the end of the year 1,664.83 1,959.47
  4,745.03 3,651.89

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

27 Purchase of stock-in-trade  
   

 Purchase of stock-in-trade (refer note below) 34,640.01 39,989.34

  34,640.01 39,989.34
(a)   Details of purchase of stock-in-trade

 Apparels 31,202.00 36,878.34
 Non-apparel 3,438.01 3,111.00
  34,640.01 39,989.34

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

28 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
 Opening stock
 Work-in-process 1,740.10 748.52 
 Finished goods 13.67 18.65 
 Traded goods 26,443.20 19,576.37 
  28,196.97 20,343.54 
 Closing stock
 Work-in-process 869.90 1,740.10 
 Finished goods 41.07 13.67 
 Traded goods 26,430.68 26,443.20 
  27,341.65 28,196.97 
  855.32 (7,853.43)
a. Details of closing stock
 Apparels 25,263.40 26,507.38 
 Non-apparel 2,078.25 1,689.59 
  27,341.65 28,196.97 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

29 Direct Expenses   
 Production consumbales  158.99  89.99 
 Jobwork charges  1,921.82  1,350.91 
 Contractor salary  368.71  262.40 

Generator running & maintenance  50.16  42.20 

Power & fuel  -    41.60 

Water charges  -    0.89 

 Freight inward  27.12  13.57 
 Other direct expenses  -    0.34 
   2,526.80  1,801.90 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

30 Employee benefit expense   
 Salaries, wages and bonus  5,581.27  4,349.22 

 Post-employment and other long-term benefits expense (refer note 39)  61.29  43.01 

 Contribution to provident and other funds  291.87  241.25 

 Staff welfare  236.68  197.43 

 Share based payments to employees (refer note 40)  129.19  237.51 

   6,300.30  5,068.42 
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

32 Depreciation and amortisation  
 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  1,768.62  1,728.91 
 Amortization of intangible assets  73.90  76.55 
 Depreciation on right of use assets  4,040.56  3,745.86 
   5,883.08  5,551.32 

 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

33 Other expenses   
 Power, fuel and electricity  2,053.62  1,416.39 
 Water charges  18.12  24.33 
 Repair and maintenance

     - Building  12.41  64.15 

     - Plant and machinery  24.89  21.65 

     - Others  251.24  228.99 
 Rent (refer note 46)  72.05  300.92 
 Insurance charges  45.07  53.66 
 Rates and taxes  155.63  210.27 

Bank charges  137.48  58.88 
 Legal and professional  413.81  307.59 

Motor vehicle expenses  24.25  16.66 
Printing and stationery  44.80  47.49 

 Packing materials & expenses  538.49  716.26 

Security service charges  201.17  160.25 

 Reversal of GST input tax credit on inventory w/off  -    114.51 
 Housekeeping expenses  152.39  132.96 
 Telephone expenses  71.07  60.89 
 E-Commerce expenses  1,014.59  428.14 

 Traveling and conveyance  181.13  143.20 
 Postage and telephones  1.15  10.74 
 Payment to auditors (refer note a below)  29.56  31.65 

 Director's sitting fees  14.96  13.00 
 Credit cards charges  99.01  79.54 
 Advertisement & sales promotion  505.25  462.33 
 Commission charges  6.63  2.04 
 Transportation charges  993.98  985.61 
 Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities (Refer note: 33)  -    36.00 

 Miscellaneous expenses  326.78  224.74 
  7,389.53  6,352.82 

   
 
 

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

a.  Auditors’ remuneration  

 Statutory audit (including fees for limited reviews)  27.30  24.40 
 Other services  -    5.50 
 Out of pocket expenses  2.26  1.75 
  29.56  31.65 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

31 Finance costs  
 Interest on   
 Term loans  4.78  37.58 

Working capital loans  445.33  69.41 
 Interest on lease liabilities  3,194.74  3,010.41 
 Others  12.33  10.70 
   3,657.18  3,128.10 
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 Year ended Year ended

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

34 Details of expenditure incurred in relation to CSR activates during the year

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors 
of the Company had constituted a CSR committee. The details for CSR activities 
are as follows:

Average net profit of the Holding Company for last three financial years  -    1,761.99 

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  -    35.24 

Amount spent during the year on the following:

      (a) Construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   

      (b) On purposes other than (a) above  -    36.00 

Amount unspent during the year and deposited in a scheduled bank  -    -   

Shortfall at the end of the year  -    -   

Reason of Shortfall  -    NA 

Nature of CSR activity  NA  Education and 

social upliftment 

     Year ended Year ended

     31 March 2022 31 March 2021

35 Earnings per share

Loss attributable to equity shareholders before exceptional items (A)  (1,167.72)  (1,284.27)

 Nominal value per share  10.00  10.00 

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic)

 Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the beginning  3,41,05,026  3,41,05,026 

 Issued ordinary shares  2,84,315  -   

 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)  3,43,89,341  3,41,05,026 
 
 Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted)   

 No. of Options

  Category Grant date  31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 B 24 October 2017  -    3,277 

 D 2 May 2018  -    31,407 

  H 27 January 2020   -    2,50,000 

Tranche - I -2021 28 June 2021  2,25,000  -   

  Total ESOP’s granted   2,25,000  2,84,684 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Average price of the share  140.86  76.18 

 Face Value  10  10 

 Exercise price  10  10 

 Diluted shares (nos.)  15,973  37,370 

 Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution (C)  3,44,05,314  3,41,42,396 

 Basic EPS (Amount in I) (A/B)  (3.40)  (3.77)

 Diluted EPS (Amount in I) (A/C)  (3.40)  (3.76)
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31 March 2022 31 March 2021

36 Contingent liabilities and commitments  

(a) Contingent liabilities

Claims against the holding Company not acknowledged as debt [refer note (i) below]  1,869.51  1,957.87 

Other money for which the company is contingently liable:

   Dispute under sales tax law (matters under appeal) [refer note (ii) below]  2,801.78  2,774.48 

   Dispute under service tax law (matters under appeal) [refer note (iii) below]  302.08  302.08 

   Disputes under income tax law 11,887.49 -

(i) The	holding	company	has	certain	cases/disputes	aggregating	to	₹	1,869.51	lakhs	(31	March	2021:	₹	1957.87	lakhs)	involving	

customers, vendors and ex-employees. Whilst the impact of these litigations on these financial statements can only be 

ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed that based on the merits of 

such cases, the holding company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been 

recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

(ii) The holding company has certain litigations related to Sales tax and Values added tax (VAT) pending under Rajasthan 

Value	Added	Tax	Act,	2003	aggregating	to	₹	441.27	lakhs	(31	March	2021	₹	492.82	Lakhs),	West	Bengal	Value	Added	Tax	Act,	

2003	aggregating	to	₹	2,250	lakhs	(31	March	2021	₹	2,250	Lakhs),	The	Assam	Value	Added	Tax	Act,	2003	aggregating	to	₹	7.1	

lakhs	(31	March	2021	₹	7.1	Lakhs),	The	Uttar	Pradesh	Value	Added	Tax	Act,	2008	aggregating	to	₹	24.45	lakhs	(31	March	2021	₹	

24.45	Lakhs),	The	Haryana	Value	Added	Tax	Act,	2003	aggregating	to	₹	59.80	lakhs	(31	March	2021	Nil)	and	The	Bihar	Value	

Added	Tax	Act,	2005	₹	19.05	lakhs	(31	March	2021	Nil).	Whilst	the	impact	of	these	litigations	on	these	financial	statements	

can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management has broadly assessed that based on the 

merits of such cases, the holding company has reasonably good chances of succeeding and accordingly, no provision 

has been recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

(iii) The	holding	company	has	pending	litigation	related	to	service	tax	under	Finance	Act,	1994	amounting	to	₹	302.08	lakhs	

(31	March	2021:	₹	302.08	lakhs)	against	which	Company	has	paid	amount	of	₹	75.00	lakhs	protest.	Whilst	the	impact	of	these	

litigations on these financial statements can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management 

has broadly assessed that based on the merits of such cases, the holding company has reasonably good chances of 

succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Out	of	contingent	 liabilities	existing	as	at	31	March	2022	as	disclosed	above,	certain	cases	amounting	to	 ₹	747.26	lakh	

(31	March	2021:	₹	799.59	lakhs)	comprising	of	claims	against	the	holding	company	not	acknowledged	as	debt	of	₹	281.51	

lakh	(31	March	2021:	₹	282.31	lakh)	and	Value	added	tax	related	disputes	aggregating	₹	465.75	lakh	(31	March	2021:	₹	517.28	

lakh) [(included in point (i) and (ii) above] are under appeal with different authorities at different levels for which the 

management does not have necessary details and information. Whilst the impact of these contingent liabilities on 

the consolidated financial statements can only be ascertained on the settlement of such cases/disputes, management 

has broadly assessed that based on the merits of such cases, the holding company has reasonably good chances of 

succeeding and accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

(b) Commitments 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed by holding company on 

capital account and not provided for (net of advance)   

 38.77  401.87 

37 Segment information 

“In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Board of directors, being the Chief operating decision maker of the Group, has determined 

that the Group is engaged in the business of retail trade of garments, textiles and accessories in India and there are no separate 

reportable segments as per Ind AS 108. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment 

assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge for 

depreciation during the year is as reflected in the financial statement. The Group’s operations are such that all activities are 

confined only to India and here are no customers accounting for more than 10% of its revenue.“

38 During the current year ended 31 March 2022, the management has recorded additional provision amounting to B 628.09 (31 

March 2021: B 1,273.69 lakhs) for expected loss for sale of old inventory taking into account most reliable information available 

at the reporting date and in view of management, the provision is adequate. Further, during the current year, management 

has performed physical verification of inventories at stores and warehouse. Based on the physical verification, the Group 

has written-off inventory amounting to B 825.20 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 1,872.52 lakhs) which has been adjusted against the 

provision created.     

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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39 Gratuity and other post employment benefit plans   

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity  109.86  255.25  106.23  166.14 

 109.86  255.25  106.23  166.14 

A Gratuity

The Group operates gratuity plan where in every employee is entitled to benefit equivalent to 15 days salary (includes dearness 
allowance) last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death 
whichever is earlier. The benefits vests after five years of continuous service. Gratuity benefits valued were in accordance with 
the payment of  Gratuity Act, 1972.         

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss and amounts recognised in the consolidted balance sheet for the Gratuity plan:    

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss is as under:    

Description 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost^   61.28  42.99 

Interest cost*    12.33  10.70 

Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss  73.61  53.69 

^Included in employee benefit expense

*Included in finance cost

(ii) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :

Description

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the start of the year  272.37  240.72 

Current service cost  61.28  42.99 

Interest cost  12.33  10.70 

Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the year  52.80  1.55 

Benefits paid  (33.67)  (23.59)

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year  365.11  272.37 

(iii) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive income is as under: 

Description

Actuarial loss on arising from change in demographic assumption  26.47  0.01 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption  (2.67)  5.82 

Actuarial loss on arising from experience adjustment  29.00  63.27 

Total actuarial loss  52.80  69.10 

(iv) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for 
the Group are shown below      

Description

Discount rate 4.97% 5.04%

Retirement age 58 years 58 years

Mortality rates inclusive of provision 
for disability 

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

100% of IALM 
(2012 - 14)

Attrition at ages:

- Upto 30 years 50.00% 50.00%

- From 31 to 44 years 40% to 50% 50.00%

- Above 44 years 20% to 50% 50.00%

Rate of increase in compensation 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.    
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31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(v) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Description
Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  365.11  272.37 
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %  (4.83)  (2.48)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %  5.00  2.54 

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  365.11  272.37 
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %  4.15  2.12 
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %  (4.08)  (2.10)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In 
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity 
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit 
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied which was 
applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.   

 The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior period. 

Expected contribution 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expected contribution to Gratuity in next year (Amount in B)  81.37  59.23 
(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)

Description
Within next 12 months  109.86  107.13 
Between 2-5 years  197.04  140.99 
Beyond 5 years  58.19  24.24 

 Notes:     

 1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for 
the estimated term of obligations.        

2 The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflations, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors on long term basis.        

3 The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 1.40 years.    

      
B Defined contribution scheme     

 The Group’s state governed provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme and labour welfare fund scheme are 
considered as defined contribution plans. The contribution under the schemes is recognised as an expense in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. There are no other obligations other than the 
contribution payable to the respective funds. The amount of contribution made by the Group to employees’ provident fund 
is B 227.03 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 183.51 lakhs).

Expected contribution 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contributuion towards provident fund 227.03 183.51
Contributuion towards employees’ state insurance fund 64.84 57.74
Total 291.87 241.25

C Other long term employee benefits     

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
 Long term compensated absences     
 Principal assumptions for long term compensated absences   
 Discount rate 4.97% 4.53%
 Retirement age 58 years 58 years
 Mortality rates inclusive of provision 

for disability 
100% of IALM 

(2012 - 14)
100% of IALM 

(2012 - 14)
 Attrition at ages:
 - Upto 30 years 50.00% 50.00%
 - From 31 to 44 years 40% to 50% 50.00%
 - Above 44 years 20% to 50% 50.00%
 Rate of increase in compensation   10.00% 10.00%
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40 Share based payment

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the holding company has granted 225,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) (net of ESOP lapsed 
during the year) employee stock options (“ESOP”) as per scheme approved by “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”, 
at an exercise price of B 10 per option. Further, out of  284,684 (31 March 2021: 284,684) ESOP outstanding as at the beginning 
of the year, the holding company has forfeited 369 (31 March 2021: 5,489) ESOP and holding company has issued shares for 
284,315 (31 March 2021: Nil) ESOP exercised. Total ESOP outstanding as at 31 March 2022 are 225,000 (31 March 2021: 284,684). 
The vesting period of the ESOP is ranging from 15 months to 36 months. The granted options can be exercised after vesting at 
any time before the expiry of 3 months from vesting date. An amount of B 129.19 lakhs (31 March 2021: B 237.51 lakhs) has been 
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2022 as employee benefits expense, as the proportionate cost of ESOP granted.

The Holding Company provides share-based payment scheme to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an 
Employee Stock Option Plan was introduced. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant as below, in the Annual General 
Meeting held on 30 September 2016, the Board of Directors (“Board’) has approved the V2 R-Employee Stock Option Scheme 
2016 (‘ESOP 2016’) and grant of options to the eligible employee of the Holding Company under the Scheme. The Details of the 
scheme are as below:

a) “Employee stock option scheme : 
As at 31 March 2022 the Holding Company had the following outstanding share based payment arrangements:” 

Particulars ESOP 
Scheme

Vesting 
period

Grant Date No. of 
Options 
granted

Exercise 
price per 
share (`)

Market price 
on the date of 

granting of 
option (`)

Tranche-VI Scheme 
2016

 20 Months  28 June 
2021 

 2,25,000 10  128.55 

As at 31 March 2021 the Holding Company had the following outstanding share based payment arrangements:

Particulars ESOP 
Scheme

Vesting 
period

Grant Date No. of 
Options 
granted

Exercise 
price per 
share (`)

Market price 
on the date of 

granting of 
option (`)

Tranche-IV Scheme 
2016

 36 Months  24 October 
2017 

 3,277 10  460.30 

Tranche-V Scheme 
2016

 36 Months  02 May 
2018 

 31,407 10  415.35 

Tranche-VI Scheme 
2016

 18 Months  27 January 
2020 

 250,000 10  114.10 

b) Movement of option granted

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
 Number of 

options
Weighted 
average 

price

Number 
of 

options

Weighted 
average price

Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,84,684  156.31  2,90,173  156.31 
Granted during the year (net of lapsed)  2,25,000  128.55  -    -   
Exercised during the year  2,84,315  121.20  -    -   
Forfeited during the year  369  156.31  5,489  156.31 
Options outstanding during the year  2,25,000  128.55  2,84,684  156.31 
Options unvested at the end of the year  2,25,000  128.55  2,84,684  156.31 
Option exercisable at the end of the year  -    -    -    -   

c) Fair Valuation:
The fair valuation of the options used to compute profoma net profit and earnings per share have been done by an independent 
valuer on the date of grant using Black-Scholes Merton Formula. The key assumption and fair value are as under:  

Particulars  Risk free 
Interest 
Rate (%)

Life (Years) Expected 
Volatility 

(%)

Expected 
Dividend 
Yield (%)

Weighted 
average Fair 

Value Per 
Option (`)

Tranche - I -2021 7.40 1.11 23.23 - 131.16

The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise 
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the 
life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not also necessary be the actual outcome.
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41 Revenue from Contracts with Customers   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 115”), establishes a framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is 
recognised through a 5-step approach:  
(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;  
(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;  
(iii) Determine the transaction price;  
(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and  
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.“

 Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers  

 
 

Description As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Non-current Current Non-current Current
    
 Contract liabilities related to sale of products   

 Revenue Received in advance  -    12.69  -    5.64 

 Contract receivables related to sale of products   

 Trade receivables  -    94.16  -    65.81 
    
 Significant changes in contract assets and 

liabilities  
  

 There has been no significant changes in contact assets/contract liabilities during the year.   

    

 Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities   

 Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of major changes on account of revenue recognised in the reporting period from the 
contract liability balance at the beginning of the period and other changes.     

 Description Year ended Year ended

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Opening balance  5.64  4.59 

 Addition during the year  12.69  5.64 

 Revenue recognised during the year  (5.64)  (4.59)

 Closing balance  12.69  5.64 
    
 Disaggregation of revenue   

 Revenue arises mainly from the sale of traded goods:   
    
 Description 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 (A) Sale of goods   

 Revenue from sale of goods  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 (B) Other ancillary revenue

 Scrap sales  115.00  84.43 

 Display income  51.33  58.48 

   62,922.49  53,864.74 

 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

 Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Contract Price  62,756.16  53,721.83 

 Less: Rebate and Discount  -    -   

 Revenue from contracts with customers  62,756.16  53,721.83 
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4 Sitting fees   

 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu  3.00  3.25 

 Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav  3.00  3.25 

 Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal  3.00  3.25 

 Mr. Lalit Kumar  3.00  3.25 

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

42 Related party disclosures

(a) Holding Company

V2 Retail Limited

(b) Directors

Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal (Chairman and Managing Director)

Mrs. Uma Agarwal (Director)

Mr. Akash Agarwal (Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mrs. Rochelle Susanna Dsouza  (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu (Non-executive Director)

Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav (Non-executive Director)

Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Lalit Kumar (Non-executive Director)

(c) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Manshu Tandon (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sudhir Kumar (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Ms. Jagpreet Kaur (Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) [w.e.f. 02 January 2020 upto 17 June 2020]

(d) Companies in which Directors and Key Management Personnel or their relatives have control or significant 
influence

V2 Conglomerate Private Limited

Vishal Water World Private Limited

(e) Summary of transactions with related parties:

S. 
No.

Particulars  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

1 Loans accepted   

 Vishal Water World Private Limited -  5.79 

2 Loans repaid (including repaid)   

 Vishal Water World Private Limited -  5.79 

3 Remuneration   

 Remuneration

 Mr. Ram Chandra Agarwal  54.50  50.00 

Mrs. Uma Agarwal  53.75  49.25 

Mr. Akash Agarwal  51.21  50.00 

Mr. Manshu Tandon*  69.23  61.22 

Mr. Sudhir Kumar  12.25  8.64 

Mrs. Jagpreet Kaur  -    0.35 

240.94 219.46

5 Remuneration Payable   

 Mrs. Uma Agarwal  6.50  3.83 

Mr. Akash Agarwal  11.55  -   

Mr. Manshu Tandon*  -    1.72 

Mr. Sudhir Kumar  0.80  0.62 

18.85 6.17
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S. 
No.

Particulars  31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

6 Sitting fees Payable   

 Mr. Harbir Singh Sidhu  0.75  0.75 

 Ms. Archana Surendra Yadav  0.75  0.75 

 Dr. Arun Kumar Roopanwal  0.75  0.75 

 Mr. Lalit Kumar  0.75  0.75 

3.00 3.00

7 Refer Note 19(a) regarding personal guarantee of promoters (Mr. Ram Chandra 
Agarwal and Ms. Uma Agarwal) and corporate guarantee of Vishal Waterworld 
Private Limited (related party).

Managerial Remuneration comprises of following:

 31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

Remuneration (excluding post employment benefit) 159.46 149.25

Total 159.46 149.25

Certain KMPs also participate in post employment benefit plans provided by the Company. The amount in respect of these 
towards the KMPs can not be segregated as these are based on actuarial valuation for all employees of the Company.

*excludes the amount charged/reversed to the consolidated statement of profit and loss on grant/forfeiture of employee stock 
options.

43 Fair value disclosures

A Financial instruments by category

 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars FVOCI FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVOCI FVTPL Amortised 
cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost     

Security deposits  -    -    761.09  -    -    662.88 

Cash and bank balances  -    -    739.57  -    -    2,259.62 

Trade receivables  -    -    94.16  -    -    65.81 

Other financial assets  -    -    186.65  -    -    196.23 

Total  -    -    1,781.47  -    -    3,184.54 
       
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost     

Borrowings  -    -    5,453.44  -    -    5,380.17 

Lease liabilities  -    -    34,306.72  -    -    34,245.83 

Trade payable  -    -    11,954.03  -    -    13,144.40 

Other financial liabilities  -    -    883.11  -    -    1,024.58 

Total  -    -    52,597.30  -    -    53,794.98 

B Fair values hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above has been classified into two categories depending on 
the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].

Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or 
in part using a net asset value or valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable 
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

C Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are 
calculated using Level 3 inputs:        
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A) Credit risk         

“Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. The carrying amount of 
financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 
- cash and cash equivalents,  
- loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and 
- deposits with banks”         

a) Credit risk management   

The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of 
customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the Group, and incorporates this information into its 
credit risk controls. Internal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. 
The Group assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors 
specific to the class of financial assets.         
A: Low         
B: Medium         
C: High       

Assets under credit risk:

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)

43(a) Financial risk management

i) Risk management 

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the 
entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk
Exposure arising 

from
Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash 
equivalents, 

financial assets 
measured at 

amortised cost

Aging analysis Bank deposits, diversification 
of asset base, credit limits and 

collateral.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and 
other liabilities

Rolling cash 
flow forecasts

Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk - interest rate Recognised 
variable rate 

financial liabilities 
denominated in 

Indian rupee (INR)

Cash flow 
forecasting

Company is in the process of 
reducing the debt component to 

reduce the interest rate risk

Credit rating Particulars  31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021 

A: Low Security deposits  761.09  662.88 

 Other financial assets  186.65  196.23 

 Trade receivables  94.16  65.81 

 Cash & cash equivalents and bank deposits  739.57  2,259.62 

Particulars    31 March 2022  31 March 2021 

   Carrying 
value

Fair 
value

Carrying 
value

Fair value

Security deposits   761.09  761.09  662.88  662.88 

    761.09  761.09  662.88  662.88 

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, Interest accrued on bank deposits 
with banks, other current financial assets  and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of borrowings, lease liabilities and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their 
fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates. 
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B) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the 
business, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities. Management 
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash 
flows. The Group takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.   

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity of Group based on their contractual maturities 
for all non-derivative financial liabilities.        

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.      

    

31 March 2022   Less than 1 
year

1-3 year More than 
3 years

Total

Borrowings  4,892.63  560.81  -    5,453.44 

Trade payable  11,954.03  -    -    11,954.03 

Lease liabilities  3,421.64  8,413.43  22,471.65  34,306.72 

Other financial liabilities  868.37  14.74  -    883.11 

Total    21,136.67  8,988.98  22,471.65  52,597.30 

  

31 March 2021   Less than 1 
year

1-3 year More than 
3 years

Total

Borrowings  5,368.51  11.66  -    5,380.17 

Trade payable  13,144.39  -    -    13,144.39 

Lease liabilities  3,309.71  7,221.81  23,714.31  34,245.83 

Other financial liabilities  1,010.74  13.84  -    1,024.58 

Total    22,833.35  7,247.31  23,714.31  53,794.97 

C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will 
affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.  

a) Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities

The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. As at 31 March 2022, the 
Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.  

Interest rate risk exposure

 of the Group to interest rate risk:

Particulars  31 March 
2022

31 March 
2021

Variable rate borrowing  4,881.53  4,974.64 

Fixed rate borrowing  571.91  405.53 

Total borrowings   5,453.44  5,380.17 

Cash & cash equivalents and bank deposits  

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and 
diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.      

Trade receivable, loans and other financial assets measured at amortised cost   

These are measured at amortised cost includes loans and advances to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk 
related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at 
the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits.   
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Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

 Interest sensitivity*  

 Interest rates – increase by 100 basis points  48.82  49.75 

 Interest rates – decrease by 100 basis points  (48.82)  (49.75)

 * Holding all other variables constant  

ii) Assets

The Group’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest 
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a 
change in market interest rates.          

43(b) The Group has recognised deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation and business losses to the extent 
there is reasonable certainty the Group would be able to realise the deferred tax assets against future taxable income.

44 Capital management

The Group’s capital management objectives are

- to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern

- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents 
as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while 
avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Group’s various classes of debt. The 
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the 
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follows:
 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Total borrowings (including current maturity)   5,453.44  5,380.17 

Less: cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits)  779.08  2,287.96 

Net debt  4,674.36  3,092.21 

Total equity  25,819.83  26,869.47 

 Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 18.10% 11.51%

45 Advertising advance to Bennett, Coleman and Company Limited (BCCL)     

The Parent Company executed an Advertisement contract dated 7 July 2015 for the period of 5 years with Bennet Coleman 
and Company Limited (BCCL), pursuant to which the parent Company has agreed to give advertisements of Rs. 5,000 lakhs, 
being the total commitment and BCCL has extended long-term credit facility amounting to Rs. 3,250 lakhs to be utilized in 
accordance with the terms of aforesaid agreement. The aforesaid agreement was further extended twice for a term of one 
year each and the management is confident of its renewal beyond July 7, 2022 basis its ongoing discussion with BCCL 
and past practice. The parent Company has paid Rs. 1,557.65 lakhs till year ended 31 March 2021 (outstanding since April, 
2019,) pursuant to this contract and disclosed this amount under “other non-current assets” as at 31 March 2022. Further, 
the management  is confident of utilising the above advance with in the extended contractual period and therefore, has 
considered the aforesaid advance as good and recoverable.       
  

46 Ind AS 116 - Leases

“The Group has leases for the office, warehouse, factory, retail stores and others. With the exception of short-term leases 
and leases with variable lease payments, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability. The lease terms for office premises, warehouse, factory  and store sites are for an period of one year to fifteen years 
and having a lock-in period ranging from one to three years. The lease are further renewable on expiry of total lease term 
subject to mutual consent of both the parties. The Holding Company also sub leases portion of retail stores. However, the 
sub-lease income is not material to the total lease outflows.“       
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A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
 
Particulars     31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenses relating to short term leases (included in other expenses)  72.05  300.92 

Total       72.05  300.92 

B The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised on 
balance sheet:        

No of right-
of-use assets 

leased

“Range of 
remaining term 

(in years)”

“Average 
remaining 
lease term 
(in years)”

Office  2  2-2.63 Year  2.41 Years 

Stores  101 0.1-14.33 Year 7.31 Year

Warehouse  2  2.6-3.5 Year  3.05 Years 

Factory  2  2.59-4.69 Year  3.64 Years 

C The following are amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:    

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amortisation expense of right-of-use assets  4,040.56  3,745.86 

Interest expense on lease liabilities  3,194.74  3,010.41 

Rent expense  72.05  300.92 

Total  7,307.35  7,057.19 

The Group had elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease modification, as per 
MCA notification dated 24 July 2020 and 18 June 2021 on Ind AS 116 for rent concessions which are granted due to COVID-
19 pandemic. Accordingly, it has accounted for Rs. 865.98 lakhs in year ended 31 March 2022 , ( Rs. 1101.48 lakhs year ended 
31 March 2021) under head other income with respect to unconditional rent concessions confirmed by the landlord. 

In determination of lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to 
exercise extensive options, or not exercise a termination options (or periods after termination options) are only included 
in the lease if the lease is reasonably certain to be excluded (or not terminated).

For movement of lease liability refer note no. 3(i)(b) and for maturity profile of lease liability refer note 43(a). 
For Cash flow of lease liabilty refer note no. 19(b)

47 The parent Company has performed physical verfication of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 
2022 in accordance with the phased program of conducting such verification over a period of 3 years.  However, the 
parent Company is in process of performing related reconciliation of such physical verification with the underlying fixed 
asset register maintained by the parent Company in respect of property, plant and equipment with aggregate gross block 
of Rs. 17,792.30 lakhs and net block of Rs. 9,162.77 lakhs as at 31 March 2022.  However the management does not impact 
resultant adjustments to be material to the financial statements.      

48 World Health Organization (WHO) declared outbreak of Corona virus disease (COVID-19) a global pandemic in month 
of February 2020. Consequent to this, Government of India had declared lockdown i.e. 24 March 2020 which caused 
significant economic slowdown and disruptions of business operations. Subsequently, the second wave and third wave 
of COVID-19 had emerged in India, due to which various State Governments have also imposed lockdown in respective 
states. This had also temporarily impacted the business activities of the Group such as closure of stores and warehouse, 
disruption of supply chain, etc. consequent to uncertainites caused by COVID-19. The Group has prepared cash flow 
projections to assess the cash flow requirements and funds available from various sources including bank borrowings etc. 
for next 12 months. The management has also considered the possible effects of the pandemic on the carrying values of 
assets and the business forecasts. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible impacts of this pandemic and 
cash flow projections, the Group has used internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial 
results and current indicators of future economic conditions. The Group expects to recover the carrying amount of these 
assets and have sufficient liquidity for business operations for at least another twelve months. Further, the Group has re-
assessed valuation and recoverability of inventory. In its assessment the management has considered projected sales, 
purchase, discounts, promotion schemes, other logistic costs, etc. It has carried out sensitivity analysis and based on the 
same it is of the view that provision for markdown and shrink is sufficient and appropriate to cover any loss that may arise 
due to various uncertainties involved. The impact of the pandemic on the Group’s financial results may differ from that 
estimated as at the date of approval of these Consolidated financial results and the management will continue to closely 
monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business.  
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49 The National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench V vide its order dated 25.06.2020 had initiated corporate insolvency 
resolution process (“CIRP”) in respect of the Holding Company and had appointed an insolvency resolution professional on 
account of an insolvency petition filed by a vendor of the Holding Company for failure to pay towards supply of services by 
the vendor to the Holding Company. Subsequently, the claim of the vendor was amicably settled by the Holding Company  
vide a settlement agreement amounting to Rs 113 lacs and thereafter the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi 
Bench V vide its order dated 10.07.2020 withdrew and dismissed the corporate insolvency resolution process initiated 
against the Holding Company.        

50 Interests in subsidiaries
Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.     

51 The Group had elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the rent concessions as a lease modification, as per 
MCA notification dated 24 July 2020 and 18 June 2021 on Ind AS 116 for rent concessions which are granted due to COVID-
19 pandemic. Accordingly, it has accounted for Rs. 66.21 lakhs and Rs. 865.98 lakhs in quarter and year ended 31 March 2022 
respectively, (Rs. 101.20 lakhs and Rs. 1101.48 lakhs in quarter and year ended 31 March 2021 respectively) under head other 
income with respect to unconditional rent concessions confirmed by the landlord.   

52 No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between 31 March 2022 reporting date and the date of 
authorisation.        

53 Assets pledged as security

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current assets

Inventories  26,734.12  26,535.70 

Trade Receivables  94.16  68.99 

Cash and cash equivalents  594.09  1,517.03 

Other Bank balances  85.71  66.85 

Other financial assets  1,675.78  1,499.32 

Other current assets  3,556.08  4,254.51 

Total current assets pledged as security^  32,739.94  33,942.41 

Vehicles*  143.75  169.57 

 Total assets pledged as security  32,883.69  34,111.98 

^Working capital facility taken by the Holding Company has been obtained from Punjab National Bank of B 5,000 lacs. This 
facility is secured against all current assets of the Holding Company. Term loan of B Nil (31 March 2021: B 330 lakh) taken by 
the subsidiary company from ICICI bank was secured against earmarked bank deposit balances.

*Vehicle loan from Volkswagen Finance Private Limited amounting to B Nil (31 March 2021: B 53.13 lakh) was carrying an 
interest @ 9.26% per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ended in March 2022. The loan was secured 
against hypothecation of vehicle.        

*Vehicle loan from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to B 11.10 lakh (31 March 2021: B 22.40 lakh) carries an interest @ 8.70% 
per annum repayable in thirty six equal monthly instalments ending in February 2023. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of vehicle.        

Name of the entity

‘Net assets i.e. total assets 
minus total liabilities Share in profit or loss Share in other 

comprehensive income
Share in total 

comprehensive income

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount  
(Rs.)

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount  
(Rs.)

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount  
(Rs.)

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount  
(Rs.)

Parent         

V2 Retail Limited 100.75%  26,014.48 110.49%  (1,290.21) 99.79%  (39.43) 110.14%  (1,329.64)

Indian subsidiary         

V2 Smart Manufacturing 
Private Limited

5.73%  1,479.20 -21.92%  256.00 0.22%  (0.09) -21.20%  255.91 

   27,493.68   (1,034.21)   (39.52)   (1,073.73)

Conolidation 
adjustments and 
eliminations

-6.48%  (1,673.85) 11.43%  (133.51) 0.00%  - 11.06%  (133.51)

Total 100.00%  25,819.83 100.00%  (1,167.72) 100.00%  (39.52) 100.00%  (1,207.24)
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54 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020, which would impact Employees Provident Fund and 

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, etc. The effective date from which the changes 

are applicable is yet to be notified and the final rules are yet to be framed. The impact of the changes, will be assessed and 

recognised post notification of the relevant provision and related rules are published.

55. The Holding Company has implemented a new Information Technology System, SAP Hana, (“new IT system”) as on 04 

January 2022  for supporting its operations and financial reporting, which required an extensive exercise of data migration 

from the erstwhile used IT system SAP ECS (“old IT system”). The Holding Company has hired external consultant to check the 

implementation of new IT software and certify that data has been accurately and completely migrated.

56 Other Statutory Information        

(i) "The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 

the Group for holding any Benami property."        

(ii) The Group do not have any transactions with struck off companies.     

(iii) The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.  

(v) "The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:"

"(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or"     

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries   

(vi) "The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 

Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:" 

"(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or"

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,   

(vii) The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 

any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961      

(viii) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement 

with the books of accounts.      

(ix) The Group has not been declared as a ‘Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies 

Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India.

(x) The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies 

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(xi) There is no immovable property in the books of the Group, hence disclosure with  respect to the same is not applicable. 

57 Standards issued but not yet effective

 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (""MCA"") vide its notification dated March 23, 2022 has notified Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 to further amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Amendments 

have been made to the following standards."        

 Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

 The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall 

deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds received from selling items produced while the 

entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.
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 Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

 The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cost of 

fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly 

to fulfilling contracts. 

 Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

 The MCA vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies that which fees an entity should 

include when it applies the ‘10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received 

between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf. 

The amendments listed above will be effective on or after April 1, 2022 and are not expected to significantly affect the current 

or future periods. "        

58 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever considered necessary 

including requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013, to make them comparable with current year 

classification.

 

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants V2 Retail Limited 
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

Jyoti Vaish Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Chief Executive Officer 
Membership No. 096521 DIN: 00491885 

 Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar
 Whole Time Director and Company Secretary and
 Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 
ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Name of the subsidiary V2 Smart 
Manufacturing 
Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s 
reporting period

Same as of 
holding company

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the 
case of foreign subsidiaries

N.A.

Share capital 1500.00

Reserves & surplus -20.82

Total assets 5250.37

Total liabilities* 5250.37

Investments 0

Turnover 9573.28

Profit before taxation 309.87

Provision for taxation 53.89

Profit after taxation 255.98

Proposed Dividend 0

% of shareholding 100

*Total Liabilities excluding of share capital and Reserves & Surplus.

Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations – NIL

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – NIL

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

(Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint 
Ventures)
Note: The Company does not have any Associate/Joint Venture Company as on 31st March, 2022

Names of the associate or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations – NIL

Names of the associate or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – NIL

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

 V2 Retail Limited 

Ram Chandra Agarwal Manshu Tandon Akash Agarwal Sudhir Kumar

Chairman and  
Managing Director 

Chief Executive Officer Whole Time Director and  
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer

DIN: 00491885 DIN: 03194632 M.No. A25125

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 30, 2022

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(All amounts in I in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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